City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting
AGENDA

§ cnmmsw Y |

Monday, January 12, 2015
1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages
Call to Order
This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.
Confirmation of Minutes 5-14
Regular PM Meeting - December 15, 2014
Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws
3.1 Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0011 - 499 Valley Road 15 - 30
North, Jane & Anthony Reschke, Deanna Sills, Gregory & Jennifer Reschke
Mayor to invite the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative, to come forward.
To consider a staff recommendation NOT to support an application to the
Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section 20(3) of the ALC Act for a
“Non-Farm use” within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) to allow 0.101 ha
(0.25 acres) of the property to be leased to a tree service company.
3.2  Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0010 - 1301 Glenmore 31-53
Road North, Kelowna Pet Resort Ltd.
Mayor to invite the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative to come forward.
To consider a staff recommendation NOT to support an application to the
Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to allow an existing mobile home to be
used by a caretaker for the kennel business on the property.
3.3 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0055 - 650-652 Wardlaw, Laren & Janette 54 -74

Desaultels

To rezone the subject property in order to permit a fourplex.



4.

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.3.1 Bylaw No. 11049 (Z14-0055) - 650-652 Wardlaw Avenue, Loren &
Janette Desautels

To give Bylaw No. 11049 first reading.

Text Amendment Application No. TA14-0013 - Various Addresses, Kettle Valley
Development Ltd.

To seek approval for changes to the development regulations and housekeeping
amendments in the CD2 Comprehensive Zone 2, Kettle Valley Comprehensive
Residential Development zone.

3.4.1 Bylaw No. 11046 (TA14-0013) - CD2 - Kettle Valley Comprehensive
Residential Development Zone

To give Bylaw No. 11046 first reading.

Text Amendment Application No. TA14-0015, Supplemental Report - 1975
Union Road, 657139 BC Ltd.

To amend the C5 - Transition Commercial zone by replacing the previously
recommended “Service Stations, Minor” use with the “Rapid Drive-Through
Vehicle Services” use on one explicit legal parcel.

3.5.1 Bylaw No. 10996 (TA14-0015) - 1975 Union Road, Amendment to C5 -
Transition Commercial Zone

To give Bylaw No. 10996 first reading as amended.

Rezoning Application No. Z11-0083, Extension Request - 1429 KLO Road, Arnold
& Melitta Frank

To extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending bylaw No. 10782 from
December 11, 2014 to December 11, 2015.

Rezoning Application No. Z12-0047, Extension Request - 875 & 885 Mayfair
Road, Onkar & Ranjit Dhillon

To extend the date for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10768 from
November 13, 2014 to November 13, 2015.

Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

4.1

Bylaw No. 11026 (TA14-0019) - Breweries and Distilleries, Minor in C3, C6 and
C10 Zones

To adopt Bylaw No. 11026 in order to include ‘Breweries and Distilleries, minor’
as a principle use in the C3, C6 and C10 zones.

75-75

76 - 82

83 -88

89 -

104 -

105 -

111

115 -

103

104

110

- 114

115



4.2

4.3

Bylaw No. 11031 (OCP14-0015) - 1501 & 1511 Tower Ranch Drive and 2160 116 -

Tower Ranch Boulevard, Parkbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc., City of
Kelowna & 0977415 BC Ltd.

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To adopt Bylaw No. 11031 in order to change the future land use designation of
a portion of the subject properties from MRL — Multiple Unit Residential (Low
Density) to S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential; PARK - Park and Open Space
(public) to S2RES — Single / Two Unit Residential; S2RESH — Single/Two Unit
Residential- Hillside to MRL — Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density); S2RESH
— Single/Two Unit Residential- Hillside to PARK — Major Park and Open Space
(public); and PARK — Park and Open Space (public) to S2ZRESH - Single / Two
Unit Residential — Hillside; from S2RES — Single/Two Unit Residential to PARK
- Park and Open Space (public); from PARK — Park and Open Space (public) to
S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential; from S2RES — Single/Two Unit
Residential to S2ZRESH - Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside; from S2RESH -
Single/Two Unit Residential — Hillside to S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential;
and from REC - Private Recreation (private) to S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential - Hillside; from S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside to
PARK - Major Park and Open Space (public); from S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential - Hillside to- PSU - Public Services / Utilities; from Private
Recreation (private) to- PSU - Public Services / Utilities; and from PARK -
Major Park and Open Space (public) to S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential -
Hillside; and from PARK - Major Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES -
Single/Two Unit Residential; and from Public Service Utilities (PSU) to
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH); and from Resource Protection
Area (REP) to Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

Rezoning Application No. Z10-0028 - 1020 Graham Road, Lyall Watson Grexton 123 -

To extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551 from July
11, 2014 to July 11, 2015; To consider waiving the requirement for a
Development Variance Permit and to adopt Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551 in
order to rezone the subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to
the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to permit the construction of a second
single-family dwelling on the subject property.

4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10551 (Z10-0028) - 1020 Graham Road, Lyall Watson 126 -

Grexton

To adopt Bylaw No. 10551 in order to rezone the subject property
from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Dwelling Housing
zone to permit the construction of a second single-family dwelling on
the subject property.

122

125

126



5. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 2015 Financial Plan 127 - 167

To provide an overview of the 2015 Financial Plan.

5.2 South Perimeter Road - Results of Public Engagement 168 - 230

At the October 6, 2014 Regular Meeting, Council considered a proposal by the
development community to accelerate the design and construction of South
Perimeter Road (SPR) between Stewart Rd West and Gordon Drive. This report
provides the results of the community input.

6. Mayor and Councillor Items

7. Termination



Regular Council Meeting

Minutes
Date: Monday, December 15, 2014
Location: Council Chamber
City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Council Members Mayor Colin Basran and Councillors Maxine DeHart, Ryan Donn,
Present: Gail Given, Tracy Gray, Charlie Hodge, Brad Sieben, Mohini Singh

and Luke Stack

Staff Present: City Manager, Ron Mattiussi; City Clerk, Stephen Fleming; Deputy
City Clerk, Karen Needham®; Urban Planning Manager, Ryan
Smith*; Urban Planning Supervisor, Lindsey Ganczar*; Manager,
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment, Todd Cashin*; Property

Manager, John Saufferer*; Planner Specialist, Pat McCormick*; and
Council Recording Secretary, Arlene McClelland

(* denotes partial attendance)

1. Call to Order
Mayor Basran called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.
Mayor Basran advised that the meeting is open to the public and all representations to
Council form part of the public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and
recorded by CastaNet and a delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes

Moved By Councillor Sieben/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R900/14/12/15 THAT the Minutes of the Regular Meetings of December 8, 2014 be
confirmed as circulated.

Carried
3. Committee Reports
3.1. External Committee Appointments

Moved By Councillor DeHart/Seconded By Councillor Singh

R901/14/12/15 THAT Council appoints Councillor Hodge as Council representative to
the Central Okanagan Committee for Safe Schools for the 2014-2018 term;




AND THAT Council appoints Councillor DeHart as Council representative to the Citizen
of the Year/Civic Awards Committee;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Donn as Council representative to the City of
Vernon Biosolids Advisory Committee;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor DeHart as Council representative to the
Downtown Kelowna Association, with Councillor Hodge as the alternate for the 2014-
2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Sieben as Council representative to the
Economic Development Commission, with Councillor Gray as the alternate for the
2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Donn as Council representative to the Kasugai
Sister City Association for the 2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Gray as Council representative to the Kelowna
Chamber of Commerce, with Councillor DeHart as the alternate for the 2014-2018
term;

AND THAT Council appoints Mayor Basran as Council representative to the Kelowna
Joint Water Committee, with Councillor Given as the alternate for the 2014-2018
term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Gray as Council representative to the Okanagan
Regional Library District, with Councillor Given as the alternate for the 2014-2018

term;

AND THAT Council appoints Mayor Basran as Council representative to the Southern
Interior Local Government Association, with Councillor Hodge as the alternate for the
2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Given as Council representative to the Tourism
Kelowna Committee, with Councillor Donn as the alternate for the 2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Mayor Basran as Council representative to the UBC
Okanagan External Community Advisory Council for the 2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Sieben as Council representative to the Uptown
Rutland Business Association, with Councillor Gray as the alternate for the 2014-2018
term;

AND FURTHER THAT Council appoints Councillor Hodge as Council representative to
the Veendam Sister City Society for the 2014-2018 term.

Carried

3.2. Council Committee Appointments

Moved By Councillor Sieben/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R902/14/12/15 THAT Council appoints the Airport Advisory Committee as a
committee of Council for the 2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Councillor Stack as Councillor representative to the Airport
Advisory Committee for the 2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council directs staff to report back with an updated 2014-2018 Terms of
Reference for the Airport Advisory Committee;



AND THAT Council appoints the Audit Committee as a committee of Council for the
2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council appoints Mayor Basran, Councillor Given and Councillor Stack as
Council representatives to the Audit Committee for the 2014-2018 term;

AND THAT Council directs staff to report back with an updated 2014-2018 Terms of
Reference for the Audit Committee;

AND THAT Council appoints the Parcel Tax Roll Review Panel as a committee of
Council for the 2014-2018 term;

AND FURTHER THAT Council appoints Councillor Hodge, Councillor DeHart and
Councillor Singh as Council representative to the Parcel Tax Roll Review for the 2014-
2018 term.

Carried

4, Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1. Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0010 - 1301
Glenmore Road North, Kelowna Pet Resort Ltd.

Item 4.1 Withdrawn and rescheduled to January 12, 2015 PM Council Meeting.

4.2. Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0005 - 1590 Pioneer
Road, 11.2 Acre Holding Co. Ltd.

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application and responded to

questions from Council.
Mayor to invite the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative to come forward.

Bob Holtby, Agrologist, Applicant Representative

- Performed a lab analysis on the fill material and found the fill material will enhance the
value of this land and will provide more sand which will allow for better drainage.
Examined the site and stated that placing fill for pasture is an accepted farm practice
protected under the Right to Farm Act.
Displayed a photo of the property taken on December 11, 2014 and noted a great deal of
effort” to provide land clearing. There was also no evidence of water drainage on
neighbouring properties.
Responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Hodge/

R/14/12/15 THAT Council support staff’s Alternate Recommendation.
Motion failed due to lack of a seconder.

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R903/14/12/15 THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0005 for
Lot A, Section 8, TWP 26, ODYD Plan KAP60919 Except Plan KAP60920, located at 1590
Pioneer Road for Non-farm Use, pursuant to Section 20(3) of the Agricultural Land
Commission Act, NOT be supported by Municipal Council;

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.



Carried
Councillor Hodge - Opposed

4.3. Rezoning Application No. Z14-0043 & Land Use Contract Application No.
LUC14-0001 - 1020 Sutcliffe Court, 1009440 BC Ltd.

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application and responded to

questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Given

R904/14/12/15 THAT Application No. LUC14-0001 to discharge LUC 76-1043 from Lot
2, Section 25, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 31812, located on 1020 Sutcliffe Court,
Kelowna, BC, be considered by Council;

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0043 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, Section 25, Township 26,
ODYD, Plan 31812, located on 1020 Sutcliffe Court, Kelowna, BC, from the RR3 - Rural
Residential 3 zone to the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone, as shown on Map “A” attached
to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated December 8, 2014, be
considered by Council;

AND THAT the Land Use Contract Discharge and the Zone Amending Bylaw be
forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;,

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their
satisfaction;

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered
subsequent to the discharge of the Land Use Contract.

Carried

4.3.1. Byéaw No. 11043 (LUC14-0001) - 1020 Sutcliffe Court, 1009440 BC
Ltd.

Moved By Councillor Hodge/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R905/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 11043 be read a first time.

Carried
4.3.2. Bylaw No. 11044 (Z14-0043) - 1020 Sutcliffe Court, 1009440 BC Ltd.

Moved By Councillor Hodge/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R906/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 11044 be read a first time.

Carried
4.4, Rezoning Application No. Z14-0040 - 4065 Lakeshore Road, City of Kelowna
Staff:

Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application and responded to
questions from Council.



Moved By Councillor Sieben/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R907/14/12/15 THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0040 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of portions of
That Part of the Fractional South West 1/4 of Section 6 Included in Plan Attached to
D.D. 190710F; Township 26, ODYD, located on 4065 Lakeshore Road, Kelowna, BC from
the P1 - Major Institutional zone to the P3 - Parks and Open Space and RU2 - Medium
Lot Housing zones, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the Urban Planning
Department dated November 26, 2014, be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer.

Carried
4.4.1. Bylaw No. 11042 (Z14-0040) - 4065 Lakeshore Road, City of Kelowna

Moved By Councillor Hodge/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R908/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 11042 be read a first time.

Carried

4.5, Redzoning Application No. Z14-0046 - 822 McCurdy Place, Hyatt Auto Sales
Ltd. :

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application and responded to

questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Sieben/Seconded By Councillor Hodge

R909/14/12/15 THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0046 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 22,
District Lot 124, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS3323 together with an interest in the common
property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown on Form V,
located on 822 McCurdy Place, Kelowna, BC from the I1 - Business Industrial zone to
the 12 - General Industrial zone as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the
Urban Planning Department dated November 26, 2014, be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration.

Carried

4.5.1. Bylaw No. 11040 (Z14-0046) - 822 McCurdy Place, Hyatt Auto Sales
Ltd.

Moved By Councillor Hodge/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R910/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 11040 be read a first time.

Carried

4.6. Rezoning Application No. Z14-0045 - 828, 834, 871 & 877 McCurdy Place,
Harmony Holdings Limited



Staff:
Displayed a map of the properties at McCurdy Place and responded to questions from

Council.

Moved By Councillor Gray/Seconded By Councillor Hodge

R911/14/12/15 THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0045 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 24,
26, 27,and 29, District Lot 124, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS3323 together with an interest in
the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown
on Form V located on 828, 834, 871 and 877 McCurdy Place, Kelowna, BC from the I1 -
Business Industrial zone to the 12 - General Industrial zone as shown on Map “A”
attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated November 26, 2014,
be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration.

Carried

4.6.1. Bylaw No. 11039 (Z14-0045) - 828, 834, 871 & 877 McCurdy Place,
Harmony Holdings Limited

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R912/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 11039 be read a first time.

Carried

4.7. Rezoning Application No. Z14-0042 - 2210 Abbott Street, Strandhaus
Developments Inc.

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application and responded to

questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R913/14/12/15 THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0042 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 27, District
Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 535, located on 2210 Abbott Street, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 -
Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone, as shown on Map “A”
attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated December 3, 2014, be
considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction
with Council’s consideration of a Heritage Alteration Permit for the subject property;

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered
subsequent to the requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being
completed to their satisfaction.

Carried

4.7.1. Bylaw No. 11045 (Z14-0042) - 2210 Abbott Street, Strandhaus
Developments Inc.



Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R914/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 11045 be read a first time.

Carried
4.8. Bylaw No. 10757 (Z12-0046) - 1350 St. Paul Street, 564913 BC Ltd.
Moved By Councillor DeHart/Seconded By Councillor Singh
R915/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 10757 be adopted.
Carried
4.9. Bylaw No. 10979 (Z14-0019) - 260 Ponto Road, Alexander Ryan Tull
Moved By Councillor Sieben/Seconded By Councillor Singh
R916/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 10979 be adopted.
Carried

4.8.1. Development Permit Application No. DP14-0169 - 1350 St. Paul
Street, 564913 BC Ltd.

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application.

Moved By Councillor Sieben/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R918/14/12/15 THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10757 be
considered by Council;

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0169 for
Lot 1, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP68461 located on 1350 St. Paul Street, Kelowna,
BC subject to the following:

1. The dimensions and siting of the parking lot to be constructed on the land
be in general accordance with Schedule “A”;

2. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with
Schedule “C”;

3. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance
Security deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125%
of the estimated value of the landscaping, as determined by a professional
landscaper;

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions
within 180 days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order
for the permit to be issued.

Carried

4.9.1. Development Permit Application No. DP14-0084 - 260 Ponto Road,
Alexander Ryan Tull

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application.

11



Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Donn

R919/14/12/15 THAT Council authorize the issuance of DP14-0084 on Lot 17, Section
26, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4414 located on 260 Ponto Road, Kelowna, BC subject to
the following:

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in
general accordance with Schedule “A”;
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in
general accordance with Schedule “B”;
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule
“C";
4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security
Deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated
value of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper;

AND FUTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions
within 180 days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order
for the permit to be issued.

Carried
4.10. Rezoning Application No. Z11-0018 - 1500 Friesen Road, Gwynne Johnson

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application.

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Singh

R920/14/12/15 THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the
Community Planning & Real Estate Division, dated November 28, 2014 with respect to
Rezoning Bylaw Application 10536 (Z11-0018 - Gwynne Johnson - 1500 Friesen Road -
Lot14 Section 35 Township 26 ODYD Plan 18660);

THAT Bylaw No. 10536 be forwarded for rescindment consideration and Staff be
directed to close the related files.

Carried
4.10.1. Bylaw No. 10536 (Z11-0018) - 1500 Friesen Road, Gwynne
Johnson
Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Hodge
R917/14/12/15 THAT Bylaw No. 10536 be rescinded;
AND THAT the file be closed.
Carried

5. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws
5.1. Lease - 1014 Glenmore Road
Staff:

Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the lease agreement for 1014 Glenmore
Road.



Moved By Councillor Donn/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R921/14/12/15 THAT Council approve the City entering into a two (2) year Lease
Agreement with Glenmore Store Limited for office space at 1014 Glenmore Road, with
the option to renew for an additional one (1) year term (for a total potential lease
period of three years), in the form attached to the Report of the Manager, Property
Management, dated December 15, 2014,

AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Lease Agreement;

AND THAT all costs associated with the Lease Agreement be charged to the Property
Management Leased Building (General) Budget;

AND FURTHER THAT the 2015 and 2016 Financial Plan be amended accordingly.

Carried

5.2. Sublease of 346 Lawrence Avenue, Southern Interior Development Initiative
Trust

Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the Sublease for 346 Lawrence Avenue
and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor DeHart/Seconded By Councillor Gray

R922/14/12/15 THAT Council approves the City entering into a one (1) year Sublease
Agreement, with Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust, for office use, with
the option to renew for an additional one (1) year term, in the form attached to the
Report of the Property Manager, dated December 15, 2014;

AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Sublease Agreement.

Carried
5.3. Partnership for the Provision of Public Art
Staff:
Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the public art project and funding
partnership with Davara Holdings Ltd. and responded to questions from Council.

Council:
Raised questions regarding local artist preferences.

Staff:
Confirmed there are legal constraints on the City’s ability to favour local artists.

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Sieben

R923/14/12/15 THAT Council approves the City of Kelowna entering into a Public Art
Financial Contribution Agreement with Davara Holdings Ltd. for a public art
installation at 550 Rowcliffe Avenue/555 Buckland Avenue in the form attached to the
Report of the Planner Specialist, Urban Design dated December 10, 2014;

AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute all documents necessary
to complete the Agreement.

Carried

13



10

5.4. 2014 Election Results Report

Staff:
Summarized the 2014 Election Results and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor DeHart/Seconded By Councillor Sieben

R924/14/12/15 THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the Deputy
City Clerk dated December 10, 2014 with respect to the 2014 Election Results.

Carried
6. Mayor and Councillor Items

Councillors:
Gave season greetings to the public, staff and their fellow Council members.

Councillor Gray:
Spoke to the success of the recent fundraiser for Kate Roswell.

Councillor Singh:
Congratulated Councillor Stack on the completion of the Pleasantvale Homes Project.

Councillor DeHart:
Spoke to the success of the recent fundraiser for Kate Roswell.

Councillor Stack:
Spoke to his attendance, along with the Mayor, at the Opera Kelowna Event held on
Saturday, December 13™".

Mayor Basran;
Reminded Council on the Hanukkah Celebrations happening Saturday, December 20"

7. Termination

This meeting was declared terminated at 3:26 p.m.

Vsir el O

Mayor / City/Clerk

/acm

14



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 12/8/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1210-21
To: City Manager

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS)

Jane Reschke
Anthony Reschke
Application: A14-0011 Owners: Deanna Sills
Gregory Reschke
Jennifer Reschke

Address: 499 Valley Road North Applicant: Arda Consultants Ltd.
Subject: Non-Farm use application in the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR)
Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area

Existing Zone: A1 - Agriculture 1

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0011 for Lot 3 Block 16 Section 3 TWP
23 ODYD Plan 1068, located at 499 Valley Road for a ‘Non-Farm use’ to allow 0.101 ha (0.25
acres) of the property to be leased to a tree service company, pursuant to Section 20 (3) of the
Agricultural Land Commission Act, NOT be supported by Municipal Council;

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.

2.0 Purpose

To consider a staff recommendation NOT to support an application to the Agricultural Land
Commission (ALC) under Section 20(3) of the ALC Act for a “Non-Farm use” within the
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) to allow 0.101 ha (0.25 acres) of the property to be leased to a
tree service company.

3.0 Land Use Management

Staff does not support the application for a “Non-Farm use” within the ALR to allow 0.101 ha
(0.25 acres) of the property to be leased to a Cody Tree Service. The use is industrial, with no
benefit to agriculture demonstrated.

Staff notes that the use of the land for a tree service company is not a farm use or a permitted
use under the ALC Regulation.

In addition, the use does not conform with the designated Future Land Use of Resource
Protection Area, or the A1 - Agriculture zone. In the event that the ALC allowed the continuation

15



A14-0011 - Page 2

of this existing Non-Farm use, the City would still be faced with legalizing the use on either a
temporary (i.e. Temporary Use Permit) or permanent (e.g. rezone to an industrial zone) to allow
this use to continue. If an application for a rezoning was submitted, an amendment to the
Official Community Plan would also be required, as industrial uses are not supported in the
Resource Protection Area.

Staff notes that, regardless of an ALC Application, the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw does not
allow landscaping or tree service companies as a permitted use on A1 - Agriculture Zones. These
are considered ‘CONTRACTOR SERVICES, GENERAL’ in the Zoning Bylaw, and are a permitted use
in the following industrial zones:

e |2 - General Industrial
e |4 - Central Industrial
e 16 - Low Impact Transitional Industrial

No business license has been issued for the subject property where Cody Tree Service currently
has its operations. The current business license issued to Cody Tree Service is for a home based
business at 535 Milton Road. Based on the parking area and storage building, the number of
employees, the outdoor storage of equipment, and traffic including large trucks, the business
does not conform to home based business regulations.

Staff also notes that the use of agricultural land for contractor services is currently a significant
bylaw enforcement issue on agricultural land, requiring a significant amount of time and
resources from staff.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The owners of the subject property have requested a Non-Farm Use of land in the Glenmore area
of the City to continue to operate Cody Tree Service which is consistent with an industrial use. A
business license was first issued to Cody Tree Service in 2006 to operate a small contracting
business as a “Home Based Business” from a Milton Road location.

The farm is primarily planted in cherry trees. The owners work on the farm and live in the two
residences on the property. (See attached Site Plan). Approximately 0.101 ha (0.25 acres) of
their 3.49 ha (8.6 acre) property is currently leased to Cody Tree Service.

4.2 Project Description

The applicants are seeking permission from the ALC to lease 0.101 ha (0.25 acres) of their
property to Cody Tree Service. Of this area, they share the storage portion with the owners. The
owners used the storage area to work on farm equipment, and have access to the storage shed.
The owners estimate that the tree service company uses approximately 0.16 acres (0.065 ha) of
the property. Of this, approximately 0.06 acres is used for vehicle storage. The owners also
indicate that leasing of the land helps with income and farm surveillance.

The owners note that the storage yard does not have:

Direct sales from the site;

Full or part-time employees on site;
Visits from the public;

Wood or wood products; or

Fuel or hazardous waste.

16



A14-0011 - Page 3

4.3 Site Context

The subject property is located in the Glenmore - Clifton - Dilworth Sector of the City and is
within the Agricultural Land Reserve. The Future Land Use of the property is Resource Protection
Area (REP). It is zoned A1 - Agriculture 1 (Maps 1 - 3, below) and is outside of the Permanent
Growth Boundary. The applicants have owned the property since 1973.

Parcel Summary:

Parcel Size:  3.49 ha (8.6 acres)
Elevation: 435 to 450 metres above sea level (masl)

Map 1 - Neighbourhood
e

Recreation [%

S ' <
@ Fleld - 4 -
. : & b, ) Subiject

Recreation V/ /| Property S
Field @ o .
T fow o 13 7

“: = 7, : <, 4 ;
¥ Arealeased to Tree _ (&
S . Y i ?‘K Q:
g8 Service Company §e Y
chards

2.

: 5 e B H S R
' dp . . : .\ -

e PN

B 2| Cherry Orchard [
: .
\') %@

17



Map 2 - Subject Property

Area leased to
Cody’s Tree

Service
5003

City of Kelowna - Accuracy and correctness not guaranteed.

A14-0011 - Page 4

Secondary
Dwelling

Primary
Dwelling

18



A14-0011 - Page 5

o Cody Tree Service
7 /, :

Map 4 - Area Currently Leased t
T g

R

| Area leased to Cody v, ¢
Tree Service 4

Area secured with
fencing

Zoning and land uses adjacent to the property are as follows:

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use
North A1 - Agriculture 1 Yes Agriculture
South A1 - Agriculture 1 Yes Orchard
East A1 - Agriculture 1 Yes Rural Residential
West A1 - Agriculture 1 / P4 Yes Recrezla:gir(;r;‘a/uPark /

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Objective 5.33 Protect and enhance local agriculture’.

Policy. 1 Protect Agricultural Land. Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and
by protecting agricultural lands from development, except as otherwise noted in the City of
Kelowna Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is agriculture,
regardless of parcel size.

Policy .7 Non-Farm Uses. Support Non-Farm use applications on agricultural lands only where
approved by the ALC and where the proposed uses:

e are consistent with the Zoning Bylaw and OCP;

e provide significant benefits to local agriculture;

e can be accommodated using existing municipal infrastructure;

' City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.33.

19



A14-0011 - Page 6

¢ minimize impacts on productive agricultural lands;
¢ will not preclude future use of the lands for agriculture;
¢ will not harm adjacent farm operations.

Objective 5.34 Preserve productive agricultural land?.

5.2 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan

ALR Application Criteria®

Exclusion, subdivision, or Non-Farm use of ALR lands will generally not be supported. General
non-support for ALR applications is in the interest of protecting farmland through retention of
larger parcels, protection of the land base from impacts of urban encroachment, reducing land
speculation and the cost of entering the farm business, and encouraging increased farm
capitalization.

5.3 City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000

Section 11 - Agriculture Zones. The property is within the A1- Agriculture 1 zone. This zone allows
for farming and a single family residence, and additional residences when required for farm help.
The zone also allows greenhouses and nurseries as a secondary use. Greenhouses and nurseries
specifically excludes landscaping companies in the definition under Section 2, below.

Section 2 - Interpretation. Section 2 of the Zoning Bylaw provides definitions, including:

GREENHOUSES AND PLANT NURSERIES means development used primarily for the cultivation, storage
and sale of produce, bedding, household and ornamental plants, trees, bushes, sod and related materials
and may include the accessory sale of landscaping and gardening products and materials such as tools,
soil, and fertilizers, provided that this accessory use is limited to 400 m2 on the lot. This use does not
include landscaping, excavating or soil processing businesses or operations.

CONTRACTOR SERVICES, GENERAL means premises used for the provision of building and road
construction services including landscaping, concrete, electrical, excavation, drilling, heating and
plumbing or similar services of a construction nature which require on-site storage and warehouse space.
Any sales, display, office or technical support service areas shall be accessory to the principal general
contractor services use only.

6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Bylaw Services

There have been a few Bylaw Enforcement files relating to Non-Farm uses occurring on this
property, which may have triggered this application. Staff had done research a few years ago
which prompted some of the Bylaw activity. The use of a storage compound for a commercial
contractor is another component of our interaction with the applicant.

6.2 Development Engineering Department

The Development Engineering comments regarding this Non-Farm use within the Agricultural Land
Reserve are as follows:

2 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.34.
3 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 130.

20



A14-0011 - Page 7

General and Access

a) The existing storage yard shall have adequate space to manoeuvre the intended vehicles
onto and off the site without requiring a reverse movement onto public roadways ( Valley
Road North.

b) No servicing upgrades are anticipated with this application.

6.3 Policy & Planning

This Non-Farm use proposal seeks industrial uses on agricultural land. Staff note that there is no
agricultural benefit from this proposal and that this application is inconsistent with the '‘Non-Farm
Uses' policy in the OCP.

6.4  Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District

The property has two domestic connections and a separate irrigation connection supplying water
to the property. GEID has no concerns with this application.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: October 28, 2014

Agricultural Advisory Committee No Quorum - No AAC Meeting available

Report prepared by:

Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner

Reviewed by: Todd Cashin, Manager, Subdivision, Agriculture &
Environment Services

Approved by: Shelley Gambacort, Director, Subdivision, Agriculture &
Environment Department

Attachments:

Subject Property Map

ALR Map

Site Plan - Drawing No. 1007.P1 (Arda Consultants Ltd.)
Letter of Rationale (Arda Consultants Ltd.)

21



Map Output Page 1 of 1

Application

A14-0011

I Subject Property

B EPP28406 |

PLAN 31642

S pLaN 31642

| PLAN 21431 |
S | BLK.20 \\
e ———— . | \
- : | I
= | 11 I| |
— | | I 1 | 2
5 T | BLK. 17 236 \Meters |
City of Kelowna - Accuracy and correctness not guaranteed. ! |
Map: 1,178 x 652 m -- Scale 1:6,957 2014-11-26)

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

22

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=0Overview Map&Clie... 11/26/2014



Map Output Page 1 of 1

Application

A14-0011

ALR
ALR MAP

I Subject Property

B

EPP28406

PLAN 31642

PLAN

23| /
P

“ / A |
LAN 25285 ) PLAN 37659 |

1 / I|I|

|

PLAN 68617 s [

PLAN 11656

3|45
,// § ,/tﬂw 1|15t6‘ : 24 \'\
L ——— ALLEYRON_—_—— (% F : -
229 [
O th ot 1856\ 1 PLAN |57287
Vi B \\ I!
AW (Fr—

N :Sé ; \ |
U ARV L ‘\ [
S W5, N £ EL&

. B
>’4%
/A N

Al
o

21431

L PLAN 1068 | PLAN
—

' BLK. | 236 Meter
City of Kelowna - Accuracy aMss{lnot guaranteed. K 17 ] :l o |
Map: 1,178 x 652 m -- Scale 1:6,957 2014-11-26

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

23

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject Properties A... 11/26/2014



4 )
| (=)
S
32 'l o) LOT 1
LOT 20 T o \\— PLAN 25285
PLAN 896 \_ W, | &« FIREHALL
SPORTSFIELD—\ %8 l| - _\\ -
/
/ < i\ g /,///
VALLEY ROAD NORTH j‘:\ i
»N \\ _/‘/’ -
\ - — — — — — -—- ; —_—————- —_——— - HeeNT T /’///////
I N T \y am i \\ EXISTING CHERRY
\ N = 3\*"’ - ORCHARD _\
\ N WA PARKING FOR TREE COMMON
~—— EXISTING HOUSE N §1 dgwe SERVICE VEHICLES \ STORAGE
\\ % ENCROACHMENT 0.21m \\ \ \ * N AREA = 250m?2 \ g%",yA%'é - PARKING FOR TREE |
\ g \ \\ / WA\ VX [(0.06 Ac.) AREA SERVICE VEHICLES
o7 A W\ FE S o 5
| PLAN 11938 5 012 | Lo Ve ae, A\ 2 % o
\ \ \‘\ \ \
| Y \ \\\ !
PLAN \ _/} EVARR EX. SHED
\\ 23895 PLAN| 21431 \ \\ COMMON ACCESS \ \:\ \\ NN \ 3.6x3.6m \
\ & STORAGE YARD \ g FENGES (12'x12") \
\ \\ \ AREA = 760m? | 2#306.0m \— \ \
‘ v\ (019 Ac.) / EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD \ \ \
\ Ao TOTAL STORAGE YARD _\\ \
\ g \\ \ AREA = 1010m? \ \ \
\ y (0.25 Ac.) EX. COVERED \
\ \ CONCRETE PA \
' \ \\ ";‘ﬁ 3.6x3.6m \
\ PLAN \ A LOT A 5 02y \
\ \ -
\ 23895 \\ \ \—EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD PLAN 31659 "3%\ \ \\
\ \ \\ _\\ zg;\ CommMoN | \
\ RN \ WORK/STORAGE  \
1 10 \— v AREA \ \
, oA \
\U.l EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD—\ NN \ \
' oy \\ \\ \ \
\ \ A \ \ \
\bq \\ \\ \ \A
\ A \ _ T
\|m LOT 3 LOT 3 VA \ LT
v G FENG
2 | & PLAN 21431 BLOCK 16 N ppsTHEE
\ \ \EXISTING CHERRY \/ = 2 TOTAL STORAGE YARD
- . \\ (0.25 Ac.)
23895 \ V\ -
=] NN
\ \ . s
; \, o W ERRTRSN, STORAGE YARD DETAIL
i} N\
\
! 75mme PERFORATED PVC “ / \ \
\ REM. AMENDED LOT F DISTRIBUTION PIPE 4 RUNS // N
O PLAN 1636 | -, Voo
4 | & o DRI 00 ’ / -
\ PLAN 21431 Rt 7
\b gt \ e EXISTING HOUSE
. ' GARAGE (PRIMARY RESIDENCE)
LOT 8 \
EXISTING HOUSE
PLAN 21431 \ 11 (SECONDARY RESIDENCE)
PLAN 23895
\ s
\ 3
LOT B
\‘ LOT 1 PLAN 1636
5 \ PLAN KAP 57287 \
\ LOT 5 EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD—\
PLAN
PLAN 21431
\\ GRAPHIC SCALE
23895 \ 10 o ] 10 (m u:m) 30 40 50
\
e —je—
6 \
\ 1 :500
' LOT 2
7 \ PLAN KAP 57287
PLAN '
23895 \ SITE _LOCATION
\ N.T.S.
|
\\
\ LEGAL DESCRIPTION
‘ LOT 3, BLOCK 16, PLAN 1068, 0O.D.Y.D.
LOT 7 NS 7 P..D. 011-844—-493
PLAN 21431 | PLAN 21431 <
\ CIVIC ADDRESS
\ 499 VALLEY ROAD NORTH, KELOWNA, BC
\
4 DRAWING NO.
Al‘da COHSUltaHtS Ltd TEL: 250.807.7903 1007 P1
#7—3304 APPALOOSA ROAD, KELOWNA, BC, V1V 2W5 EMAIL: info@ardaconsultants.com .
(LEGEND 1 CAP OSAN SANITARY MH (EXISTING) DAVID R. PAULS, P. ENG. | DRAWN G.E.R. \ -I- I—I E C I -I- Y O F K E L O WN A CITY FILE No.
CABLE TV___  ___ CATCH BASIN .SAN SANITARY MH (PROPOSED) DESIGN GER. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT -
GAS_____ . — N/ APPROVED
STM DIVISION REV. NO|
Z%Rﬁ%ﬁg,;_ _____ — :} ELECTRICAL BOX OSTM STORM MH (EXISTING) — — 499 VALLEY ROAD NORTH 0
STORM SEWER _ _________ — HYDRANT Ps STORM MH (PROPOSED) ¢
UG ELECTRICAL _______ < SCALE RESCHKE RESIDENCES & FARM
U.G._ TELEPHONE VALVE X TRANSFORMER : PLOT DATE:
oSS Se—- MM /DD/YY MM /DD /YY 1:750 ’
e —— X("“LAMP STANDARD UTILITY JUNCTION BOX N | DATE | BY REVISION No| DATE |BY REVISION A SITE PLAN y

24



Arda Consultants Ltd.
#7-3304 Appaloosa Road
Kelowna, BC, V1V 2W5
Tel: 250.807.7903
gr@ardaconsultants.com

Oct. 16, 2014

A R D A OUR FILE: 1007

CONSULTANTS LTD

City of Kelowna
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4

Attention: Melanie Steppuhn, Agriculture and Environmental Services Dept.

Re: Proposed ALC Application for Non-Farm Use
Lot 3, Block 16, Plan 1068, Sec. 3, TP 23 ODYD - P.1.D. 011-844-493

Allow me to provide some background & comments:
Re: Residences

The subject property is located at 499 Valley Road North, across from the Fire Hall &
sportsfield. The property is 8.6 Acres in size.

Aerial Photo of Subject Property

25



There are two homes on the property. Both residences on the farm are owner occupied.
We have owned the property since 1973. My mother lives in the older house (primary
residence) and | live in the secondary residence. As | am the caretaker for the property,
some of my duties include:

Irrigation & plantings

Gate & fence maintenance
Lawn & garden care

Weed removal

Burning permit applications
Insurance

Management

General upkeep etc.

YVVVVVYVYVY

Re: Primary Land Use & Farm Operation

In addition to the fruit, nut and ornamental trees on the property, approximately 2000
cherry trees, of various varieties, were planted in 2012. The property has ‘farm status’
and we intend to maintain the farm operation for the foreseeable future.

Re: Cody Tree Service & Storage Yard

In an effort to minimize our farm expenses and in order to maintain the status of our
farm, we have a simple arrangement with the arborists of Cody Tree Service. They
provide invaluable oversight, care and maintenance on the property in exchange
for aminiscule area to park some of their vehicles and store equipment related to
their tree contracting service.

We have taken the following steps to minimize the visual impact & provide the following
comments:

» The yard is kept clean

» One commercial vehicle was removed from the site earlier this year.

» Storage containers, chippers and farm implements remain on-site but the visual
impact of our operations is kept to a minimum.

» Unused vehicles will be removed from the site

Just to clarify, the storage yard:

» Does NOT have off-sales of any kind
» Does NOT have any full-time or part-time employees on-site

» Does NOT allow visits from the public

» Does NOT cut wood or store wood products

» Does NOT store fuel or hazardous chemicals

The total storage yard is approximately 0.25 acres in size and is located in northwest
corner of the property. This represents only 2.9% of the land. As owners of the property
also use the storage yard, it would be fair to say that the tree service company only uses
0.16 acres of the existing 0.25 acre yard.

26



Picture 1: From Primary Residence looking west towards storage yard

Picture 2: From Fire Hall looking east towards storage yard

Only 0.06 acres is dedicated for commercial vehicle storage and the remaining 0.19
acres considered to be area for common storage (to property owners & Cody Tree
Service). This common area also provides room to work on farm equipment, and allows
access to the storage shed.

27



Picture 3: Common Storage Area with shed (in foreground)

Picture 4: Common Storage Area with shed (in background)

28



Picture 5: Commercial vehicle Storage Area along north property boundary

The City of Kelowna (Bylaw Services) has expressed concerns over use of the storage
yard...in particular, the parking of commercial vehicles from Cody Tree Service Ltd.

With that in mind, we would like to apply to the ALC for a non-farm use permit to allow
the tree contracting service to be able to park vehicles and store equipment within the
owners existing storage yard. The total storage yard area encompasses only 0.25
acres of the 8.6 acre property, and the vehicle storage area is only 0.06 acres.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to
contact us.

Yours truly,

Greg Reschke
Civil Engineering Technologist

Cc:  Cody Tree Service
Box 20100 RPO Town Centre
Kelowna, B.C. V1Y 9H2

Jane Reschke
1-499 Valley Road North
Kelowna, BC V1V 2G1

29



4 )
| (=)
S
32 'l o) LOT 1
LOT 20 T o \\— PLAN 25285
PLAN 896 \_ W, | &« FIREHALL
SPORTSFIELD—\ %8 l| - _\\ -
/
/ < i\ g /,///
VALLEY ROAD NORTH j‘:\ i
»N \\ _/‘/’ -
\ - — — — — — -—- ; —_—————- —_——— - HeeNT T /’///////
I N T \y am i \\ EXISTING CHERRY
\ N = 3\*"’ - ORCHARD _\
\ N WA PARKING FOR TREE COMMON
~—— EXISTING HOUSE N §1 dgwe SERVICE VEHICLES \ STORAGE
\\ % ENCROACHMENT 0.21m \\ \ \ * N AREA = 250m?2 \ g%",yA%'é - PARKING FOR TREE |
\ g \ \\ / WA\ VX [(0.06 Ac.) AREA SERVICE VEHICLES
o7 A W\ FE S o 5
| PLAN 11938 5 012 | Lo Ve ae, A\ 2 % o
\ \ \‘\ \ \
| Y \ \\\ !
PLAN \ _/} EVARR EX. SHED
\\ 23895 PLAN| 21431 \ \\ COMMON ACCESS \ \:\ \\ NN \ 3.6x3.6m \
\ & STORAGE YARD \ g FENGES (12'x12") \
\ \\ \ AREA = 760m? | 2#306.0m \— \ \
‘ v\ (019 Ac.) / EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD \ \ \
\ Ao TOTAL STORAGE YARD _\\ \
\ g \\ \ AREA = 1010m? \ \ \
\ y (0.25 Ac.) EX. COVERED \
\ \ CONCRETE PA \
' \ \\ ";‘ﬁ 3.6x3.6m \
\ PLAN \ A LOT A 5 02y \
\ \ -
\ 23895 \\ \ \—EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD PLAN 31659 "3%\ \ \\
\ \ \\ _\\ zg;\ CommMoN | \
\ RN \ WORK/STORAGE  \
1 10 \— v AREA \ \
, oA \
\U.l EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD—\ NN \ \
' oy \\ \\ \ \
\ \ A \ \ \
\bq \\ \\ \ \A
\ A \ _ T
\|m LOT 3 LOT 3 VA \ LT
v G FENG
2 | & PLAN 21431 BLOCK 16 N ppsTHEE
\ \ \EXISTING CHERRY \/ = 2 TOTAL STORAGE YARD
- . \\ (0.25 Ac.)
23895 \ V\ -
=] NN
\ \ . s
; \, o W ERRTRSN, STORAGE YARD DETAIL
i} N\
\
! 75mme PERFORATED PVC “ / \ \
\ REM. AMENDED LOT F DISTRIBUTION PIPE 4 RUNS // N
O PLAN 1636 | -, Voo
4 | & o DRI 00 ’ / -
\ PLAN 21431 Rt 7
\b gt \ e EXISTING HOUSE
. ' GARAGE (PRIMARY RESIDENCE)
LOT 8 \
EXISTING HOUSE
PLAN 21431 \ 11 (SECONDARY RESIDENCE)
PLAN 23895
\ s
\ 3
LOT B
\‘ LOT 1 PLAN 1636
5 \ PLAN KAP 57287 \
\ LOT 5 EXISTING CHERRY ORCHARD—\
PLAN
PLAN 21431
\\ GRAPHIC SCALE
23895 \ 10 o ] 10 (m u:m) 30 40 50
\
e —je—
6 \
\ 1 :500
' LOT 2
7 \ PLAN KAP 57287
PLAN '
23895 \ SITE _LOCATION
\ N.T.S.
|
\\
\ LEGAL DESCRIPTION
‘ LOT 3, BLOCK 16, PLAN 1068, 0O.D.Y.D.
LOT 7 NS 7 P..D. 011-844—-493
PLAN 21431 | PLAN 21431 <
\ CIVIC ADDRESS
\ 499 VALLEY ROAD NORTH, KELOWNA, BC
\
4 DRAWING NO.
Al‘da COHSUltaHtS Ltd TEL: 250.807.7903 1007 P1
#7—3304 APPALOOSA ROAD, KELOWNA, BC, V1V 2W5 EMAIL: info@ardaconsultants.com .
(LEGEND 1 CAP OSAN SANITARY MH (EXISTING) DAVID R. PAULS, P. ENG. | DRAWN G.E.R. \ -I- I—I E C I -I- Y O F K E L O WN A CITY FILE No.
CABLE TV___  ___ CATCH BASIN .SAN SANITARY MH (PROPOSED) DESIGN GER. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT -
GAS_____ . — N/ APPROVED
STM DIVISION REV. NO|
Z%Rﬁ%ﬁg,;_ _____ — :} ELECTRICAL BOX OSTM STORM MH (EXISTING) — — 499 VALLEY ROAD NORTH 0
STORM SEWER _ _________ — HYDRANT Ps STORM MH (PROPOSED) ¢
UG ELECTRICAL _______ < SCALE RESCHKE RESIDENCES & FARM
U.G._ TELEPHONE VALVE X TRANSFORMER : PLOT DATE:
oSS Se—- MM /DD/YY MM /DD /YY 1:750 ’
e —— X("“LAMP STANDARD UTILITY JUNCTION BOX N | DATE | BY REVISION No| DATE |BY REVISION A SITE PLAN y

30



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 12/8/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1210-21

To: City Manager

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS)

Application:  A14-0010 Owner: ~ K€.oyna bet Resort Ltd. Inc.
Address: 1301 Glenmore Road North Applicant: Chad Clark

Subject: Non-farm use application - Mobile Home as ‘Carriage House’

Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area

Existing Zone: A1 - Agriculture 1

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0010 for Lot 3 Block 10 Sections 9
and 16 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 1068, located at 1301 Glenmore Road for a ‘Non-farm use’, to allow a
mobile home as a ‘Carriage House’, pursuant to Section 20 (3) of the Agricultural Land
Commission Act, NOT be supported by Municipal Council;

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.

2.0 Purpose
The applicant is seeking permission from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to allow an
existing mobile home to be used by a caretaker for the kennel business on the property.

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services

Staff does not support the application for a non-farm use of a mobile home as a second dwelling
to be used by a caretaker for the kennel business on the property.

Section 18 of the Agricultural Land Reserve Act’ prohibits local government from approving more
than one residence on an ALR parcel unless it is necessary for farm use. The ALC Regulation
permits, unless prohibited by local government bylaw, one manufactured home for a member of
the owner’s immediate family only.

! SBC, 2002. Agricultural Land Commission Act. Chapter 36 http://www.bclaws.ca/Recon/document/ID/freeside/00_02036 01



http://www.bclaws.ca/Recon/document/ID/freeside/00_02036_01

A14-0010 - Page 2

In this case, the property is owned by Kelowna Pet Resort Ltd. The owners of the company do not
live on the property, and the immediate family of the owners live in the primary residence.

Kennels are a permitted secondary use in the A1-Agriculture zone under the City of Kelowna
Zoning Bylaw, as well as the ALC Regulation.

Ministry of Agriculture guidelines with respect to second dwellings for farm help do not include
employees of secondary businesses such as kennels. Further, the guidelines indicate that, for
farm help employees, the property does not qualify for a farm help dwelling if alternative
accommodation is available within 20 kilometers.

Daily traffic to and from the farm is expected to increase due to the expansion of the kennel. As
part of application DP14-0202, the Development Engineering Branch requires that one of the two
existing accesses be closed. The Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 allows
only one access per parcel unless it is required for farm use. In this case, the hayfield is leased to
a neighbour and can be managed with one access. (See Section 6.2, below). Glenmore is an
arterial road. Staff have been consistent with this stretch of Glenmore, given traffic complaints
in the past. In addition, traffic is expected to increase once the connection to the University via
John Hindle Drive is built (estimated completion 2016).

There is potential this kennel business will become the primary use of the A1-Agriculture parcel,
instead of the secondary use as specified by the Zoning Bylaw.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The property has a dog and cat kennel business on the property. Kelowna Pet Resort Ltd. has
recently purchased the property and plans to expand the dog kennel with capacity for 50 more
dogs, including facilities for an indoor and outdoor dog run, and dog grooming. The project also
includes a dog blanket business that is in accordance with a rural home based business under the
Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation B.C. Reg. 171/2002 (the
"ALR Regulation") and Section 11 of the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.

Approximately 1.9 ha (4.7 acres) of the property is farmed for hay. The property has 2 existing
barns, and an agricultural accessory building that will house the dog blanket business. There is
one single family dwelling and a mobile home on the property.

The mobile home was placed in the property in 1981 with an affidavit that it would be used
solely for members of full time agricultural workers and their family, or seasonal farm workers,
and also that it would not be rented or leased out.

4.2 Project Description

The applicant wishes to be able to rent an existing mobile home to a caretaker that will work at
the kennel and be able to help in providing 24 hour care to the dog and cat kennels. (Refer to
statement of purpose, attached). The plans for the new dog kennel and grooming business, are
also attached.

32



A14-0010 - Page 3

4.3 Site Context

The subject property is located in the McKinley Sector of the City and is within the Agricultural
Land Reserve. The future land use of the property is Resource Protection Area (REP). It is zoned
A1 - Agriculture 1. It is outside of the Permanent Growth Boundary. (Maps 1 - 4, below). It is
within the Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District water supply area.

Parcel Summary:

Parcel Size:  3.45 ha (8.54 ac)
Elevation: 440 to 458 metres above sea level (masl)

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use
North RR1 - Rural Residential 1 Yes Rural Residential
South A1 - Agriculture 1 Yes Agriculture
East A1 - Agriculture 1 No Agriculture
West A1 - Agriculture 1 Yes Agriculture

Map 1 - Subject Property
N

Existing Cat and

Existing Farm Dog Kennel

Buildings

Mobile

Primary
Dwelling

33



Map 2 - Neighbourhood Context

A14-0010 - Page 4

......

A1

Permanent Growth
Boundary

34



A14-0010 - Page 5

Map 4 - Future
v &y

Land Us

Single / Two Unit
Residential

Future Urban
Reserve

......

Resource
Protection Area

5.0 Current Development Policies

The subject property has a future land use designation of Resource Protection Area and relevant
policies are included below:

2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future

Objective 5.33 Protect and enhance local agriculture?.

Policy. 1 Protect Agricultural Land. Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and
by protecting agricultural lands from development, except as otherwise noted in the City of
Kelowna Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is agriculture,
regardless of parcel size.

Policy .3 Urban Uses. Direct urban uses to lands within the urban portion of the Permanent
Growth Boundary, in the interest of reducing development and speculative pressure on
agricultural lands.

Policy .7 Non-farm Uses. Support non-farm use applications on agricultural lands only where
approved by the ALC and where the proposed uses:
e are consistent with the Zoning Bylaw and OCP;
provide significant benefits to local agriculture;
can be accommodated using existing municipal infrastructure;
minimize impacts on productive agricultural lands;
will not preclude future use of the lands for agriculture;
will not harm adjacent farm operations.

Objective 5.34 Preserve productive agricultural land®.

2 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.33.

35



A14-0010 - Page 6

5.1 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan
ALR Application Criteria*

Exclusion, subdivision, or non-farm use of ALR lands will generally not be supported. General
non-support for ALR applications is in the interest of protecting farmland through retention of
larger parcels, protection of the land base from impacts of urban encroachment, reducing land
speculation and the cost of entering the farm business, and encouraging increased farm
capitalization.

Defined Urban - Rural/Agricultural Boundary. Confirm support for the Agricultural Land Reserve
and establish a defined urban - rural/agricultural boundary, as indicated on Map 14 - Urban -
Rural/Agricultural Boundary, utilizing existing roads, topographic features, or watercourses
wherever possible;

Farmland Preservation. Direct urban uses to land within the urban portion of the defined urban -
rural / agricultural boundary, in the interest of reducing development and speculative pressure,
toward the preservation of agricultural lands and discourage further extension of existing urban
areas into agricultural lands;

5.2 Agricultural Land Commission

The Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) has no limit on the number of residences permitted on a
parcel, but all residences must be required for farm use. The policies which outline residential
use are outlined below.

Policy #9 - Additional Residences for Farm Use’

Agricultural Land Commission Act, 2002, Section 18

18 Unless permitted by this Act, the regulations or the terms imposed in an order of the commission,

(a) a local government, or an authority, a board or another agency established by it or a person
or an agency that enters into an agreement under the Local Services Act may not

(ii) approve more than one residence on a parcel of land unless the additional residences
are necessary for farm use

Policy # 8 - Permitted Uses in the ALR: Residential Use®

Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (BC Reg. 171/2002), the "Regulation”,
Section 3 (1) (b)

Section 3 (1) "the following land uses are permitted in an agricultural land reserve unless otherwise
prohibited by a local government bylaw:

(b) for each parcel,
(i) one secondary suite within a single family dwelling, and

(ii) one manufactured home, up to 9 m in width, for use by a member of the
owner’s immediate family;

3 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.34.
4 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 130.

° BC Reg., 2002. Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (BC Reg. 171/2002); Policy #9
é BC Reg., 2002. Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (BC Reg. 171/2002); Policy #8

36



A14-0010 - Page 7

Section 1 (1) "immediate family" means, with respect to an owner, the owner’s
(a) parents, grandparents and great grandparents,
(b) spouse, parents of spouse and stepparents of spouse,
(c) brothers and sisters, and
(d) children or stepchildren, grandchildren and great grandchildren;

6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Building & Permitting Department

Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building
Permits.

Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.

6.2 Development Engineering Department

Comments provided for DP14-0202 (Kennel Building) per below:

Domestic water and fire protection

The property is located within the Glenmore Ellison Improvement District service area.
Ensure an adequately sized domestic water and fire protection system is in place. The

developer is required to make satisfactory arrangements with the GEID for these items.
All charges for service connection and upgrading costs are to be paid directly to the GEID.

Sanitary Sewer

a) This subject parcel is within the City service area. The developer’s consulting mechanical
engineer will determine the development requirements of this proposed development and
establish the service needs.

b) The developer at his cost, will arrange for the installation of the service. Performance
security and a Servicing Agreement is required for work within the road right-of-way

c) On-site servicing will be reviewed by Building & Permitting.

Road Access

a) With regards to driveway access onto Glenmore Road North, the property will be limited
to one access. Ensure that sightlines are not obstructed for a minimum of 110 meters in
both directions.

6.3 Irrigation District

The property is currently supplied with domestic and irrigation water for the two existing
residences and the acreage. In addition, the kennel operations on the property are
interconnected to the water supply for one of the residences.

37



A14-0010 - Page 8

GEID has provided comments (see DP14-0202) regarding the new kennel building.

GEID has no comments regarding this ALR application.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: October 16, 2014

Agricultural Advisory Committee No Quorum - No AAC Meeting available

Report prepared by:

Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner

Reviewed by: I:l Todd Cashin, Manager, Environment & Land Use

Approved for Inclusion I:l Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning &
Real Estate

Attachments:

Photos

Subject Property Map

ALR Map

Letter of Rationale

Site Plan - Kennel

Conceptual Elevations - Kennel

38



A14-0010 - Page 9

PHOTOS

Photo 1: Mobile Home (background) and Cat Kennel (foreground)

Photo 2: Mobile Home

39



Photo 3: Mobile Home looking South

A14-0010 - Page 10

40



Map Output Page 1 of 1

APPLICATION A14-0010
1301 GLENMORE RD N

ALC NON-FARM USE

D Subject Property

PLAN 2o87p

% ¥
Bl % pay ag .
—— = 73 Meblws
|Cityaf Kelewna - Acouracy and cormgcinfis not guaraniped.——— & —_ -

IMap: 1,366 x 756 m -- Scale 1:8,066 . 2014-10-16

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clie... 10/16/2014

41




Map Output

Page 1 of 1

ALR

APPLICATION A14-0010
1301 GLENMORE RD N

ALC NON-FARM USE

I Subject Property

S

i PLAN 1068/

b

N J '
i

Z

PLAN 30819
A ,.’
,-/
30819 /
i .": /
32 ."'I = 1 I." _':"
e R
/ %"J;FLAN 22081 | - L] |
i e T |
[ 4 PLAN 18784 | L
: | 5 |
14 3 | I| |
g { 2 PLAN B89g |
m i — 0 > l 273 Meters
Citieo na - Accuracy and corractnfw notguaranteed. ——— & | ——— |
Map: 1,366 x 756 m -- Scale 1:8,066 2014-10-16]

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject Properties A... 10/16/2014

42



,y% /\/w\ 6/,,',\ 51,/' (,b\’hu'\ ﬁ/ %—{ 7 (, /(_ (”*Q_/ 1[0"‘ e,%{\((/f ’n
@/‘m\" e Iom& for Ff/ *‘\M/, uw: Chprri e [/\oiﬂie !

PROPOSAL  (Please describe and show on plan or skeﬁ)@ ‘Fr)jl d\m(g / ‘F V\u+ f’dJ/L(e, /(:‘Alt’ &d;éjﬁr
77\{»44 (S Gin Ck/lhw\ ﬂ’*aé /\oéwd Ok Me //'m/w A, ;7;
ée{,@l/& 'l/ /ﬂf 4(’(’,’//\ %’/ e "4/ > 3¢ L/c’m,)“a _L f[m /C~
H(A/a m’t/// Cm'/ /(UVMQ—/ oA %v. V’/‘c/»&/%c, . ﬁe ﬂ’ta!/é /a//»-e
Wﬁ/bt d .- te m[ J’)i’/h/ﬁ ey - f/i«f’w'f??ﬂ(e //l fiﬁ P 2 Ve 27 c//‘[
7% /T‘ﬂf/mf/ 0/(2/&«/'70‘7 Lt /¥ a f@&;&?/fﬂ?ﬂ(j&\% /(T ﬁffmé}/ hine
w\ﬁ/mcﬁ‘{l‘ r/ﬁw oAV sy )K* ol OCG‘U//@A jh Mie Moé le /\ww s
ﬂéw/d:f@ J‘&”ﬂ}f"b 1 /Zd, poymals T i a4 A, 47 ha vumaf"
myri // 4’\7 we VC"’ ﬁ“‘/ b “(0,5///@/ é [1«,1 /&f*/{ //Vf/f\ roin /uw/e )7 Ay J“/l‘i/
,4»\1 TS WU{) ,4«9 6’{630 ﬂe /"\0(”[;1, L\@we, [.,«01/:/( [zﬁ @ VKM%“J/«:’FF
fu u)/[@f’ v jfry WLC e pamn L/,ﬂé"/fh‘/f o€ AT~ 574»7/17 /A Hueer mus(ﬁ/
CURRENT USE OF LAND (Show information on plan or sketch) 4/(’\1 C Ve [7/‘3 Je l'd‘] of #‘{ Gt g (S

M

List all existing uses on the alcel(s) and desc1 ibe all buildings '*]
I é@;' q l lectne ([ bugeyy Acw reith e,
b (s / 9@{{ CK/T g A fet b e A /\al,(j{ _ »"’lcé ( éla
é’ KV”’V\ I fi ﬂ

USES ON ADJACENT LOTS (Show information on plan or sketch)

North “Hoovey of Yy /»u"i A siing fo /LM)M home
East f{)fff //

South (/fv; /{ ﬁvw /y /ﬂ(/./d/ e /&/fz, ﬂél/f/ﬁ)/z/’

West ;,/f’mmw’\”_ /ww() How /L\ewf’;/ %w/m‘fj/w»f ﬁé’ﬁ’[“l/
DECLARATION

1/we consent to the use of the information provided in the application and all supporting documents to process the
application in accordance with the Agricultural Land Commission Act and regulation. Furthermore, 1/we declare that
the information provided in the application and all the supporting documents are, to the best of my/our knowledge,
true and correct, I/we understand that the Agricultural Land Commission will take the steps necessary to confirm the
accuracy of the information and documents provided.

I (Ut ok

Date Szgnatu/e of Owner or Agent Print Name
Date Signature of Owner or Agent Print Name
Date Signature of Owner or Agent . Print Name

Please ensure the following documents are enclosed with your application:

= Application fee payable to the Local Government &  Map or sketch showing proposal & adjacent uses
®  Certificate of Title or Title Search Print s Proof of Notice of Application *(See instructions)
s Agent authorization (if using agent) »  Photographs (optional)

Application by a Land Owner 2 2003 43



KELOWNA, B.C

LEGAL: LOT 3, BLOCK 10, SECTION 9 AND 16,
TOWNSHIP 23,0.D.Y.D., FLAN 1065
CIVIC: 1301 GLENMORE ROAD NORTH,

ZONED:
SECONDARY USES:
FOOTPRINT:
EXTERIOR COVERED:
TOTAL:

LOT AREA:

SITE COVERAGE:

AGRICULTURAL - A1
KENNELS AND STABLES
4535 M?

251.7 M2

705.2 M?

34,568 M2 (3.45 HA)
2.04%

UPRISE DESIGN + DRAFTING INC.

Nomw
TR«
T
[
[y
%%
]
g /
S
0p)
Ly

SITE CONT S
3/7 EXT @ SITE PLAN

12909 SHORELINE DR, WINFIELD, BC
PH: 778.460.0341

RT

()]

2
S =
N o
RANU,“
MR
O M=
P Qo
O =Z D O
~Z Z WO >
=3gE9
NWEA
NEELE:
<<
V>0 a3 ®

REVISIONS

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL PLANS AND DIMENSIONS MUST BE
REVIEWED BY CONTRACTOR BEFORE
CONSTRUCTION AND MUST VERIFY ANY
DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE DRAWING AND
EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO WORK BEING
DONE.

2. CONTRACTOR MUST COMPLY WITH ALL
CURRENT BUILDING CODES, BY-LAWS AND
REGULATIONS.

3. THESE PLANS ARE FOR A SINGLE PROJECT
AND THE COPYRIGHT BELONGS TO UPRISE
DESIGN + DRAFTING INC. THE DESIGN MUST
NOT BE COPIED AND THESE DRAWINGS MUST
NOT BE DUPLICATED BY ANY PERSONS.

B SITE

M N




AST FACING

1

SITE MASSING

WEST FACING

UPRISE DESIGN + DRAFTING INC.

12909 SHORELINE DR, WINFIELD, BC
PH: 778.460.0341

=

SEPT 08, 2014
AS NOTED

SCALE

KELOWNA PET RESORT

MALKIN CONSTRUCTION
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT DRAWING

DATE

REVISIONS

ISSUED FOR DP 09/08/2014

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL PLANS AND DIMENSIONS MUST BE
REVIEWED BY CONTRACTOR BEFORE
CONSTRUCTION AND MUST VERIFY ANY
DISCREFPANCIES BETWEEN THE DRAWING AND
EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO WORK BEING
DONE.

2. CONTRACTOR MUST COMPLY WITH ALL
CURRENT BUILDING CODES, BY-LAWS AND
REGULATIONS.

3. THESE PLANS ARE FOR A SINGLE PROJECT
AND THE COPYRIGHT BELONGS TO UPRISE
DESIGN + DRAFTING INC. THE DESIGN MUST
NOT BE COPIED AND THESE DRAWINGS MUST
NOT BE DUPLICATED BY ANY PERSONS.

CONTEXT AND
MASSING

7 1




128-5"

SIDE WALK

UPRISE DESIGN + DRAFTING INC.
12909 SHORELINE DR, WINFIELD, BC
PH: 778.480.0341

5-0"x12-0" 4-0"x 1-8"TRANSOM WINDOW
ABOVESILL @
—V‘ SPACED AT 10-0"0.C. SEE ELEVATION

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

|
|
|
|
!
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

GROOMING OFFICE

15-5"x 12-11" I 12511

LINE OF ROOF CHASE ABOVE

|
COVERED _7 o
ENTRY
|||||||||||| I N b — — & _ __ __ _PLAYAREA —a

|
|
|
|
I
|
|
|
|
|
T
4
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
[
62-0"

v ReCEPTION LI | LAUNDR

1111 %120 7-11x7-9"

SEFPT 06,2014
ASNOTED

SCALE

j t
| ) |
\
|||||||||||| LI
A SUPPLIES

) ERES PR R - STORAGE

14-9'% 115"

KELOWNA PET RESORT

MALKIN CONSTRUCTION

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT DRAWINGS
DATE

79
m
=
S
-]
=z
O

4-0x1-8 TRANSOM WINDOW ABOVE
PENTYP | = gpacep AT 100" 0. SEE ELEVATION

ISSUEDFORDP 09/08/2014

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALLPLANS AND DIMENSIONS MUST BE
REVIEWED BY CONTRACTOR BEFORE
CONSTRUCTION AND MUST VERIFY ANY

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| 5 i i
H i o o5 55 e e o e s 1 s s o o] g ____1 IR (NN NN R SR
_|_| # I~ T T T T T T T T EEE e Es I I | A | | e | =
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

||||||||||||||||||||||||||| e e e ———a————————————— DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE DRAWING AND
; EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO WORK BEING
SIDE WALK DONE.
2. CONTRACTOR MUST COMPLY WITH ALL
CURRENT BUILDING CODES, BY-LAWS AND
REGULATIONS.
3, THESE PLANS ARE FOR A SINGLE PROJECT
AND THE COPYRIGHT BELONGS TO UPRISE
DESIGN + DRAFTING INC. THE DESIGN MUST
NOT BE COPIED AND THESE DRAWINGS MUST
] R 1285 NOT BE DUPLICATED BY ANY PERSONS.

PLAN

/4~ FLOOR PLAN —

a4 N




NOILVASTd LSV \_17/

|

M
|

!

<
)
—~
L

NOILVAGTd HLSON
[

=22/ dAIVIS
=.22/2 ' AIVIS

[T
5-1—:—”7

uO'| L
uO"l L

NOILVAT T LSAM

|
%
[

1
TLr

—:l'IQNIHG LIVYHASY

i - - : 7#

—r——

===—===
ES==s
L_L_‘_:IJ

NOLLYd ¥ a3vod

===
|

=———

==

z

===t
IS ==

wes.goom |—

T

==
===

=
: =

T = ||Zg/g EHVQQ

===

NOILYAFTA HLNOS

I
‘H

[1]
:H

&
===
El

ANITNIVHO ‘

v O

SNOILYAI TS

zzU>mNﬁmUm§ﬁNe®\@; c |
il KELOWNA PETRESORT i3 w
28:01333 538557 3 g% ‘
2IRe2E88 oddwz 9 - }
SUTIERE] ittt T | MALKIN CONSTRUCTION 265 ;
[SRoge=s mga = |
S382% o8 EitisS 2 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT DRAWINGS 322

>U>"—7U m s Emma\zm $2] S M|+

Zm=29 Oz OZ4%86 | ® o9

S9385 5 liit ——— DATE:SEPT08,2014 313

HZTwoL 2% 2oz o =5

25252 53 BLf§ 3 SCALE: ASNOTED "33

g8 &7 2% R R S0 |
= 5 %% ® 0%

: 47




Map Output

Page 1 of |

ALR

APPLICATION A14-0010
1301 GLENMORE RD N

ALC NON-FARM USE

Map: 1,366 x 756 m -- Scale 1:8,066

D Subject Property

2014-10-16

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject Properties A... 10/16/2014

48




# o pon Qm apf f/“ﬁ ~ b He bl dome for erﬂcw . w
ﬁﬂo\a [e l\pm& for F{,m (/] wnie Chprriage é\ohle / J |
af ]t
PROPOSAL  (Please describe and show on plan or Skeglg). 'F rj‘ﬁ d\m te, ‘F ﬂa+ f’d-U fL Q’ eale gl 1 &

"ﬁiem (S Gn E,va"mz fmé L /\ow Oh ﬂi wroﬂvwﬁq

L{’,(le‘/@? ’{ %ﬂf ‘ét’f’m -71'4’; e ﬁ/ > 30 Lf{’é?éj‘.» _iL L\ C.L

dm .:PM/J’ Cm’f /(@m&/ of ﬂw/‘cwyh 7Z-e ﬂuf!/e Kaﬁ"-t’

Gua/l’«‘J Sp - be o‘f J}ﬁm‘c Cf%% fmpwf?ﬂ(e in /Zﬁffffﬂ’/f'ﬁéf c//'(

7% /ﬁ”f/inf/ &.ﬂ&/ﬁﬁofu It 0 @ fczwrm{jﬁ/ f’T %Mé}/ honre

emm/mt"‘ff rfﬁw L/Lffo?L” Qb 0Cc~fjf/éﬁ\ m’/’ie ﬂxaé le Aww 2

{,Mum Sa e FL 7 /{@ popals T i a FEm, 51 rha lmu*rhcf?;

murx’l/ Ay Lw#cf’/ F ‘7‘ bes ber 51 fo- [fn,rlﬁmf //WM ;m,,\/-,,.,,e )7 Ay J"Jlf/

/u&y oM g on 4:450 ,mt.; z?/tfvb 'mc "-‘\o(”’[u L\Cﬂ‘"@, L;dﬂff{ Lé @ }fé’ﬁ~7L"ﬁJ/ff;—
bor wodsar + sty e te pain oppetioy s avt 5 g5 A their 1 whge 0

CURRENT USE OF LAND (Show Information on plan or skeich) N2 C At Oﬁii J&J‘d"’] of Hee Gt (S

List all ex1%ng uses on the parcel(s) and describe all buildings "1
£ /r“ﬂhd’( £>u eyl / 8 e iotirn UE

L&wr’ /Jﬂgfi Cd{%f ey s ""f y V/'/'I Ad;:j«?_ _, w"ﬂcé”({ &lalfhg
;? Lﬂymf > fiﬁfﬁ

USES ON ADJACENT LOTS (Show information on plan or skeichy

North lf(,f ( v’(/j o iy Lu‘*j J’Lu,, j,hq](? ﬂr‘f\l( 7 Laﬁ“'é’/

East 14) fé’f

South el érw; /'-, pg./wﬂ GA /ﬁwfa. O st e

West ;f/f’m A /O&’;R He.. /’L'\@Vf/}—f hov i€l Alf‘"jf FFG’A”L‘I/
DECLARATION

ifwe consent to the use of the information provided in the application and ali supporting documents to process the
application in accordance with the dgricuitural Land Commission Act and regulation. Furthermore, I/we declare that
the information provided in the application and all the supporting documents ate, to the best of my/our knowledge,
true and correct, I/we understand that the Agricultural Land Commission will take the steps necessary to confirm the
accuracy of the information and documents provided.

Date Signatiire of Owner or Agent Print Name
Date Signature of Owner or Agent Print Name
Date Signature of Owner or Agent - Print Name

Please ensure the following documents are enclosed with your application:

5 Application fee payable to the Local Government = Map or skefch showing proposal & adjacent uses

» - Certificate of Title or Title Search Print @ Proof of Notice of Application *(See instructions)
1 Agent authorization (if using agent) & Phofographs (optional)
Application by a Land Owner 2 2003

49




vy

3ls

"SHOSES ANY A J2I¥ILNA 3 LON

LSNA SONIMYEQISZHL ONY 03140239 LGN
ASNRNNSIA BHL TNISMILYVAG + NDiS3d

* ASMI4N 0L SINOTAT IHSANSCO THEANY
123r0ad TIFNIS ¥ ¥4 Tav SNY 14 353HL '8
'SHOUY 93

ONY SAY A 'S3003 ENaING N2NEND

T HLM KO0 LN HOLIVRINGD 2
“INod

GNIZE EOM 0L 3014 SNOTUONGT SRS HE
ANY SNIMYHA SHL NIZALEE SIINVLTAZSID
ANV ATEA LENI QHY NOLLOMRISNOD

mucummuog._.zou.ﬁ AIMIAZH
36 L8N SNOISNIMI ANY SNY 14 117 °L
GALON TeANID
FLOZ/BOB0. 204 QENE5!
SNOETAT
o9
28RET
W m & i
[} — &
> & Q qNJ o
an M <O M
£90mZ =
Sz ®
oo o >
=" am
VAR
58]
20
)
= O
5§ N
o —

L¥EOOeFLLHY
€ TIFENIA BA INNZE0HS 6082 1L

"ONISNILEYHA + NSISTA 381N

e
)

Y L0
A \W
0 g
/G
1
t o
\ >
t
]
8
&) \
1
/.u%fuw@wm
e
UHOE FOVATA0D AL
(YHG¥ Q) N 925V VIV LOT
M TGOL *TYLOL |-
M LLE2 (IHHADTD HORFLEE|
M EESH UNRIALOO
STIAVLS ANY STINNEY 'STISN AAVANGDSS
LY - TYEnLNINaY EINCZ
. 59 YNMGTIY

HLHON Av0d ZAOWNZTD LOZ L DIAID
901 NY1d “AXNA0 ‘€2 JIHSNMOL

‘2L ANV 8 NOILDES 0L W30 ' 101191

dokz - J/\
o 9]
&

IXZUNOD 3LIS /Cw

>~ A\




L/

ONISSYN
ANV LX3INOD

‘GHOGAEA ANV A A3LYINANA 3 LON

1SN SONIMYAA 283HL ONY d7IE02 39 LON
LENANSISEA 3HL T SHILIYAG + HSISad
ST OLEGHGT3E LHORAADY THL Ty,
L3R4 FITNIS Y 0 Ty SN K ISTHL G
SNOLYINDTA

ARV EMYTAG BIA05 ONITING NS
TIV HLA 0070 LS ¥OLIYAINGS T
amoa

NI SAOM 0L H0R!d SNGTLEANDD INLLSNE
ONY SN THLNFEAMIAS STHONVAIRISIO
ANV A LS Gt NOHLATALSNGD
FAOAI UOLIYALNGD A0 TINIATA

3d 16N SNOISHIWIA ONY BNY T TV °F

SALON TYAINTD

FLOTIGOIEE. 4030703054 |

SNOGIATA
=LA
< =
ToLZ0
QMWOM
WOHNN
NG
e as >
S838y
LAy
vmml
MN%.
= 3
§ A
& =i

L EO0RYELL H )
99 'dIZEHM HATNNFHOHS 6062 1

ONTONLLAYEA + NOISIT 2SN

N
<

ONIDVH HINOS

SNV L5Y




oL

NY'1d

'SNOSHEAANY AS Q31 TN 39 10N

LGN SONIMYRA 3G3ML GNY 081402 39 LON
LSNANDIGZ0 FHL INTONL YA + NDISA]
HS1341 OL SONGTID LHERAIOD FHL dhy
L03r0ad F1IMIS Y HOd Ty SN 353HL 6
BNOILY NS

GNY GMY=\G 'S3000 SNIEINg INTRIND
T HUM ATNOD LENW H0LOVEINGD ‘B
“SNOA

ONIZE SAOM OLEORI SHOILIANOD DNLLE R
ANV ONIMYC SHL NITMLIA SIONYEEISIG

ANY LARIAA LSAN ANY NOLLIMA 1SN0
FAOSZSWUOLVEINOIAS QIMTIATY
34 LSNK SHOISNAMIA ONY SN 1TV L
GILON IWAINIS
| FLOGOME0 SO0 O 15 |
SNOIGIA
O T T
S RET
> o< 2100
i~ mom —
m — &
> 0 QZ o
©b329=
nNu O mZz =
=5 & Z 0N
KLY - M
o S RN
A D_ m
< s
g% 7"
2
2 O
s A
O

W20 0RP GLLHI
29 'GIIHNIM S BNITRI0HS 6062 L
"ONIONILAYEA + NSISTA TSN

N
P

Eariy

AWM 38

- 4=

ittty |

HIUYAIT3E3S 50.0-0L I dBoVas
DADEY MOTNMPIOSNVAL G- ) X O+

7

TAGEY I¥HI DTS 0 3N Y

ﬁ

[

——

N oo zoﬁc\,mﬁmmﬁ.uﬁbﬁ:‘.nmuﬁm‘lv“

75 24094
MO POENAL L % O

ELNOE
EINA YR

bt

DNINOGHS

ELb b e FLED )

k]

1

1

1
1
L)
1

| Dhadi e 0u3s

I 3015

e




(N

- NOLLYATTALova

LSON ST I53HL ANY 300 3¢ Lon h -ug 1
ISNHNASIASHE 381 9NLLAVEA + HOIS3 :

FERAN CLSONOTIZ LHIRAAOD 3HL ANy __
L3008 TIONIS Y U02 I8 Sidv1d I5IHL G i g F
“SNOUYTNDFA | B 3 e i i
QN GAY 1A 62403 SNI0TRE INSERND
TV HUAM STAH03 LENIN HOLVNGS 2
SNoa
SHIFE I0M OLACIIS SROLIGND2 SNLSHE
INY SHIMYA ZHLNTIMLEY STAONYZE08G
ANY AJIHIA LSITA QY NOILDMISNGD :

AT HOLIYALNGI A O3MEIATA m

32 JSNN SNCIBNANI GNY SNY T TIY 'L

SAION NI

E ]

¥ LOZGNED

PIRAL CI00M, . WOl =.2878 HJ1VIS

= B
| NOLYAZTA L6Tm &

iy

da10NSY AIVIS
102 'g0 145 31va

SONIMYAA 1IN INFWAOTIAZA
NOLLOMALENOD NIYTYN

1059 13d YNMO 13

FIENIHE [iHASY

WOl =.2e/8 218 @ WOAL T2/ 30S \—\)
=/ NOUYAFTIHRION L

L¥E00gbgLL H
I8 QEENIM 3 INNTHOHS B0EL

NI ENLLIY A + NOISZa 3S144N

N
o

HOLIY 2 lavod =] X = m“
H




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: December 1, 2014 Kelowna.

RIM No. 0940-50

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC)

Application: Z14-0055 Owner: Loren & Janette Desautels
Address: 650-652 Wardlaw Ave Applicant: Mark Ameerali

Subject: Rezoning

Existing OCP Designation: MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Existing Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing

Proposed Zone: RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0055 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by
changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 14, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS3613
together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the
strata lot as shown on Form V, located at 650-652 Wardlaw Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU6 -
Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing zone be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT a section 219 covenant be registered on title stating that the land and any buildings
shall not be used or occupied until such time as a occupancy permit can be issued by the city and
that the occupancy permit must be obtained by the owner no later than 120 days after the
issuance of the Building Permit. Further, that the covenant require the owner to submit a
building permit no later than 30 days after the date of adoption of the rezoning bylaw.

2.0 Purpose

To rezone the subject property in order to permit a fourplex.

3.0 Urban Planning

Staff support the proposed rezoning proposal to allow for the Four Dwelling Housing use (RM1).
The Multiple Residential Low Density (MRL) land use designation permits the proposed RM1 -
FourDwelling Housing zone. Several nearby properties have successfully rezoned to the RM1 zone.

The proposed multi-family use is consistent with the Future Land Use designation (Objective
5.22, Policy .5 - Multi Unit in Character Areas) and redevelopment to a fourplex would be

54



714-0055 - Page 2

consistent with the existing transition character of the neighbourhood (Objective 5.22, Policy .6 -
Sensitive Infill).

Staff are recommending a Section 219 restrictive covenant be registered on title outlining that
the building must meet the minimum safety standards for a multi-family building as outlined in
the BC Building Code and further restricts the use and occupancy of the property until such time
as the necessary renovations can be completed.

To address Council Policy No. 367 with respect to public consultation, the applicant has
undertaken neighbour consultation by individually contacting the adjacent neighbours as
described in the attached Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during the initial
consultation with neighbouring parcels.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

In 2007, a Development Permit was reviewed and approved for a duplex house. In 2013, bylaw
enforcement action was taken on the subject property after the investigation confirmed the
duplex was being used as a fourplex. The conversion to a fourplex was done without proper
permits and the owner was given the option to decommission the additional units or to legalize
the fourplex.

4.2 Project Description

The subject property has a land use designation of MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
in the Official Community Plan (OCP) and is currently zoned RU6 (Two Dwelling Housing). The
subject property is within a Character Neighbourhood Development Permit Area which requires
that all multi-family developments acquire a Comprehensive Development Permit to review the
form and character of the proposed development prior to the building permit.

The current building meets all the setback and parking requirements for a duplex in the RU6 -
Two Dwelling Housing zone. However, after rezoning to allow for a fourplex, the RM1 - Four
Dwelling Housing zone has increased side yard setback requirements (up from 2.3 metres to 2.5
metres). One side of the building would not meet the 2.5 metre setback requirement, however,
no variance would be required because the new zone (if approved) grants existing non -
conforming status to the building. Additionally, section 8.1.9 of Zoning Bylaw no. 8000 states:
“except for developments with 2 or less dwelling units, no off-street parking shall be located
within 1.5 metres of any side or rear property line.” The applicant will need a variance for this
parking setback rule as the minimum parking for their four dwelling units is six parking stalls and
this can only be arranged along the rear property line with 0.5 metres as the setback distance.

55



714-0055 - Page 3

4.3 Site Context

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use

RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing & . :

North RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing Residential

East RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Residential

South RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing & Residential
P3 - Parks and Open Space Park
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing & . .

West RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing Residential

Sbject Property

530 |

] s "
= o

) Vo= ol




714-0055 - Page 4

4.4  Zoning Analysis Table

Zoning Analysis Table
CRITERIA RM1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Site Details
Lot Area 700 m” 910.4 m’
Lot Width 20m 21.3 m
Lot Depth 30m 42.7 m
Site Coverage Buildings Max 40 % 34.9%
S:)tg Coverage Bu1ldmgs, Max 50 % 40.0 %
riveways and parking
Front Yard Min 4.5 m 4.5m
Side Yard (east) Min 2.5 m 2.8 m
Side Yard (west) Min 2.5 m 2.3moO
Rear Yard Min 7.5 m 7.5m
Height of buildings/number of Max 9.5m / 2Y; Storeys 7.3 m / 2 stories
storeys
Floor Area Ratio Max 0.6 0.252
Number of on-site parking stalls Min 6 Min 6
Setbacks from lot line to parking Min 1.5m 0.5me
Private Open Space Min 75 m? Min 87.8 m?

© Variance not needed as building will get non-conforming siting protection if zoning is approved.
® A variance will be required and will be considered at Development Permit stage if zoning is approved.

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form.'" Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Sensitive Infill.> Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design,
height, and siting.

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter).
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter).



714-0055 - Page 5

6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Building & Permitting Department

e Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permit(s).

e A central water service is required to a common mechanical room well as separate
heating systems for each unit. An upgrade of the water piping system to the house
as well as the distribution system with the house may be required.

e Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building
Permit applications.

6.2 Development Engineering Department
See Attached

7.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: November 13" 2014
Date of Public Consultation: November 24" 2014

Report prepared by:

Adam Cseke, Urban Planner

Approved for Inclusion: Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Attachments:

Subject Property Map

Development Engineering Memo
Site Plan

Floor Plans

Conceptual Elevations
Context/Site Photos

Draft Covenant

58



Page 1 of 1

Map Output
Application Sﬁ —
Z214-0055
Subject Property m | (_-J—U
1R

>
KN
PANDOS

2 [ RM1
31 A B
37112

2.
3
§

| 3k

53 54

EPP23226

> RM3
»~ RM1

CP

ST

2
K444 14059

RICLTED

7|
I
A
v
1
33506 C 38
PL.70769 :5 " P3

2 PLAN 3769
e

CP o
] 18 A
T| 3769 PL.89499

P14200|

QSPREV AVE
»RU

- 23 CP EPS1158
8 =
e -
B~ - = = = =
~
a

| 37 36 icp EPS627

1
City of Kelo né -Ac A

IMap: 423 x 456 m -- Scale 1:2,500 2014-11-13|

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

59

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clie... 11/13/2014



CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: November 19, 2014

File No.: Z14-0055

To: Urban Planning Department (AC)

From: Development Engineering Manager

Subject: 650-652 Wardlaw Ave RU6 to RM1

The Development Engineering Department has the following comments and requirements
associated with this rezoning application. The road and utility upgrading requirements outlined in
this report will be a requirement of this development. The Development Engineering
Technologist for this project is Sergio Sartori

1.

Domestic Water and Fire Protection

The subject property is currently serviced with two (2) - 19mm water services. The
developer will need to determine the domestic and fire protection requirements of this
proposed development. Only one service/lot will be permitted for this development. The
applicant, at his cost, will arrange for the disconnection of existing service and the
installation of a new service. The disconnection of the existing small diameter water
services and the tie-in of a larger new service can be provided by City forces at the
developer’s expense. One metered water service will supply the development.

The applicant will be required to sign a Third Party Work Order for the cost of the
water service upgrades. For estimate inquiry’s please contact Sergio Sartori, by email
ssartori@kelowna.ca or phone, 250-469-8589.

Sanitary Sewer

Our records indicate that this property is currently serviced with a 100mm-diameter
sanitary sewer service. An inspection chamber (IC) complete with brooks box should be
installed on the service at the owner's cost. Service upgrades can be provided by the
City at the applicant's cost. The applicant will be required to sign a Third Party Work
Order for the cost of the service upgrade. For estimate inquiry’s please contact Sergio
Sartori, by email ssartori@kelowna.ca or phone, 250-469-8589.

Road Improvements

(a) Wardlaw Ave must be upgraded to an urban standard along the full frontage of
this proposed development, including curb and gutter, sidewalk, drainage system
including catch basins, manholes and pavement removal and replacement, street
lighting and re-location or adjustment of utility appurtenances if required to
accommodate the upgrading construction. A one-time cash payment in lieu of
construction must be collected from the applicant for future construction by the
City. The cash-in-lieu amount is determined to be $11,400.00 not including utility
service cost A,

60




Z14-0031 2.

d) Only the service upgrades must be completed at this time. The City wishes to
defer the upgrades to Wardlaw Ave fronting this development. Therefore, cash-
in-lieu of immediate construction is required and the City will initiate the work
later, on its own construction schedule.

Wardlaw Ave
ltem Cost
Drainage $3,396.00
Curb &Gutter $1,867.00
Sidewalk $2,668.00
Street Lighting $ 720.00
Landscape Boulevard $ 800.00
Road Fillet $1,921.00
Total $11,400.00
4, Development Permit and Site Related Issues

Direct the roof drains into on-site rock pits.
Driveway access is permitted from the lane only.

5. Electric Power and Telecommunication Services

It is the applicant’s responsibility to make a servicing application with the respective
electric power, telephone and cable transmission companies to arrange for service
upgrades to these services which would be at the applicant’s cost.

AL
Stgve Mueng, P. Eng.
Development Engineering Manager

S8




62

z Q,L

‘GATO F Td '6rZE NVid|

TON 77|

£e 107

NV1d J0074 NIV st_«\wQ_

D8 "VNMOTIY "IAV MVIGEVAM 059

#102/10 100 3LV

TTVIFINY NIV INIT1D

ANV MYIAEYM 059

I L
0l 7 01 ]
392 992
t— o 6 21 921 26 P —
£ ——f € f—— £°9 1 &9 &9 1 £99 —— 16— 619 ——
| :
s
-4
o1 arx@i 8 0
a1 3 ]
13
s A g
z
A ]
8
I g i
o€ § i u i o€
o 2
m 3 AV UDOVELIS ONY NIVL T8¥ GNOIGNIND 3305 1)
# & 3 G102 SOLVAINGD W NI a3 AR JM 2 Y
21 = ._r W7EE o 21 AGIUG Gl 1Oisd GINYIO FuIN GROINING AUIG TV
" £ _ " qUON
- ‘ owonmar
97 9@ I YO SIS 434 WSO O
ez Naﬁ Gl 1 04 e SO NG TV 3
kel o
z L &
e NG 33N OL 5 v =
sonmaba Fo
e >s
#ixen i
onuvd onuvd 15
&l 2 B 6
e d AORY PALSAS SO0 CFATINONT IAOGY WGLSAS $O0V T2aTINING Satod
e e
L 9L
gl corxs 901
airi
oo
5 5
t— LI 9ol —
90— o Dl AN
.92 o9z

o1

o1




63

"AXTO F1 Td 6res NYid]

ON Si_

ANV MY1AIYM 059

Ze 107

NVd JOOT ddd ..Q>,§<MQ_

Od "VNMOTIN “JAV MVIGIVM 059

#102/10 100 3LV
o=l T

ITVIIINY NAIYW - INAITD

NOUSIAISNOD DNISI) MO IVANOD K 5O / NG ANV NG O 03] NOWM STV -3

NIV NG CNOD WO ALAIONA NV N, CHIORININ SICA
(WL I SINNO AR QION . A TV IDHOM

GHOUDTINOD ANVGTIIIN 3 TNV WD 34 OG 204 40 JSIAQV AV "SR L NO GNICH 0 G

W0BO0)

v @ 2340¥.

0O O JNCLE. Y

Y 20 WAINON CONMYIR 3043
K 5 WANUDLE ML WO GIONIIVA ANV 504 TNIGNCAE 33 JON TINS SIS

u WS

292

292

2e

D1+
ol

GININONOD NoudKGRr ars: T vans.
VY IWOO! L N GRUGIIIN AT WY A CTIVE
75 1 T (STl NV UGION SIVALEAS JOONINY SO GZ4TNONT

LGNV I3 GV LON OC. ‘GIMONIO) 34 01 GOTGNING NaLlive

NOUIZYOD W04 NN L GNY YO 1L
O LSO N TG Gt G CHOISEING CHONVIDRNT ANY.

NOUDIMAENCD 1M INONGANCD THIOT
TN O STATIINY CAT “GUNIATIIYAR TIY CAOIINOD
ZUIG 3L LN SVINAV T3P0 AV TS SOLOVHINGD i

IV TN
00D OU GLDRIN TIVN QNSORZ 3 TV UM TIY

SAVIG G 000 200 TRVILAY
TV 6V TIIW G 62000 INNIWTL OV WILUDTID INZANND
400 ONKITING Y207 JULIO CONINYIE TAINIGIER
INZYYD 24 1N TNV 10 000 33 01 oM TIV
GON D

o1 xusr
OO DNAT

DS fe 2 op| HOWDMO
e

EXUERENE Rt
o ke
R r.ﬂmhL

) Tw S MO GWIOE O P SO

201 x50/

£ X011t o
NI i q

EXI R M
Fol-e Fl.mm% L. Hehe
&

r

I

3 anesl

Ar.mm..n.

u Rl KO0
a4 NRNDUIN i)

LY

| |l

@L@J@.

.O\L




64

ke

¥

B! | - [ - L<
= e v Loy T e s ot e s e N
o - e o e R 2
I L e 75 ) i o \,.ln/»ucnﬂ __Il. I sf T S SRV OGRATG G~~~ [T T GROE TSUNARGE Yo T T Vit g
m‘- * Y- <5 _ — . < — W » " " AMLLEN CLAL. OVER ___" ALLOW SLAD OVES ” “ |
ey P pd ! T Mg 2 i "_" 0 m K |
> s A W N il 7 i =il |
E A T b NS LN S M e L% Bl it Sets et | &t
. s il =2 i
» DBL.  CARAGE DBL. GARAGE ¥ ¥ i mmm m.m mmm : @ PRIICAR MORE-
30" % 23" o' X 22° A A o A O wARDLAW &
T n o N 1| e Lo ;“ SO Ren &l o|c Ko
& L s M i R
1 HEl it e =
) - ol 3 |
| J — ! o
1 i Wil il
1 1 i 1 i
HEl ) il 1R
HAl iy o
_ i e L ; I
et == i = gt A — e e syt B S
i o e e !
_ . , | v
ae T
4 .
@ ! © _ g
GCGARAGE PLAN FOUNDATION PLAN ya < m
EACH SIDE: 483 SQ.7 T, < z i
x|
o !
- > ® E
3
e \\V\ Russes oL O
Aol o P i L g
1 Iw AI !
jﬂ= I _l__ 1t . | mm : ! il s !
I:BD_]: ] S| o o o ] : | < 3 |
— = a _! ® OHL., CARAGE \\¢ G W
FRONT ELEVATION RICGHT ELEVATION AL L | Vel g
(FACING LANE) u.vbwm_.“.nmn&._ﬁ..mmmd \/ T 1y o
.4 o moor, - ’ m m O |ﬂ _ O 7_ ' O ' 8
3 5 oA )

i
| s § zmm {a ]
EZ30)|

AT or o _ -

LEFT mrm<>joz : REAR ELEVATON , S 7@ 7




65

WOHLAY o VE,

[SLle BEUFS

stihy, BC.




LLANE
21.34
: PROPOSED iq 35.1
b, ACGESSORY . DORIVEWAY .= . . Pt
JILIDING SETBACK T.a'}
e : B e
Al oy st iPAl
\ L o G
R\ PROPOSED PROPOSED ;?*T\ \
Sy GARAGE GARAGE N A
Bt wuilloinig )R | L
TBACK l
| I
| ! 9
5 - == A% N
| I
| ; I
| o7 = |
I \_&, ' VIEWED DY CITY OF KELOWNA INSTECTIONS SERVICES
| gc‘)’}OS | wals wy e _-3':(1-‘.2121%3:
x| IX ‘ LX) s :‘;—ﬁ;vammva
2' |2 MQT AN LSRR
E a
| fy 2
7 n e
| | Z
d 5 =
N | N 35.1
i I
e i
| [
| |
| | DESIGN CRITERIA:
AREAS: 650 WARDLAW AVE.
(’/p;posgo SILLELD?NRCEAA;EA 9800 SQ.FT. (910
BUILDING r—
BRH34329 (E;’ PROPOSED RES: 2466 SQ.FT. (229
PROPOSED GARAGE: = 955 SQ.FT. (887‘
| |
| | SITE COVERAGE = 34, 97
| I "
I . | 5 SITE_INFORMATION:
' PORCH PORCH [
| | ZONING:
| | SETBACKS:
Lo e I 28k seTeack . gfg%“t e 3*”?”('7(%‘; )7 &)
e 5 S5 o e REAR - 7.5m (24.61")
fn e Yy —3 e
" /,, ¥ ELMiNATE 1] T 1
/, AND MOVE T
21.34 i n HipG& \0 TEWARDY \‘ 356.1
g/ EET . e Sibe /
SETeA 2.5 w T¢
e AN TAaINE i
WARDLAW “AVE
SCALE: 1/8"= (' 66




LANE

. 21.34

21.34

42.67

21.34 Lo
PROPOSED : !E 35.1
1:8im, ACCERBORY .. BIOVRVAY . L wiseal
BUlLIDING SETBACK A ,5_]
ek |11
\ by s e \PAl
\“r:.h b i A \
‘\ PROPOSED PROPOSED )
GARAGE GARAGE N
78 Bulloiig: el L+
SETBACK |
| |
| | '2
:.;0 |2..:.‘ 4;'4 N
| |
| |
| A |
| ~ | NEVIEY
l g% N I s
xl Ix N3eEs
2 g oate
ol I?_] (;\
wl lu 2
% U’| |In %
5
£ & 15 =
c o |N 35.1
i |
! e i
| | E
I |
I
PROPOSED
P BUILDING
BREILB29
I |
| |
[ , | "
| : I b
| PORCH PORCH |
1
i |
I |
Lo T 254 _setsack |
e | e gy wdy iy [ 8
2.3 4. 858 EXTT) &CIQ 4539 2.3
i AR S
" ( 4' ELIMINATE (& TGy =
<2 AND MOVE Tie
21.34 / | Bive (o Twaeoy A 35.1

VEET « &8 Sibe
SETGAN 2.5 w Te
66 MALNTAING D

WARDLAW AVE

SCALE: 1/8°= '

[ 2o

L~

/

67



68




i

|
f
i
g
§
§

T TR s TR g W i M i




TERMS OF INSTRUMENT — PART 2

SECTION 219 COVENANT

THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference ,2014 is
BETWEEN:

Name

Address

(the “Owner”)

AND:

CITY OF KELOWNA
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4
(the “City”)

GIVEN THAT:

A. The Owner is the registered owner in fee simple of the lands and improvements at [civic
address], which land is legally described as:

[PID]
[Legal description]
(the “Land”)

B. Section 219 of the Land Title Act permits the registration of a covenant of a positive or negative
nature in favour of the City in respect of the use of land or building or construction on land.

€. The Owner has made application to the City to rezone the Land to [specify requested
zoning district] to allow the Owner to construct and/or modify the existing building on the Land
and to allow the modified building to be used as [i.e. a boarding or lodging
house].

D. The Owner is unable to secure financing for the proposed construction/modification unless the
City adopts a bylaw rezoning the Land to [again reference requested zoning
district].

E. The City considers it would not be in the public interest to rezone the Land to , except

on condition that the Owner enter into this Agreement.

70



THIS AGREEMENT IS EVIDENCE that in consideration of $1.00 paid by the City to the Owner (the receipt
of which is acknowledged by the Owner), the Owner covenants and agrees with the City, in accordance
with section 219 of the Land Title Act, as follows:

1. As soon as practicable after the adoption by the Council of the City of a bylaw rezoning the Land
to , and in any event no later than 30 days after the date of adoption of the rezoning
bylaw, the Owner must submit a complete application for a building permit to the City, together
with all required fees and charges, for the new or modified building on the Land intended to be
used in conformance with the zoning.

Owner to Diligently Prosecute Construction

2. Forthwith upon the issuance of the building permit,(and any other associated permits required
to enable the construction, (collectively the “Building Permit) contemplated by the application
referred to in section 1, the Owner must diligently and without delay undertake the
construction authorized by the building permit and pursue it continuously until an occupancy
permit for the building has been issued by the City.

No Use of Occupancy Without Completion by Specified Date

3. The Land and any buildings thereon may not be used or occupied unless and until an occupancy
permit has been issued by the City for the building and construction specified in the Building
Permit. The occupancy permit must be obtained by the Owner no later than (120?)
days after the issuance of the Building Permit.

Discharge of Covenant Upon Completion

4, The City agrees to release this Agreement from the title to the Land upon the Owner compying
with sections 1 to 3 of this Agreement.

Runs with the Land

5. Every obligation and covenant of the Owner in this agreement constitutes both a contractual
obligation and a covenant granted under section 219 of the Land Title Act in respect of the Land.
This agreement burdens and runs with, and binds the successors in title to, the Land and each
and every part into which the Land may be subdivided or consolidated by any means.

Compliance with Laws

6. The Owner must, in performing its obligations under this Agreement, at all times comply with all
enactments applicable to the Land or the Building, including City bylaws, the Community Charter
and the Local Government Act and must obtain all permits, licences and authorizations required by
law to enable the Owner to perform any work contemplated by this Agreement and any other
obligations under this Agreement, including those required by City bylaws.

Owner’s Expense

7. The Owner will perform all of its obligations under this Agreement at its own expense.

71



Specific Relief

8.

Because of the public interest in ensuring that all of the matters described in this Agreement,
and the provisions of all applicable laws, are complied with, the public interest strongly favours
the award of a prohibitory or mandatory injunction, or an order for specific performance or
other specific relief, by the British Columbia Supreme Court at the instance of the City, in the
event of an actual or threatened breach of this Agreement.

No Effect on Powers

9. Except as expressly provided under the Community Charter or Local Government Act, this
Agreement does not:
a. affect or limit the discretion, rights or powers of the City under any enactment;
b. affect or limit any enactment applying to the Land; or
c. relieve the Owner from complying with any enactment, including in relation to the use
or subdivision of the Land.
Discretion
10. Wherever in this Agreement the approval of the City is required, some act or thing is to be done

to the City’s satisfaction, the City is entitled to form an opinion, or the City is given a sole
discretion:

a. the relevant provision is not to be considered fulfilled or waived unless the approval,
opinion or expression of satisfaction is in writing signed by the City’s Urban Planning
Manager (the "City Representative");

b. the approval, opinion or satisfaction is in the discretion of the City Representative acting
reasonably in accordance with municipal engineering practice; and

c. any discretion of the City is deemed to be the sole, absolute and unfettered discretion
of the City.

No Public Law Duty

11. Where the City is required or permitted by this agreement to form an opinion, exercise its
discretion, express satisfaction, make a determination or give its consent, the City is under no
public law duty of fairness or natural justice in that regard and the City may do any of those
things in the same manner as if it were a private entity and not a public body.

Indemnity

12. The Owner hereby releases the City, and indemnifies and saves the City harmless, from and

against any and all actions, causes of actions, suits, claims, expenses (including legal fees and
disbursements), losses (including economic loss), debts, demands and liabilities of whatsoever
kind that the City is or may become liable for, incur or suffer arising out of or in any way

72



connected or related to the granting or existence of this Agreement, the restrictions or
obligations contained in this Agreement or the performance or non-performance by the Owner
of this Agreement.

Joint and Several

13.

Notice

14.

Waiver

15.

Priority

16.

If at any time more than one person (as defined in the Interpretation Act (British Columbia))
owns the Land, each of those persons will be jointly and severally liable for all of the obligations
of the Owner under this Agreement.

Any notice to be given pursuant to this Agreement must be in writing and must be delivered
personally or sent by registered or express mail. The addresses of the parties for the purpose of
notice are the addresses on the first page of this Agreement and in the case of any subsequent
owner of the Land, the address will be the address shown on the title to the Land in the land
title office. If notice is delivered personally, it may be left at the relevant address in the same
manner as ordinary mail is left by Canada Post and is deemed given when delivered. If notice is
sent by registered or express mail, it is to be deemed given 3 days after mailing by deposit at a
Canada Post office. In the case of any strike or other event causing disruption of ordinary
Canada Post operations, notices must be delivered personally. A party may change its address
for delivery by giving notice of the new address in accordance with this section.

An alleged waiver of any breach of this agreement is effective only if it is an express waiver in
writing of the breach in respect of which the waiver is asserted. A waiver of a breach of this
Agreement does not operate as a waiver of any other breach or continuing breach of this
Agreement.

The Owner will, at the Owner’s expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to
obtain priority for this Agreement over all financial charges, liens and encumbrances registered,
or pending registration, at the time of application for filing of a notice of this Agreement against
the title to the Land in the appropriate land title office.

Interpretation

17.

In this Agreement:

a. reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural, and vice versa, unless the
context requires otherwise;

b. article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not
to be used in interpreting this agreement;

c. the term “enactment” has the meaning given to it under the Interpretation Act (British
Columbia) on the reference date of this agreement;

73



d. reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under
the authority of that enactment;

e. reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised,
amended, re-enacted or replaced, unless otherwise expressly provided;

f. reference to a particular numbered section or article, or to a particular lettered
Schedule, is a reference to the correspondingly numbered or lettered article, section or
Schedule of this agreement and any Schedules to this agreement form part of this
agreement; and

g. timeis of the essence.
Further Assurances

18. The Owner must do and cause to be done all things and execute all documents necessary to give
effect to the intention of this Agreement.

Severance

19. If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court with the
jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest of this
Agreement and the decision that it is invalid does not affect the validity of the remainder of this
Agreement.

Governing Law

20. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province
of British Columbia which is deemed to be the proper law thereof.

Enurement

21. This Agreement and each and every provision hereof shall enure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and assigns, as the case may be.

Entire Agreement
22. This agreement is the entire agreement between the parties regarding its subject.
Contract and Deed

23. By executing and delivering this Agreement, each of the parties intends to create both a
contract and a deed executed and delivered under seal.

As evidence of their agreement to be bound by the terms of this instrument, the parties hereto have
executed the Land Title Office Form C which is attached hereto and forms part of this Agreement.

74



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 11049
Z14-0055 - Loren & Janette Desautels
650-652 Wardlaw Avenue

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 14, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS3613 together
with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the
strata lot as shown on form V located on 650-652 Wardlaw Avenue, Kelowna, B.C.,

from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing Zone
zone.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

75




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: November 26, 2014 Kelowna

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning Department

Application: ~ TA14-0013 Applicant:  stephen Wells, Kettle Valley
Development Ltd.

Subject . . .

Address: Multiple Owner: Multiple

Title: 2014 12 15 Report TA14-0013 CD2

Existing Zone: CD2 - Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA13-0013 to amend Section 18, Schedule B CD2 -
Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development Zone of City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No.
8000 as outlined in the report from Urban Planning dated December 8, 2014 be considered by
Council.

AND THAT the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration.

AND THAT final adoption of the Text Amendment Bylaw be considered subsequent to the review
and approval of the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure;

2.0 Purpose

To seek approval for changes to the development regulations and housekeeping amendments in
the CD2 Comprehensive Zone 2, Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development zone.

3.0 Urban Planning

The proposed text amendment to the CD2 zone is a result of the current Type I, “Hillside Single
Family” setbacks being too restrictive to implement for hillside development as they the size of
the building envelope area. When the CD2 zone was first adopted in the mid 1990’s the City had
little experience using specific setback requirements for hillside development. In the last few
years greater consideration has been given to the impact the setback requirements have on
development in the hillside areas and having reduced setbacks has resulted in more suitable
building envelopes. For comparison, parcels designated Type 1 in the CD2 zone require a 6.0 m
front yard setback whereas the front yard setback requirement in the RU1h - Large Lot Housing

76



TA14-0013 - Page 2

(Hillside Area) zone is 3.0 m, except for a garage which is 6.0 m measured from the back of curb.
Therefore, the proposed amendments will provide greater clarity and consistency with other
hillside zone setbacks.

In addition to the proposed revisions to the setback requirements, the text amendment
application proposes to replace the original CD2 illustrations, which detail the development
design rules for the specific development “Type”, with a table which will correspond to a revised
Map 1 - Overview Map. The table is being introduced for ease of interpretation and
implementation.

The Urban Planning Department supports the proposed text amendments to the CD2 Zone a
summary of which is:

e Map 1 has been amended so that parcels previously designated under Type I, “Hillside
Single Family” will be re-designated Type Ill *Village/Park Single Family”

e removing Type | “Hillside Single Family” from the CD2 zone

e Map 1 has been amended so that parcels previously designated under Type VII “Cluster
Estate” will be re-designated Type Il “Village/Park Single Family”.

e amendments to the development regulations for Type Ill “Village/Park Single Family type”

¢ replacing illustrations (Map pages 2 - 17) detailing with a table which coordinates with
Map 1

These changes will improve the clarity and implementation of the CD2 regulations.

4.0 Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: July 30, 2014

Report prepared by:

Lauren Morhart, Urban Planner

Approved for Inclusion:

I:l Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Attachments:

Schedule ‘A’ - Proposed Text Amendment
Schedule ‘B’ - Subject Property Map

Schedule ‘B’ - Map 1 showing proposed changes
Schedule ‘C’ - Final Map 1

Schedule ‘D’ - Table

77



Map Output Page 1 of 1

Generalized Zoning
TA14-0013
Commercial Rural Residential
Industrial Comprehensive Development Area
Parks / Open Space Urban Residential (single family)
Public / Institutional Urban Residential (duplex)
Agricultural Urban Residential (multi family) ——
Water Use Health District Subject Property
Berrrererd
NRG /
1
A 25 .
6
3 &
39
= C|
i
\ 7 4 .
A A1 / g g 7] Jo
X 18 B
1 : >
b — 9
2 4 9
1, 5
7| 10
7 | 3
2f 4
4o q
. . [’
~RU1TH ¢
Iy 1
!
% 7l
ST 9" =
0 406 Meters
City of Kelowna - Accuracy and correctness not guaranteed.
IMap: 2,032 x 2,191 m -- Scale 1:12,000 2014-11-19

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

78

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject_Properties A... 11/19/2014




79

[ 2304
panitwiad aq Aew sainjesay sutmollol ayl (1) 01 panlwiad aq Aew sainjea) SUlmO)104 3yl (4) SAIsuUsya1dwo) g sinpayss | ¥
suoLeINGay juswdolaaaq 71
$)opqias sAp)dsip A)upa)d *MRJAQ pu3sig
Y21YyMm 3)qpJ Y3Im padpjdad pup ssulp)ing Siy3 031 payoeqie ‘| dew ‘zad se pajesod.iodut 1eLuapLsay dAlsuayaidwio)
Jo suiyis pamoys ysiym supjd paroway pue paAoidde se 109(04d Juawdol2A(q Aa11eA 21M9) 7ad
dAlsuayaldwor ayi Jo sueld ay3 yim sauoz juawdolaAsq
SUON | 9>uepJodde Ul 3q Jjeys ssulpjing jo sullls ay] (o) SAlsuaya1dwo) g anpayds €
| adA] 03 aduauafau a13)8q w el (L
dew ‘zad - X 2dA]) jewdawiwio) a41ud) 38e)|IA
w gl
:(1 dew “zad - X 2dA]) jeJswwo) a1jua) aseIA s24n3onJ3s AJ0Sssadde SULpnidXa W 9|
:() dew ‘zad - X1 2dAL) 213us) 35eYIA SN PAXIW
s24n3onJ3s A10ossadoe SuLpnjoxe W 9|
:(1 dew ‘zad - X1 @dA1) anua) aseyIA 3N PAXIW w 9} :(} dew
‘7ad - 1A dA1) Buisnoy
w9y :(} dew jJuswiiede pue a4jud?) 38e]|LA 9SNOYUMO |
‘70D - 1A 3dAL) :
suisnoy juswede pue a13us?) S5€]ILA 9SNOYUMO | wge:(1L suoeInay Jusiudolarag i
dew zad 1IA-1 S2dA1) Suisnoy mol pue Sulsnoy
w G'6 :(1 dew zad IIA-II s2dA1) Sulsnoy mod pue payoe1ap-1Was ‘Sulsnoy paydelap 9)15uls s
Bulsnoy payde1ap-1was ‘Sulsnoy paydelsap S)5uls Jel3uapisay SAlsusyaidwo)
:SMO1104 Aonen e119y 7ad
:SMO]10} Se 2q 11_YS SU0Z 7dD Y3 ULYILM $S2INIDNIIS se aq 11_YsS 2U0Z 7dD Y3 ULYILM SIN3dNIIS sauoz juawdoiaAsqg
pue sSuLpjing J04 JYsiay wnuwixew ay] (p pue sSuLp|Ing Jo} 5oy wnuwixew ay] (p) SAISUSya1dwo) g anpayds | ¢
sup)d .
ay31 Jo ppbajsul 8)qpJ Mau ay} sadualafay suoneinEay Juswdojasad )
‘1 dew ‘1 dew sl
7@D se pajelodiodut pue paroidde €7aD se pajesodiodul pue paroidde 1eL3USpLsayY SAlsusyaidwo)
se ‘129[0.1d Juawdo)aAaqg aAlsusyaidwo) se ‘12alo.1d juswdolaAaq aAlsusya1dwo) Aa11eA 9119 7ad
9U3 JO 3)1gel 9Y3 YIM Soueplodde ay3 Jo sued 2yl yim aouepiodde sauoz juawdo)anaq
UL 29 1_YS 25BI2A0D 21IS wnwitxew ay] (2) uL 29 )1eYs 25eI2A0D 31Is wnwitxew ay] (2) aAIsuUaya1dwo) g anpayds I
X3 pasodolid IX9] Sunysixy uol3das | ‘OoN

0008 "ON MejAg SuLuoz

€100-71VL

9U07 7 Juawdo)aAs( SAisuayaldwo) 03 sjuswpuawie 3xa] v, ITINAIHDS



z a23vq

80

Suloey pajuaLIo 24 Jjeys sSulp)ing jLe1ad Aa103s
3UO pue 122115 Uley SpJemo) Sulde) pajusLIo
2q ]1eys sSuLp)ing 92140 /)1L32 PIIUSLIO 193.13S

(zad) sauoz jusawdojanag

“lelJawwo) a.qua) 5. A ‘X 2dA] Jo4 (d) SUON | aAlsuayaidwor g a)npayds - gL
supjd saop)daJ a)qp| uaym 31soj
8q )]IM 3)NnJ SD sUoIIDINEY 13yl 03 PappPY
19213 uULeW Sulde) pa1RIUSLIO suonensay JaYI0 §°l
SSuLp|InNg Juswedy /]eldlawwo) 3yl Yim
193.1S B Sulde) PajuUSLIO ] ]1eyYs SsuLp)ng (zao) ssuoz uswdoianaq
Ne ‘@13ua) S8eIA SN PaXIW “‘X| 2dA] 1o (0) SUON | 9Alsuayaidwor g anpayds - g1

| adA] 03 aouauafal a313)aqg

2U0Z LMY Ue UL st 31is a3
11 se paje|ngal aq )1eys SALSNJOUL [J]A YSnodyl

"2U0Z MY ue ut
SL 911S U3 JL Se pajeIngal o4 Jjeys SAISNIdUL [[|A

suoleingay J2Ylo G°L

(zap) sauoz juawdolarsg

|| s2dA] Suisnoy jeryuapisad 10y susis (1) ysnouyy | sadA] Suisnoy jeryuapisal Joj susis (1) | aAlsuayaldwo) g a)npayds - 81 9
| adA] 03 aoualafal 832)aQq
SAIS]OUL suoneNgay JoYl0 §°L
IIA Ysnodya || s2dA] Buisnoy jerjuaplsal | SALSNDUL ||JA Ysnodyl | sadA] Suisnoy jeriusplisald
10} spJeA paiinbal Jje 10} | 19A37 SL 19A9) 10} spJeA paiinbai 1. o) | 19A37 SL 19A9) (zad) seuoz wswdojaasqg
13}Jnq adedspue)] pasinbas wnwiuiw ay] (8) 19}Jnqg adedspue] paiinbal wnwiuiw ay] (8) | aAwsusyaidwor) g anpayds -8l G
sup)d ay} Jo ppajsul 9)qD | Mau SadU1afaYy
*MRIAG SIy3 *MRJAQ Syl 01 payoeqle ‘| dew
01 payoene ‘| dew ‘za)d se paijedodiodul pue 7ad se pajelodiodul pue paroidde
paAoidde se ‘a1qe] ay3l Yilm Souepaodde Ul se ‘109[o.id uawdoiaAag aAlsuayaidwo)
3q ]]eys eaJe JUSWYIROIDUS 343 JO 3ZIS Sy ay3 Jo sueid syl Yim aouepuodde
‘sardoued pue saluodjeq paso)duaun (LiL) ut 99 1eys uordafoud ay3 Jo unowe ay|
pue ‘seaJe }29p pue ydiod pasojduaun (L) ‘sardoued pue saluodjeq pasojduaun (LLL) suoljengay juawdolaAasq #°1
sainiea} jednidallydue (1) pue ‘seaJe }29p pue yodiod pasojduaun (1) puasla
:M0]2( JoJ paplAaoad se ‘spaeA Supjue)s sa.njea} jeunidaliydae (1) 1eLIUSPISSY dAlsudyaIdwio)
193.1S pue juoJj ay3 Jo J91awiad ay3 unu :M012q 10} paplroud se spaeh AaneA 21139 7dDd
UoLYM ‘seade juawiydeodus olul 303foid 03 supjue)} pue juod) ay3l ojul 303foud sauo7 juawdojaAa(q
I1X3] pasodold IX9] sunsixy uol3das | "OoN

0008 "ON MejAg SuLuoz




81

¢ adong
a]qp3 Ag pascpjday sueld /1-7so8ed L dew | g
J11 3dA] 03 (s)a24pd L1 0 | dew
6 xouddp) [IA adA] Jo aoupjsul auo asubyd
‘I1] adA1 03 | 8dA| palpbusisap asoyi asubyd (zao) ssuoz juswdolanag
pup ‘vaip | adAJ,, aAowal 03 papuawy aAIsusyasdwo) g anpayds - gL | £
sup)d saop)daJ 2)qp | uaym 3soj
aq )]IM 3)nJ Sp sUoIIDING3Y 13yl 03 Pappy
‘peoy e any) suoleInNsay Jaylo G°}
X9 pasodoud IX3] Sunsixy uordas | ‘oN

0008 "ON me)Ag Suluoz




CD-2 - Kettle Valley Comprehensive Development Zones
Table - Kettle Valley Regulating Plan
CD2 Map 1

. & Maximum Floor Net Densif . . " - " Setbacks From o . G
. Minimum Lot Minimum Parcel Average Parcel Maximum Lot p : ty . Maximum Primary Dwelling Accessory Building Side Yard Setback (all % Principle Dwelling Accessory Building
Map Color Code Lot Type Dwelling Style: - Area Ration (units per Vehicle Access . . i Property Line
Area Width Depth Coverage Building Height  Front Y ard Setback  Front Yard Sethack buildings) . Rear Yard Setback Rear Yard Setback
(FAR) hectare) Flanking A Street
Access from street:
Type Il - Estate Single Ant am 75
P aeoing Single Family 700 m2 20m 3"m 35% NA NA Street 9.5m ) 6m 1.5m 7.5m -=m
Family Enroachment Line: 5 Access from lane:
Encroachment Line: 2m
2m 1.5m
T Access from street: 4m Access from street:
- Village - Single Family/Hillside
Typelll or IV - Village ngle Family/H 455 m2 13m 35m 0% NA NA Street/ Lane 9.5m am 15m 6m 7:5m
Park Single Family Single Family Enroachment Line: Access from lane: . Access from lane:
Enroachment Line: 2m
2m 12m 1.5m
- Village Singl\ o uses and 2 Bet
Type‘v Vil ag_e |ng e Row Ho : n /o.r 245 m per 04m 35m 50% NA NA L5he 9.5m 4m 12m e ween-unattached am i 1.5m
Family - Multi-Family Narrow Single Family dwelling unit dwellings: 3m
T - Village Muiti-
ype Vi F:rlrl]:je uiti - 4m
Bet ttached
Row Houses 5000m2 100m 25m 45% NA 35 Lane 9.5m 12m etween unattache 6m 1.5m
dwellings: 3m
E h ine:
nroachment Line Encroachment Line: 2m
2m
Single Family, Semi-
" Parcel: 5000m2 Parcel = 35% 4m Cluster Estate: 3m between 4m
t d % Estate: 6.0 ter Estate: N
Type VII - Cluster estate detache 'Dwelllflgs upto Bareland Strata 9m NA Bareland Strata Lot NA 15 Street 9.5m 12m unattached dwellings Estate: Cluster Estate m Cluster Estate: NA
4 dwelling units per " 15m Estate: 7.5m Estate: 7.5m
buildi Lot: 225m2 =60% Encroachment Line = : z
uilding Encroachment Line: 2m
2m
Single Family, Semi- 4m 4m
. Parcel: 5000m2 Parcel = 35% Cluster Estate: 3m between
Vila- detached Dwellings u . Cluster Estate: 6.0 cl tate: NA
Clust::g:tatea/Esta!e £ t4dh i .tgs p Bareland Strata 9m NA Bareland Strata Lot NA 20 Street 9.5m 12m unattached dwellings Estate: USE::atZt'a;Sm m h’;:g:f;:m
0 dwe 'Ill;g' Hnitspet Lot: 225m2 =60% L5m o o
building Encroachment Line = n
Enroachment Line: 2m
2m
ITown House/Mixed Use/ Commercial
X h i
Type ‘,”" Townhouse Townhouses 4000m2 NA NA 40% 1. Ma)umurn Ofn_ self Internal Lane 16m 4m NA 4m 4m Varies (parking at rear) NA
Village Centre contained suites
4.5m 4.5m
Mixed use Enroachment Line: Enroachment Line:
i iding(Ce ial, 1(0.2 FAR bonus for N Apartments= 1.2m for - 30
Type. IX - Mixed Use Building(Commercial, 4600m2 NA NA 0% iolereindpaking 07 Strata/Off Street Parking i6m Apartments=1.2m NA 12 oaloon o Townf}omes m NA
Village Centre Apartments) & fora total FAR of 1.2) for bsleoniss alconies only; (parking at rear)
Townhomes Townhomes =2.0m Townhomes = 2.0m;
. Commercial = 2.4m
Commercial = 2.4m A
foFa WIS for awnings only
4.5m 4.5m
Enroachment Line:
Type X - Commercial . . Awnings=1.2m Between unattached Enroachment Line: .
Commercial 0m2 50% 0.7 NA Strata/ Off Street Parking Lot 13 NA ) 30 arking at NA
Village Centre “ fooom NA e % THtaf GFSHSSE AT " All other buildings = 6 m 2.4m; 1.2m for FEppATRlnga
encroachments = awnings
2.4m

82



CITY OF KELOWNA
BYLAW NO. 11046

TA14-0013 - CD2 - Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential

Development Zone

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT SCHEDULE ‘B’ - Comprehensive Development Zones, CD2 - Kettle Valley
Comprehensive Residential Development be amended by:

a)

Deleting 1.4 Development Regulations, (c) in its entirety that reads:

“(c) The maximum site coverage shall be in accordance with the plans of the
Comprehensive Development Project, as approved and incorporated as CD2,
Map 1.

And replacing it with:

“(c) The maximum site coverage shall be in accordance with the Table of the
Comprehensive Development Project, as approved and incorporated as CD2,
Map 1.”

Deleting the following from 1.4 Development Regulations, (d):

“Single detached housing, semi-detached housing and row housing (Types |-V
CD2 Map 1): 9.5 m”

And replacing it with:

“Single detached housing, semi-detached housing and row housing (Types II-VII
CD2 Map 1): 9.5 m”

Deleting the from 1.4 Development Regulations, sub-paragraph (e) in its entirety
that reads:

“(e) The siting of buildings shall be in accordance with the plans of the
Comprehensive Development Project as approved and incorporated as CD2,
Map 1, attached to this bylaw.”

Deleting the following from 1.4 Development Regulations, sub-paragraph (f) that
reads:

“The amount of the projection shall be in accordance with the plans of the
Comprehensive Development Project, as approved and incorporated as CD2, Map 1,
attached to this bylaw.”

And replace it with:

83



“The size of the encroachment area shall be in accordance with the Table, as
approved and incorporated as CD2, Map 1, attached to this bylaw.”

Deleting the words “Types | through VIII inclusive.” 1.5 Other Regulations, (g) in
and replacing it with the words “Types Il through VIII inclusive.”

Deleting the words “Types | through VIII inclusive” 1.5 Other Regulations, (i) in
and replacing it with the words “Types Il through VIII inclusive”

Adding new sub-paragraphs (o)and (p) to 1.5 Other Regulations in its appropriate
location that reads:

“(0) For Type IX, Mixed Use Village Centre, all buildings shall be oriented
facing a street with the Commercial/Apartment buildings orientated
facing Main Street.

(p) For Type X, Village Centre Commercial, street oriented retail/office
buildings shall be oriented facing towards Main Street and one storey
retail buildings shall be oriented facing Chute Lake Road.”

Deleting the Kettle Valley Regulating Plan Overview Map and replacing it with new
Kettle Valley Regulating Plan Overview Maps as attached to and forming part of
this bylaw; and

Adding in its appropriate location a new CD2 - Kettle Valley Comprehensive
Development Zones, Table - Kettle Valley Regulating Plan as attached to and
forming part of this bylaw.

. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this
Considered at a Public Hearing on the
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

84



ROM TYPE VIITO TYPE I

[ & _.—-—*\—.—._.—*—.+~—

_da
Ecore

ECORA ENGINEERING LTD.
570 Lowrensa Ava., KELOWNA, B.C. V1Y 86L& SCALE:1:8000
Phone 250.469.9757

[_]7YPE 1 -Hilside Single Family
[C__]7vPE 1 - Estate Single Famly

[__]TYPE morIv-Viiage/Park Single Famlly

[:' TYPE V -Villlage Small Single Famlly/
Multi Family

_|TYPE VI - Village Muli Famlly
[_JvYPE ViI-Cluster Estate

[ 7YPE Vila - Cluster Estate

[ TYPE Vil - Townhouse Vilage Centre
[ TYPE IX -Mixed Use Village Centre
-TYPE X = Gommerclal Vllage Centre

= KETTLE VALLEY REGULATING
PLAN BOUNDARY
smnes CTY BOUNDARY

KETTLE VALLEY
PROPOSED
REGULATING PLAN

El(—12-016-KVRP

85



L} _-——'l-—l—r~--_».---—--—~_"—'—

@

‘SCALE:1:8000

.
Ecora

ECORA ENGINEERING LTD.

570 Lowrenca Ave., KELOWNA, B.C. VIY &LB
Phone 250.469.9757

TYPE |l - Estste Single Family

| TYPE lllor IV-Vilage/Park Single Famlly

TYPE V -Village 8mall Single Famlly/
Multi Famiy

[0 TYPE VI -Village Muli Famlly

“TYPE VI - Clustsr Estste
[ TYPE Vila - Cluster Eststs
[ TYPE VIl - Townhouse VBage Gentre
| |TYPE IX -Mixed Use Vilage Centre
[IZ] TYPE X - Commerdlal Village Centre

s KETTLE VALLEY REGULATING
PLAN BOUNDARY
e GITY BOUNDARY

KETTLE VALLEY
REGULATING PLAN

El—12-015-HYRP




87

wg'T wg'T :aue]
:9UBT WO} SS9V | WO SS90V
w g/ :21e1s3 w g*/ :a1e1sy wg '/ wg '/ 119ais JIEq1SS PIEA JE3Y
VN :931e1s3 431sn|D VN :21e1s3 431sn|D wqt W G'T | 1199415 WOJ) SS9V | wody ss900y | Sulpjing Aiossa0y
wg"/ :21e1s3 wg'/ :91e1s3 Noeqiss
w g :91e1s3 431SN|D w g :91e153 J31SN|D w9 w9 w9 w g’/ | Jeay Suljjamq 3jddulad
wz we wg we w z :aun FEENIE
IDUIT JUSWIYDROJOUT | 12Ul JUSWYILOJIOUT | 1BUIT Juswydeosdu] :2UI7 USWIYdeO0IOUT 1uawydeosous | Supjuelqd aur] Auadoud
w i w w i w w i w1 | wodd yoeqiss
wet
:9UBT WOJ) SS90
wg yoeqias pieA ol
w gt wzT wZt W ZT | 119941 WOoJ) SS90y w g | Suipjing Aiossaoy
we wz wz wyz w g :aun
:2UIT 1USWIYDBOJOUT | 1BUIT 1USWYIBOJOUT | 13Ul JUSWYdeosdud :2UI7 UAWIYde0IOUT 1uawydeosouy Noeqias piep
w i w i w w w w 7 | ou4 Suijemq Atewiid
FTETETY]
ws'6 w g6 w g6 wS'6 w g6 w g6 | Suipling WINWIXEIA]
192418 199418 aue aue aueq 193J41S 192418 SS90y 3IIYSA
(s4e103H
0¢ ST S€ VN VN VN | 43d suun) Aysuaqg 13N
%09 %09
107 elRJIS puejaJeg | 1107 el1eJiS puelaleg a8esano)
%S€ ‘|294Bd %S¢ [924ed %St %0S %0v %S¢E | 301 WnWIxXeA
VN VN w sz wgg wse w Gg yadaq |92Jed adesany
w6 w6 w oot w6 WweT W 0Z | YIPIM [33ied WNWIUTIA|
T4 M See
1107 eleJ1S puejaleg | 1107 eleI1S puejaleg 1un
WM 0009 WM 000S W 000S | Bullamp Jad W Gpg LM QS ;M 00L eaJy 107 WnWiulAl
:[92Jed :[92Jed
(suun
(smunyor | ¥ o1 dn) SuisnoH
dn) 3BuisnoH Ajwed Ajlwed-nnip Ajlwed Ajlwey
-IINIA ‘payoelap | ¢ sesnoH payoe1sp 9|3uis moudley | 9|3uls pIS||IH
-lwas ‘Ajjweq 9j8uls | -lwas ‘Ajlweq 3|8uis S9SNOH MOY | ‘SasnoH moy | ‘Ajjwey 9|3uIs Ajlwed 3|8uis 9jA1s Suijlamqg
21e153 Ajlweq Ajwed 9j8uls Ajtwied
‘91e153 191sn) 21e1s3 4a1sn|) | Ajnwed-1nin 93e)IA | -IINIAL ‘918uls a3e(|IA yaed a3e||IA | 9|3uIS 91e31s3 adA1 107
3apo) inojo) depl
BlIA adAL lIA @dAL IN3dAL N 3dAL Al 40 |jj dAL Il 8dAL

T dey zad ue|d Sunejnday Asjjep ama) :e|gel U0z Jusawdojana aaisuayaidwo) As|jea 9118y 7 dd




88

(1eal 1e Bupjied)

(1eau 1e bupjed)

(1eal 1e Bupjied)

Moeq)as pieA Jeay

w og W Qg :SWOoyuMo | saue) | Buipjing jedioulid
w z'| =sbulumy joans e bunjueq
w {°Z :2ul Juswyoseoloug aul Auadoud
wgy 3OBQ}eS pJeA Juol Se swes | wouy S)yoeqgles
(sBuipjing [ie)
w 9 :sbuip|ing payoepeun usamiag we'l w i | Yoeqies plep 2pIS
sBuiume 10} W ' = [eloJawwo)
W 'z =sjuswyoeosous Jayio IV W Q' = SSWOYUMO |
Saluoo|eq Joy W g’ = sbulumy seluodjeq Jo) W Z'| = sjuswpedy
auIT Juswyoeooug ‘auIT Juswyoeosouy )oeqias piea juolq
WGy WGy Wy | Buljjemg  Arewnid
ybiay
wel w ol w 9| | Buipjing wnuwixep
Bupped 19a.4is JJO/e1ens buped 19a1s JO/eIeNS aue [eusau] SS2292Y 921U\
VN 01 S9JINS Paulejuod jjes |g (HdN) Aisuaq 18N
(punoubispun
Bunied Buipinoid Joy snuog ¥yd 2°0) (¥v4d) oney
L0 l | | 100]4 winuwixejpi
abelanon
%08 %08 %0% | 307 wnuwixejpl
W 000% M 000% W 000% €1y 107 winwiulip
S8SNOYUMO |
®
(Aiwed-nnpy
[elOJoWWOY | [EUSPISSY ¥ [elolawwo)) asn PaXI SOSNOYUMO | ajAys Buljjemqg
B ER EETNERIENG) aljua) abe|IA @SN PaXIN aljuan abej|i/\, 9SNOYUMO | adA] 107
X 8dA] | X1 8dA|




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: December 15, 2014 Kelowna

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK)

Application: TA14-0015 Owner: 657139 BC Ltd.

Address: 1975 Union Road Applicant: gaxvsrgovc\/ii;lti::;s (D.E. Pillings
Subject: 2015 01 12 Report TA14-0015 Amended 1975 Union Rd

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial

Existing Zone: C5 - Transition Commercial

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Council receives, for information, the Supplemental Report from the Urban Planning
Department dated December 8, 2014 with respect to Text Amendment Application No. TA14-
0015;

AND THAT Council rescinds second and third reading given to Bylaw No. 10996;

AND THAT Council directs staff to amend Bylaw No. 10996 at first reading to delete “Service
Stations, Minor” and replace it with “Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services” as a Principal Use for
one explicit legal parcel within the C5 - Transition Commercial zone;

AND THAT Text Amendment Bylaw No. 10996, as amended, be forwarded to a Public Hearing for
further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Text Amendment Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Real Estate Department;

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Text Amendment Bylaw be considered in conjunction
with Council’s consideration of a Development Permit for the subject property.

2.0  Purpose

To amend the C5 - Transition Commercial zone by replacing the previously recommended
“Service Stations, Minor” use with the “Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services” use on one explicit
legal parcel.

89



TA14-0015 - Page 2

3.0 Urban Planning

Urban Planning supports the proposed text amendment to the Zoning Bylaw. Upon further review
of the original application, Urban Planning determined that Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services
is the more appropriate use, rather than the previously recommended Service Stations, Minor
use. As with the previous report, Staff suggests adding Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services as a
permitted use to C5 - Transition Commercial for this parcel only (and not as a permitted use in
the entire C5 zone).

Service Stations, Minor, which allows for vehicle washing, also allows for servicing and repair of
vehicles within a building. These are uses that would not be considered appropriate due to the
proximity to adjacent residential and the type of work involved. Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle
Services specifically indicates coin operated car washes within this use.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

In December, 2013 the applicant sumitted a proposal for a car wash on Glenmore Road that was
subsequently rejected by Council. Council’s decision was based on neighbourhood concerns
regarding noise and the proposed location adjacent to a park.

In August, 2014, Staff brought the recommendation of Service Stations, Minor before Council.
Second and third readings were received on September 9, 2014 after the Public Hearing held on
the same date.

The Development Permit and Text Amendment applications have undergone revisions to ensure
they meet the intent of the Zoning Bylaw. Through this process, it was determined that Rapid
Drive-Through Vehicle Services would be the most appropriate use for this site specific
application.

4.2 Project Description

Staff received an application for a car wash in this new location along Glenmore Road by the
same applicant. The subject site is located at Union Road and is currently zoned C5 - Transition
Commercial. Based on the location of the site, C5 is the appropriate zone for this parcel because
it is used to provide for limited commercial on the edge of a community or as a transition to
residential. However, it does not list Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services as an allowed use.

The proposed car wash is located on a larger site allowing the developers to provide adequate
landscaping and buffering as per the Zoning Bylaw. One site access is proposed off of Union road.
These details are currently being determined through the development permit process.

4.3 Site Context

The subject property is located at the south corner of Glenmore Road and Union Road.
Neighbouring the site is North Glenmore Elementary School and a vacant lot to the north, a
vacant medium density multiple residential lot and small park to the northwest, a single family
dwelling on an agriculture lot to the northeast, and low density row housing to the south.

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Future Land Use

North P2 - Education and Minor Institutional EDINST - Educational / Institutional

MRM - Multiple Unit Residential (Medium
Density), PARK - major Park and Open
Space

RM5 - Medium Density Multiple Housing, P3 -

West Parks and Open Space

90



TA14-0015 - Page 3

East A1 - Agriculture 1 REP - Resource Protection Area
South RM2 - Low Density Row Housing g\z&s;tc\)umple Unit Residential (Low

Subject Property Map: 1975 Union Road

4.4  Zoning Analysis Table

CRITERIA

Zoning Analysis Table
C5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS

PROPOSAL

Development Regulations

Height Max.
(To mid-point of roof) 9.50m 8.41m
Front Yard 4.5m 10.67m (Union Rd)
Side Yard
(Flanking Street) 4.5m 4.52m (Glenmore Rd)
Rear Yard 6.0m 8.7m
Site Coverage Max. 40.0% 15.6%
Floor Area Ratio Max. 0.4 0.26
Other Regulations
Min. Parking Requirements Staff parking = 1 stall 2 stalls provided
Min. Uncovered Space 370m” / wash bay 282m* / wash bay®

91



TA14-0015 - Page 4

Zoning Analysis Table

CRITERIA C5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Upstream Vehicle Storage _ .
(Automated) 5/ bay = 10 req. 10 spaces provided

Upstream Vehicle Storage

(Manual Wash) 2/ bay =10 req. 10 spaces provided

@ Indicates required variance for uncovered space.

5.0 Current Development Policies

Recognizing that car washes can be both land consumptive and nuisance generating, the Zoning
Bylaw provides specific rules for car wash developments. One of these regulations addresses the
proportion of the site covered by buildings by requiring a minimum amount of land area per wash
bay that is to remain free of buildings. The requirement is 370m? per wash bay. Contrary to the
applicant’s original proposal where they were only able to supply 194m? per bay, this proposal is
large enough to provide 283m?* per bay as well as a wide landscaping buffer from the adjacent
residential area. The previous application was not able to provide the appropriate landscape
buffer.

Design details and confirmation of required variances will be further explored when the
applicants makes their permits applications.

The proposal is also consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) future land use
designation. The subject parcel is designated Commercial.

Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)

Development Process

Retention of Commercial Land." In order to ensure that the City’s commercial land supply is not
eroded, where the OCP Bylaw 10500 indicated a commercial land use designation for the
property, the expectation would be that there be no net loss of commercial space on the site as
a result of the redevelopment to include other uses.

6.0 Technical Comments

6.1 Development Engineering Department

e See attached memorandum dated November 12, 2014.

6.2 Fire Department

e Ensure appropriate unobstructed distance to a fire hydrant and proper fire department
access. A visible address must be posted as per City of Kelowna By-Laws.

6.3 FortisBC - Electric
e There are primary distribution facilities along Union Road. The applicant is responsible
for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as

well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required.

6.4 Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.24.2 (Development Process Chapter).

92



TA14-0015 - Page 5

e See attached letter dated October 30, 2014.
6.5 Real Estate and Building Services

e Please work with Real Estate Services for the required SRW for storm on property. Also,
please note significant landscaping is proposed over required SRW area.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: June 26, 2014

Report prepared by:

Lydia Korolchuk, Planner

Reviewed by: I:l Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor
Approved for Inclusion: I:l Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager
Attachments:

Subject Property Map

Schedule ‘A’ - Proposed Text Amendment
Conceptual Site Plan

Conceptual Elevations

Development Engineering Memorandum
GEID Letter

93



Map Output Page 1 of |

Application L

TA14-0015

Subject Property

3
PL.60991

1

PLAN 60991

- 1 )
Zity of KelofrEnIXKG ey, and B3

[Map: 423 x 456 m -- Scale 1:2,500 2014-08-13

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

94

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clien... 8/13/2014



¥107/21/50 :parepdn

95

"A&312> a3 uL ) pauoz

sj9o4ed Jayjo uo a3eridosdde

9q 30U PNOM SIYSEM Jed

Se auo0z ) 3413Ud 3y} 0} pappe
SAIIAIBS I)IIYBA Ydnody-aALig
pidpy 23S 01 JUBM 10U S0P }Je3s

“1924ed siy3 uo ajeridoidde

SL asn ay31 1eyl S}93} J4els

NG SUOZ G Y3 UL asn pajsl) e
J0U SL S32IAIBS 3)IIYBA Ydnody |
-9ALIQ pIdDY "dMIS SIY} Je ysem
Jed e o} uonyedrjdde jtwiad
Juswdo)aAap B paAladal sey
suruue)q ueqin “192.ed siy3 Joy
auoz ajeridoidde ay3 st Yoym ¢
pauoz s1 Ayiadoud 10a[lqgns ayl

‘(peoy uoun
G/61) /¥81SdWM Ueld QAdO €z diysumo|
‘¥ uonoag ‘/z 107 0} Ajuo s|geoliddy

10edwli Jouiw ‘saoiales Ajjin (d)
sooInBS Ja)ays Alelodwa) (0)
Buisnoy psyoelsp ajbuls (u)
S0UBIUSAUOD ‘Sal0]S |Ieal (W)
saljqwasse snolbijal (])

«S92IAISS 3JoIYaA ybnoayi-aaup pides ()
sjuswysijgelsa aoines jeuosdad (I)
sao1o (1)

S90IAISS Yjleay (Y)

Jofew ‘sawoy dnoub (6)

S92IAISS JUBWUIaA0D (})

SO2IAISS [elauny (9)

s92IAISS [eloueul (p)

S|ooyos [eloJawiwiod (9)

Jolew ‘aiyuao aleos piyos (q)
sasnoy buibpoj Jo Buipieoq (e)

‘ale auo0z sIyj ul sash [ediound ay |

sas |ediouud

10edwi Joulw ‘saoiAlas Ayjn (o)
saolIAIeS Ja)jays Atelodws) (u)
Buisnoy payoejep o|buls (w)
22UBIUBAUO0D ‘sal0ls |1ejal (])
saljquiasse shoibijal ()
sjuswysijgelss aoinlas jeuosiad ()
s901440 (1)

saoInBs Yyeay ()

Jolew ‘sawoy dnoub (6)
S92IAJSS JusWUIaN0b (1)
S9OIAISS |elauny (3)

s90IAISS [eloueul (p)

S|ooy9s [BloJawwod (9)

Jolew ‘aiyuao aleos pyd (q)
sashoy bBuibpoj Jo Buipteoq (e)

:ale auoz sIy} ul sesn |ediound ay |

sas |ediduld

sas) jedulid
°G'f) uoLIdas

ajeuolyey

1x3] pasodolid

IX3] sunsixy

uo132as

G100-¥IVL

sjuswpuawy Ix3L §J pssodo.d Y, IINAIHIS



—

CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: October 14 2014

File No.: DVP14-0211

To: Land Use Management Department (PMcV)

From: Development Engineering Manager

Subject: 1975 Union Road Glenmore Rd Lot 27 Plan 51847 Car Wash

Development Engineering has the following comments and requirements associated with this
development permit application.

1. General.

a) The request the vary site area, site coverage and building height will not
compromise municipal servicing requirements.

b) All the offsite infrastructure and services upgrades are addressed in the Development
Engineering Report under file Z14-0028.

W L

Steve Muenz, P. Eng-’ g
Development Engineering Manage

JF

96




Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District
445 Glenmore Road
Kelowna, BC V1V 176

Email: glenmore ellison@shaw.ca
Phone: 250-763-6506 Website: www.glenmoreellison.com Fax: 250-763-5688

October 30, 2014

City of Kelowna

Land Use Management Dept.
Community Planning & Real Estate
1435 Water St.

Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4

Attention: Deb Champion (via email: dchampion@kelowna.ca)

Re: City of Kelowna Files DP14-0127 & TA14-0015
1975 Union Rd. — Lot 27, Plan KAP51847
657139 BC Ltd. /D.E. Pilling & Assoc, Ltd.c 0076

GEID provided comments on July 9, 2014 regarding the development (attached) and the
further information has been provided by the developer’s engineer.

D.E. Pilling will also be supplying GEID with more site servicing details, including
expected flows, meter details and an FUS calculation for the facility, at a later date, once
application is made for a building permit. Upon receipt and review, as well as payment
of the various fees and charges, GEID will be in a position to issue a water letter.

GEID has no concerns regarding this development permit/text amendment file. If you
have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at 250-763-6506.

Yours truly,
GLENMORE-ELLISON
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

/\@2—/

Darwyn Kutney, RE.TS-6RM
General Manager

c.c. Dawn Williams, D.E.Pilling & Assoc. Ltd. (via email: dawnw@pilling.ca)

N:\Projects\0114 657139 BC Canvosh 1975 Union\t20141030dk dp comments.docx




Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District
445 Glenmore Road
Kelowna, BC VIV 1Z6

Email: glenmore ellison@shaw.ca
Phone: 250-763-6506 Website: wiww.glenmoreellison.com Fax: 250-763-5688

h X
S
&
B R
L5 oy N

July 9, 2014

City of Kelowna

Land Use Management Dept.
Community Planning & Real Estate
1435 Water St.

Kelowna, BC V1Y 114

Attention: Deb Champion (via email: dehampion@kelowna.ca)

Re:  City of Kelowna Files Z14-0028, DP14.0127
1975 Union Rd. — Lot 27, Plan KAP51847
657139 BC Ltd. /D.E. Pilling & Assoc. Ltd.

GEID is in receipt of a referral concerning the rezoning and development for Lot 27, Plan
KAP51847 at 1975 Union Rd. to accommodate a car wash facility.

The subject vacant property is within the District’s servicing area and is currently
classified with 0.578 acres “R” grade (residential). Upon development, the property will
be classified as “C” grade (commercial).

Capital Expenditure Charges (CECs)

Payment of Capital Expenditure Charges (CECs) is required for each new parcel or new
development connecting to GEID. For the proposed development, CECs are payable for
each sprinklered building at a rate of $4 800 minimum charge for the first 250 m? of each
building ﬂ001 area, and a rate of $8/ m® for additional floor area over 250 m?, and a rate
of $10/m? for buildings without fire sprinkler systems. CECs are payable accmdmg to
the bylaw in force at time of payment.

Please note that no CECs were paid for the lot when it was subdivided and registered in
1994 therefore no CEC credit is available for this development,

Fireflow Availability and Hydrants

Hydrant spacing and flow rates must conform to City of Kelowna Bylaw # 7900. GEID
requires that the developers have hydrant locations and spacing reviewed by the City of
Kelowna Fire Department, and that a written response be provided to GEID prior to
constructing the proposed water works. In the event that additional hydrants are required
by the Kelowna Fire Department, the hydrant purchase, connection, and installation shall
be at the applicant’s cost.

The developer must submit a New Fire Hydrant Data form, as required by both GEID and
the City of Kelowna, for any new hydrant installed as part of this development.

N:\Projects\0114 657139 BC Carwash 1975 Union\L20140219dks.docx




File Z14-0028, DP14-0127
1975 Union Rd.

Water Works

No information has been provided regarding expected flows, demands, or the size of the
service required for the car wash. We note that there is a water service on Union Rd. for
the property. The service was installed at GEID expense during 2009 road construction.

Meters

All water within the property must be metered. As specified in GEID Bylaws #147 and
#1438, a water meter must be installed on all new water services and supplied and installed
by the applicant according to manufacturer’s directions and GEID standards, At this time,
all meters installed within the GEID service area are required to be compatible with the
Sensus RadioRead system, The meter shall be installed with adequate clearances to permit
repair or replacement, and will be inspected by GEID to meet GEID requirements. A
mechanical drawing should be provided showing clearances for the meter,

A three conductor, 22 gauge, solid conductor cable with red, green, and black wire colours is
required, and must be installed between the meter and MXU location on the building exterior,

GEID’s contractor, CORIX Utilities, will supply and install a remote meter reading device
(MXU) compatible with the Sensus RadioRead™ system. The remote MXU will be located
outside the building near the entrance door, and shall be in line-of-sight from a publicly
accessible roadway servicing at the site. A fee of $300.00 is charged for the supply and
installation of the MXU.

If an irrigation system is proposed, it must be connected to the water system after the main
water meter, and be designed to 10 USgpm maximum flow. GEID requires that irrigation
system mechanical plans be submitted to review the irrigation flow allotment and cross
connection control.

Development Application Fee

A Development Application Fee of $150.00 is required for staff review of each
Subdivision, Rezoning or Development Permit application.

New Account Fees

GEID Bylaw #149 states that all new accounts or transfers of ownership shall pay a fee of
$20.00/parcel. For the proposed development, a $20.00 fee will be applicable.

Tolls and Taxes

Under Tolls Bylaw #155, a new account will be set up to invoice the car wash at 2
metered commercial rate. The 2014 monthly minimum rate is $48.25 for the first 30 m’,
with excess water charged at $0.40/m”.

Under Tax Bylaw #154, the property will be charged at a rate of $156.00/acre for all “C”
Grade lands where a business, institution or commercial enterprise exists. This tax is
invoiced annually and will be based on the actual acreage of the property.

The above-noted rates are current to 2014 and according to the bylaw in force.
Summary

GEID is not in a position to issue a water letter for this development until further details
are provided to GEID.

N:\Projects\0114 657139 BC Canwash 1975 Union\L20140219dks.docx

99



File Z14-0028, DP14-0127
1975 Union Rd.

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at 250-763-6506.

Yours truly,
GLENMORE-ELLISON
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Darwyn’Kutney, R.E.T., CRM
General Manager

c.c. Dawn Williams, D.E.Pilling & Assoc. Ltd. (via email: dawnw@pilling.ca)

N:\Projects\0114 657139 BC Canvash 1975 Union\L20140219dks.docx

100




CIVIC ADDRESS: 1975 UNION ROAD, KELOWNA B.C.
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 27, SEC 4. TWP 23, O.D.Y.D., PLAN KAP51847
CURRENT ZONING: C5 - TRANSITION COMMERCIAL
3=
2 i ZONING BYLAW REQUIREMENTS
7.
Pong = -
A = \“ SITE AREA = 25,231 SQ.FT. (2.344 5QM)
e
- BUILDING AREA:
MAIN FLOOR =3,932 SQ.FT. (3653 SQ.M)
UPPIR FLOOR =2,505 SQ.FT. (232 7 SQ.M)
TOTAL =6,437 SQFT. (5980 SQM)
REQUIRED PROPOSED
LOT WIDTH 40.0m 40.0m
LOT DEPTH 350m 43.24m
LOT AREA 1,300 sq.m. 2,344sq.m.
COMMERCIAL FLOOR AREA RATIO (FARI 0.41937.6 SQA) 26 (5960 SQM)
SITE COVERAGE 40%1937.6SQM) 1565 (3653 SQM)
HEIGHT (my/STOREYS (#) 9.5m'2 1/2 STOREYS  8.41 m/2 STOREYS
SETBACKS (m)
FRONT (UNION ROAD) 45m 5.90m
REAR (SOUTH) 60m 6.70m
SIDE (FLANKING- GLENMORE ROAD) 45m 4.50m
SIDE asm 13.80m
PARKING
CAR WASH 2/SERVICE BAY x 2 AUTO SERVICE BAYS 4 STALLS 1STALL®
1/2 EMPLOYEES + CARETAKER 1STALL 1STALL
LOADING @ 1/1.200 sq.m. GFA = 1STALL 1STALL
BICYCLE (CLASS ) @ 2/100 sq.m. GLA = 25SPACES 2 SPACES
BICYCLE (CLASS Il) @ .6/100 sq.m. GLA = 45PACES 4 SPACES
LANDSCAPE BUFFERS (m)
FRONT (UNION ROAD) 20m 213m
REAR (SOUTH) 30m 213m*
(OPAQUE FENCE)
SIDE (FLANKING - GLENMORE ROAD) 30m 2.13m*
SIDE 30m 213m*
(OPAQUE FENCE)
LANDSCAPE TREATMENT LEVELS
FRONT (UNION ROAD) 2 2
REAR (SOUTH) 3 3
(OPAQUE FENCE)
SIDE (FLANKING - GLENMORE ROAD) 3 3
(OPAQUE FENCE)
SIDE (SOUTH) 3 3
(OPAQUE FENCB
CARWASH REQUIREMENTS
VEHICLE UPSTREAM STORAGE (AUTOMATED) 5 5
VEHICLE UPSTREAM STORAGE (MANUAU 2 2
(INCL. INSIDE BAY)
OPEN SITE AREA @ 370 s m/ BAY x 7 BAYS = 2,590 sq.m. 1446 sqm. *
* VARIANCE REQUIRED

PROP()SED BU
31932 sq.ff.

SINGLE BIN GARBAGE ~
ENCLOSURE c/w S GRS SR VIS S S N S S S R S
DECORATIVE GATE v
El - 4
: PIANY
%2 —
2 RACIRS
£ 2, (Lb»\((\
L
<
-4
- o W — — 2
> v . o
TReemt s 62.15m (203.90) s Sgeoad <

DRAWN: HPN
20 HIGHLAND DRIVE NORTH, KELOWNA, B.C. V1Y 4K5 PRONE (250) 868-0878 FAX (250) 868-0837

P Drawing No.
PROJECT DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED CARWASH DEVELOPMENT r SITE/ROOF PLAN & ZONING BYLAW ANALYSIS DP1 101

HANS [P N E U _ M A NN A CHITENCT I N Q\ . e *\e\m e
A

1975 UNION ROAD KELOWNA, BC

REVISION No.: 1




102

LEGEND
® FIBER-CEMENT SIDING
PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW
© CULTURED STONE CLADDING
yz POINT OF ROOF SLOPE @ FIBER-CEMENT TRIM BOARDS
© PRE-FINISHED METAL FLASHING
(®  SOLAR PANEL ROOF
" © CALVALUME ARCHITECTURAL METAL CLADDING
fl { il iilitilinidliiiliii
/' 5| E 5|
o I | ———
I e z 2 L ® =
{
4 VAVAVYAVAWANWIW.iW i
SIDE (EAST) ELEVATION SIDE (WEST) ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0" SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"
OFFICE . STORAGE STORAGE r A=
195 SQ.FT. 432 SQ.FT. 432 SQ.FT.
195SQFT) [ G (432 SQFT) (432 SQ.FT.)
Q, \ /
- | i ' | ===
UPPER FLOOR (2,280 SQ.FT.)
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"
H A N S P . N E U M A N N A R C H I T E C T I N C . . m O(_:ABT;H ISSUED F[())E):([:);:EI\F:ZOO:A\E!\T PERMIT ;(;\TS/ ;él:;:ﬂti;z, 2014
D 1520 HICHLAND DRIVE NORTH, KELOWNA, B.C. V1Y 4K5 PHONE (250) 868-0878 FAX (250) 868-0837 LE 2’; z’::?,::NfPN
V PROJECT DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED CARWASH DEVELOPMENT UPPER FLOOR PLAN/ BUILDING ELEVATIONS D P3
REVISION No.: |

1975 UNION ROAD

KELOWNA, BC




o

1111 m
[/
[/ ]
(1)1
.
I J1°..
= - Z \_® EXIT (SOlCJmTI—I—-II)I_lil::EV/‘\T|OF\IJ—I - ;\\—;"_“_“_I ; ; I_"—Im;
. = N\
I 1] ] F 1] LT I = V. ,I/ 2,( | LI f_lE ]
} o

ENTRANCE (NORTH) ELEVATION

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

D 1520 HIGHLAND DRIVE NORTH, KELOWNA, B.C. V1Y 4K5 PHONE (250) 868-0878 FAX (250) 868-0837
OJECT DRAWING TITLE

DESCRIPTION

PROPOSED CARWASH DEVELOPMENT

1975 UNION ROAD

KELOWNA, BC

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

REVISION No.:

103




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10996
TA14-0015 - 657139 BC Ltd., Inc. No. 657139
Amendment to C5 - Transition Commercial Zone for 1975
Union Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT Section 14 - Commercial Zones, 14.5 C5 - Transition Commercial, 14.5.2
Principal Uses be amended by adding “Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services -
applicable only to Lot 27, Section 4, Township 23, ODYD, Plan KAP51847 (1975
Union Road)” in its appropriate location and renumbering subsequent sub-paragraphs.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and

from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 25 day of August, 2014.

Considered at a Public Hearing on the 9™ day of September, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 9™ day of September, 2014.

Rescinded second and third readings by the Municipal Council this

Amended at first reading by the Municipal Council this

Re-considered at a Public Hearing on the

Re-Read a second and third time as amended by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

City Clerk

Mayor

104



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: December 8, 2014 Kelowna.

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK)

Application: Z11-0083 Owner: Arnold & Melitta Frank
Address: 1429 KLO Road Applicant:  Arnold & Melitta Frank
Subject: 2015 01 12 Report 1429 KLO Rd Extension to Dec 12 2015

Existing OCP Designation: MRL

Existing Zone: A1 - Agriculture 1

Proposed Zone: RM7 - Mobile Home Park

1.0 Recommendation

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for
the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10782, for Lot 52, D.L. 131, ODYD, Plan 186 except
Plan KAP78326 located on 1429 KLO Road, Kelowna, BC, to be extended from December 11, 2014
to December 11, 2015.

AND THAT Council direct staff not to accept any further extension requests.

2.0 Purpose

To extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending bylaw No. 10782 from December 11, 2014 to
December 11, 2015.

3.0  Urban Planning

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that:

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater:

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified
in writing that the file will be closed;

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect;

105



711-0083 - Page 2

¢) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda
of a meeting of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated
with that Amendment application.

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect.

By-Law No. 10782 received second and third readings on December 11, 2012 after the Public
Hearing held on the same date. Council granted an extension to the application from December
11, 2013 to December 11, 2014. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for an
additional twelve (12) months in order to address the outstanding conditions for final adoption,
which include:

o Preparation of a Development Permit;

« Preparation of a Development Variance Permit;

. Registration of a restrictive covenant; and

. Satisfaction of Development Engineering requirements.

In support of their extension request, the applicant team has noted that they are currently
working actively towards completing the outstanding requirements. Staff note that work with the
applicant team is active and ongoing and is supportive of this extension request. The DP and DVP
application were recently submitted and are under review.

Report prepared by:

Lydia Korolchuk, Planner

Reviewed by: Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor
Reviewed by: I:l Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager
Attachments:

Subject Property Map

Site Plan

106



Page 1 of 1

T
1
© b 1
I
L © m @
o~ N © N
. 2 3 3
s R <
s g 2 g |
i o e a
3 3 T s i
P a ~ ~ <
~
q - # m m Vi
& H 5 = ’ o
N ) Q Q ¢ o~ o~
2 LN o o
< 4 g - A
- =lwe= r ~ ~
) Q L ™ b m2 X
< ~ =
IS I £y ~ e
NA . ~ o
< 1 N NG S
~
B 1 B g @
© LE e e st __ 8 B "
- =
2 m ] nss = o
@ - I
2 3 1 I 3 /.
b > 1 4 Q =
L & ARE- =
1 % b <
] \\1 a o~
|
‘\l
- =
o~
©
™~
-~
iy a
it
2 i
£ ] A
[ ' \|.o
(=8 ~
a 3 L=’
et 8!
(] (-3 w "— =t
@ [s] I © P
(=} o () &
e = g § S %
1 K aw ~ = -~ -
! (<) ) o = a
- R 7 2 =3
N < oo ohe | of 9 a =
et MY K=l (5
- i =
PRDSTERSE ha . n
el S & 5
&) °] |g] (=
[ |w B
vrvNﬂT
o
5 18
-3 x
>
: =
—_ = 2 e o oo fe e
~ .. g
Q W.R N S 1 hoo oo
Q
e = & & v/
- —\
—Dﬂ.ﬂ.mvhl.ﬂl_...n H %m & .h—
II.I-I.R.. e I | 5 A ) e

Map Output

107

2013-12-04
2013-12-04

p&am...

w_Ma

Name=0vervie

imap?Service

Esr

.esrr.esriumap

8,315

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bl-weekly. This map Is for general Information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

tranetd/servlet/com

//kelin

[Map: 1,408 x 727 m -- Scale 1

http



108



DI'DUOO'MMM £S/6769'0SZ AL
€19 ALA ‘0’8 ‘VNMOTEN ‘oAv edualmo 6.5

109

—

da-610-¢1-X3

102 'L ¥38W3030 G3SIA3Y
Y102 ¥38W3Ld3s

Advd JNOH JTI90N LINY
1lINY3d INJNdOT3AIA ANV ONINOZ3Y i .
08 ‘YNMOT3X ‘avo¥ OM 6Z¢L \ \

\ \
,v ,V \\\\\\\\ nsasa) PoO!
- E
/ e gevLdvd 49
||||||||||||||||||||| / i P
IIIIIIIIIIIIII ey
avod  3HLog
/ 0¥¥SLdVy udjy Aom jo 146
MO avoy wopz
MO Gvoy wppz
T - - wggcy
M, ] ) - © wezL we'gl wz'zL wz'zL wg; -
| = A28 AR R o\~~~ e | %% e wg
_. g QW sy T T ———-———[ZI35ns Huﬁﬁh@ﬁ%vk Hmlu\%omm“rhwolwlllln.w IIIIIII AN
Favds NI ! £ | R | [ N I A Ik ittt A
| - .
oW 99g h“ & gLy ..uus 668 .m._NE coge .l..uE Loge wdw s5s w 2w eais
i 8 Zwsze0 3 SS 395 |y4g ¥ gg 3
i 62 ¥ 6s os &
|
i - Zuo'eys
s -
IS Zwgzee IS
e oe 5 " La
~ X ¥
I 3 ez
N Zwg'lgg 8 o=
13 L& g m Zw gege =
_~ oz}
| (Y73 208 wH
m_ 5 2uig'i9p g| (|iese N L el
53IWwoH e Ze B m 2w geer o
NIIMLIG WO'SG - (LINM) VA dvIN | £9 5
"_ wy'sz Moy
mMEDI .m % R s Wo el R wo'ez
NIIMLIE WO'E - (LINM) J¥VA 3AIS | ge g 5 g -
| 'y
(WRAWINIW) i T5ez
wosd wg:* - (LIN e Zwg'oge g wizse Hoez
agog oe ( n) ddVA LNOMS | 5 P 5 1/ 5 2w e J
| El Ssg 5
WO 't - (FLIS) d3IF44MN8 ddVA 3dIs e usez
WO'9 - (FLIS) AHVA dvIy |5 =y i L o
| ! w g =
WL - (LIS) ¥FAAM1E AVMHDIH | ¥ g5 B
WO'9 - (3LIS) ddVA LNOMS || us6Z ~ = o
s o= D5 - N.M:thn Zwygse L
i3 ] 8 . _
5XJvg.L35 GNINOZ a3dintIy || m : 5 vy
! 5
LW ANV Xvd IWOH 3IT7190W __ _ weeg Szt
Is Zusse 4 uo'ez
i 5 /e > § os uM Zw ggge 5
i ) [=p4 S
5107 68 7vrALav __ 4 [C373
XVIN = NS auosse 8 o
S5LINIM 46 LE ge 5 mm 2w ggee 2
YH/SLINMA OZ ~_ m 94 s
ALISNIG | e .
e Zwggge 2 4] woez
| 3 6 g g 2w gose 5
! 30 L2 5
| Wyez
W 005 | P2 = IVvrnLavy | mm uzeee 5 nw 'Sz
i ot 5] . -
o AS g = | .11~ TR oz g
B3y 3IJVdS NIJO %S | = 5 nl 5
~ z wo'sz
v H B m . V — _m wu N.M»W». . \A.‘. ® wz'g wz'zy wz'z| ol wz'z| wz'g - N Zw goe 2
VINV LOT TVLOL | 4 981 woid| A\ oos | B 64 %
i v zc wog'z aH
i X7
211984V ubid % m NMW M N NMH» gouosse QU095 | zuogge qdurese |
| g $vE 588 |szg [f1g 3L o
’ e e || i
m et 3 = cet En.“.«.n_ wzzy Eu.n_. ]
h Moy - weog —
H uzez WOET & 2wzse 8 Zwizse 5 #
_m 8 Zwg'gge 9 3 4 2 og 5 ) ‘
i - 1474 Ly —
| » weog wgog
T WZ6Z g wize =
R 5 i 2uyzse s =
rm R Zuwirgep s gt 3 8z »E
mu ‘n 3 St g ~ ||
AN __ - W “eee wgog
O | wzez ' Zwyze 8 o
N & ! Zwze 3 L
3 IS Twsgss 8 2 s g Lz _Wm. wo'sz
m ) I=] 5 m
: S T wgog 7=y
0sz:L TWOS MM e m > Zwizse 8 NE_.MM». Hm
SNIMEVd JOLISIA IS s g wi s oz 0y
§! :
,.Aa._ - e we'og & a3snon xa
gi wi'ez N iz 8 Zwizse = 3
i W_. 8 ZwEyse 8 3 £1 g Sz mwz 2ufys),
mm“. 3 p4 3 —_— wgop GigE R =
= wezL wzzy WZZL T ONIYSVd
ai Wrez x3
[1s Zwshse 8
NES 9 5 i ==
._ wu Zwi0sg mm 2uysee |8 zwozer S zwgeee |8 Zwygge R = a.mu
m e = oL Pit Fz fez fgz s 5 TZ 8
_. a Zweosg g 2
I 3 (= wo'sz
{ 3 © 3 s g i
.|.m i = //Q ] x4 wzzy wz'zL wz'g 1.»0\ L Nmnm § W.
—" '~
| =4 mﬁ 2l wo'sz
! i § 22 g s
: \ = he! 3 ZweL0g
! 'z =
‘CL WNNININ ‘'STIVLS H p...o e wezL wg'ZL GAH Wz T 61
ONDRVA HOUISA TvOIdAL i avoy ss@Fagov| Ni VN @ < w
73
_ ‘ 1n0TINd
i “ . NIV Ennm“%%_ﬂ: N
| N Ty | Gzwoyzy | - &z & o )
“_ : S |FE 5 e e TR R
! gil g e | Zwg'geg
i < g
we'y X woL | Fpvds NIJO <! @ .
ety N [ Zn| 985 .
(4344 o] [T G ______\ 2
~ weeey . m“%wwm_ YD xu<m~_nm.w_:6u wezt ul (434408 3gvosanvi) IIMH.H» IIIIIIII
i wogl wo'Lz wsz

VA3OIS TIVEVe3s WoeT X3

we'sg

‘ALT ONRM33NIONI Y8003

TN
Cred W

z6ctvdyd uold

wegge

1077 LO] %
FIvdsS NI
oW 681t 1

SONITTING
3ONVNAINIVA "dOdd

22265dvX ubid

™ vﬂ\um]
|

L

Z

3¥0IS3Y 3@ OL QUVAIINOS »

“H3LIND ANY 8dN0 “NTVM3AIS "GIAON3Y
38 OL NOUJ3S AVM3ANQ @3SS3¥d3d X3

14

(9eX¥2 NO) 00:}




110



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: December 8, 2014 Kelowna.

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK)

Application: Z12-0047 Owner: Onkar & Ranjit Dhillon
Address: 875 Mayfair Rd, 885 Mayfair Rd Applicant: Phillip Patara
Subject: 2014 01 12 Report Z12-0047 extend to Nov 13 2015

Existing OCP Designation: S2Res - Single/Two Unit Residential

Existing Zone: RU1 - Large Lot Housing

Proposed Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for
the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10768 for Lot 4 District Lot 143 ODYD Plan 22026
located on 875 Mayfair Road and Lot 3 District Lot 143 ODYD Plan 22026 located on 885 Mayfair
Road, be extended from November 13, 2014 to November 13, 2015.

AND FURTHER THAT Council direct staff not to accept any further extension requests.
2.0 Purpose

To extend the date for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10768 from November 13, 2014
to November 13, 2015.

3.0  Urban Planning Department
Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that:

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater:

a) The application will be deemed abandoned and the applicant will be notified in
writing that the file will be closed;

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect;

111



712-0047 - Page 2

c) In the case of an Amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a
meeting of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that
Amendment application.

Section 2.12.2 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that:

Upon written request by the applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend
the deadline for a period of twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that effect.

By-Law No. 10768 received second and third readings on November 13, 2012 after the Public
Hearing held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for an
additional twelve (12) months. This project remains unchanged and is the same in all respects as
originally applied for. The rationale for the extension is that the applicant needs to raise enough
funds to meet the final conditions of the rezoning application; which are:

1) Development Engineering requirements:
> Sanitary Sewer charges $7,191.12 (valid until March 31, 2015);
> Road Frontage Upgrades $23,500.00;
> Servicing Agreement for Works and Services

2) FortisBC Inc - Electric : SRW required

In support of this request, the applicant has stated that they are moving forward in completing
the rezoning. The Urban Planning Branch recommends Council consider the request for an
extension favourably. The applicants are working on financing and hope to move forward in the
spring of 2015.

Report prepared by:

Lydia Korolchuk, Planner

Reviewed by: I:l Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor
Reviewed by: Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager
Attachments:

Subject Property Map

Site Plan

112



Page 1 of 1

Map Output
Z12-0047
875 885 MAYFAIR RD
Subject Property (_.J_‘
i e ) Pldrzes st g
iR RS IR S T s e
GOLEA G sk s s
o T :
OA T T
; , 1 2 5
; g ) o PLAN 2201 !
: PLAN 22053
5 4
= RU1C .
12 6 7 J
PLAN|22014 PL.21429
cp 4
1 23 [
cP 5
K226 |l i
[ 2 22
» RUMC | ¢ ¢
[ AR S|
8 E 3 21 4 P2
PL.24833 >
g a
4 14 8
20 5 PLAN 426
=
PL.22026 | PL.21429 g 0
5 19 Z
< ——
o
w 10
RU6 18 | o oo
PL.24833 CP
4 11
7 17 RO
 RU6 .
a © PL.21429
1 2 | PR ) v e T e 14 13
PI|.24833 9 s
W e ~
et~ 5o o
PEARSON RD B
20 | =) 1
, i . |rRUS ]
~ 2
AR 19 (&) CPK546
4177 > ¢ RUG 3
7 h 2 PL.76112
sefotn ‘ inéﬁ/éﬁmamnee?- 3 — 7
Map: 423 X 456 m -- Scale 1:2,500 2014-12-16

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clie... 12/16/2014

113



™ ROAD CENTRELNE i
N N %, ey
EDGE OF ASPHALT %@L L s%.?)* dé-;,
IS%O
3, + %, + +,
%, % %‘d) 72&
/\’(JW\_F\/\\—\ EXISTING OVERVEAD UTILITES
3 s
SV 2257 EXSTING PROFERTY LINE §Y 225TM EXISTING PROFERTY LINE
?Y DM g v +
1P, EXIST e X IP.PROPOSED E q%)/ 1650H PROPOSED FROPERTY LIE ‘?g,q 1P, EXET.
3
kO
< 5 .
+ + E:
Ty %
EXISTNG +
24 DIAVETER MAPLE “*%,%
EXISTING PATIO
\/\
= xS
%
%, ¥
+ 4
3 wa
k-3
2 i
;e 2 o :
x 2 e+ w ~IN =
g 2 g ‘g%va g@ 20 DINETERMIALE +o‘% B g
+c% { E E* g g
2 8 2 8 s
5 8 8 g g
2 1 J 3 5 g
g & %, 52 = g
kN 3 °© = < X
5 b2 5 b
%
s
% +
‘6‘)
%)9 + &?""/ %‘5
%‘%
+
%
PROPOSED|LOT B DLOTC .
"%ﬁ/ s,
]
o REMCVE EXISTNG SHED
+, %"e
3
%,
K %% ey % & VST WAPLE S%\%,
52H PROPUSED PROPERTY DM, % +  H6M PROPOSED PROPERTY LOE [+ %> 4+ 1650H PROPOSED PROPERTY LIE
;’f; |P. PROPOSED 1P, EXIST. IP. PROPOSED 1P, EXST.
% 228TM EXISTING PROFERTY LNE 2257M EXISTING PROPERTY LIE

Jrei=]
ESAL
LOTS 3 ¢ 4, PLAN 22026, DL. 143, ODYD.
(2119
885 ¢ 875 MAYFAIR ROAD, KELOVNA
CURRENT ZONNS RU |
PROPOSED ZONNGRU 6
RU 6 ZONNG ( ALLOVIABLE )
MNMM KDTH BOOM ( FOR SNGLE DETACHED DELLING )
MNMM CEPTH 2000M
AREA 400 Q.M

CANE?A&E(B};LDD ) 40%
(BM‘DE/PATIG/DENENATS) 50%

FRONT 434
REAR 20 /23 ( SBECT T0 BULDING STORIES )
SIDES 6.0 /15 ( ABELT 10 BILDNG STORIES )

AREA 5418150 M.

PROPOSED LOT C
HDTH 16.‘&1

AFEA 6‘.845511}1

HOUSE AREA 901 5@ M/ COVERAGE M 57%

SETBACKS ACTUAL
FRONT

SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1/8" = 10"

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTION BY

240512 | A | IFED FOR APPLICATICN 23

TH!S PRINT IS ISSUED ‘iB-EOT TO RETURN
UPON DEMAND AND UPCN THE EXPRESS
CONDITION THAT IT IS MT TO BE USED IN
ANY WAY DETRIMENTAL TO OUR INTERESTS,

ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

ENGINEER / DESIGNER OR THEIR AGENTS.
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRANING.

= i

TED ). THOMAS
. & ASSOCIATES LTD.

220-17I5 DICKSON AVE,
KELOKNA, B.C.

VIY 966

PHONE : 250 163 5220
FAX : 250 163 2206
E-MAIL: assocetedthomas.ca

PROECT
FROPOSED SUB-DIVISION
885 / &5 MAYFAIR ROAD

KELOANA, BC.
JoBNO: 2012-03 Revision: A
DRAWN BY : BEFHLLIPO

DATE : 24TH MAY 2002

FILE NAME : MAYFAR HTE
CHK. BY : TED THOMAS A1 'o

114



CITY OF KELOWNA
BYLAW NO. 11026

TA14-0019 - Breweries and Distilleries, Minor in the C3, Cé6

and C10 Zones

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

4.

THAT Section 14.3, C3 - Community Commercial/C3lp/rls - Community Commercial
(Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales), 14.3.2 Principal Uses be amended by adding in
its appropriate location a new subsection “breweries and distilleries, minor” and
renumbering subsequent subsections;

AND THAT Section 14.6, C6 - Regional Commercial/Cérls - Regional Commercial
(Retail Liquor Sales)/Célp - Regional Commercial (Liquor Primary), 14.6.2 Principal
Uses be amended by adding in its appropriate location a new subsection “breweries
and distilleries, minor” and renumbering subsequent subsections;

AND THAT Section 14.10, C10 - Service Commercial/C10lp - Service Commercial
(Liquor Primary)/ C10lp/ris - Service Commercial (Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor
Sales), 14.10.2 Principal Uses be amended by adding in its appropriate location a
nel\DN subsection “breweries and distilleries, minor” and renumbering subsequent
subsections;

This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 3™ day of November, 2014,

Considered at a Public Hearing on the 9" day of December, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 9" day of December, 2014.

Approved under the Transportation Act this 16" day of December, 2014,

Audrie Henry

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

115




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 11031
Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14-0015

Parkbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc., City of Kelowna and 0977415

BC Ltd.

1511 Tower Ranch Drive, 2160 Tower Ranch Boulevard and 1501

Tower Ranch Drive

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of a portion of Lot 3, Section 31, Township 27, ODYD, Plan
KAP80993, located on Tower Ranch Drive, Kelowna, B.C., from the MRL - Multiple Unit
Residential (Low Density) designation to the S2ZRES - Single/Two Unit Residential
designation; from the PARK - Park and Open Space (public) designation to the S2RES -
Single / Two Unit Residential designation; from the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential- Hillside designation to the MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
designation; from the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential- Hillside designation to the
PARK - Major Park and Open Space (public) designation; from the PARK - Park and
Open Space (public) designation to the S2RESH - Single / Two Unit Residential -
Hillside designation; from the S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential designation to the
PARK - Park and Open Space (public) designation; from the PARK - Park and Open
Space (public) designation to the SZRES - Single/Two Unit Residential designation;
from the S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential designation to the S2RESH - Single/Two
Unit Residential - Hillside designation; and from the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential - Hillside designation to the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential
designation, as per Map “A” #3 and Map “A” #4 attached to and forming part of this
bylaw;

THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of a portion of Lot 4, Section 31, Township 27, ODYD, Plan
KAP80993, located on Tower Ranch Boulevard, Kelowna, B.C., from the S2RESH -
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside designation to ‘the REC - Private Recreation
(private) designation; from the REC - Private Recreation (private) designation to the
S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside designation; from the S2RESH -
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside designation to the PARK - Major Park and Open
Space (public) designation; from the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside
designation to the PSU - Public Services / Utilities designation; from the REC - Private
Recreation (private) designation to the PSU - Public Services / Utilities designation as
per Map “A” #1 and Map “A” #2 attached to and forming part of this bylaw;

116



3. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of a portion of Lot 5, Section 31, Township 27, ODYD, Plan
KAP80993, located on Tower Ranch Drive, Kelowna, B.C., from the PARK - Major Park
and Open Space (public) designation to the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential -
Hillside designation; and from the PARK - Major Park and Open Space (public)
designation to the SZRES - Single/Two Unit Residential designation as per Map “A” #4
attached to and forming part of this bylaw;

4. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of a portion of part of Tower Ranch Drive, located south of 1511
Tower Ranch Drive, being approximately 520 m?, from the PSU - Public Service Utilities
designation to the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside designation; and
from the REP - Resource Protection Area designation to the S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential - Hillside designation, as per Map “A” #5 attached to and forming part of
this bylaw;

5. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 10" day of November, 2014.

Considered at a Public Hearing on the 9*" day of December, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 9" day of December, 2014,

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

117



Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH)

to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

e Ty S
OO 263

p 9.
9.0.¢.9.9,
0.9.9.9.9.0.0:9.
(196 % % %% %% S

SRS

SRS

LRSS
RHIRRRHKS

R

Subject Property Notes;

Amend the OCP for portions of the subject property
from Single/Two Unit Resldential - Hillside (SZRESH)
to Private Recreational (REC).

| |:
MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
OCP14-0015 Map# 1

Mutiplo Unit Residsntial (Low Density) [ 82RESH to PARK
Privata Recraational S2RESH to REC
Single / Two Unit Residentisl [T Lagat Parest LT
Single | Two Unkt Residential - Hilside \: t:‘{
A 1
5 r gt infarm shly. it ey
Oy o
accuraty, G atlan she: L] K -
elo
f . i whna
m——rtetes Rav. Oct 28, 2014

118



Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for portions ef the subject property
from Private Recreational (REC) to
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (SZRESH).

.

; 9. 9. 0.0.v,.v, v . -

050707676 6.0 20 20 0 e e N

:ozot SXRK RRHHHKKRRR S~
QR XA AKX XLRRIIRIKIR N

-

. \‘1&‘;“
Subject Property Notes: / ¥
Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside ($2RESH) _ \
to Private Recreational (REC). I ~\

N\
l

N\

Subject Property Notes:

|
| |Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject propert
| [|from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

| Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property|
from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH)
|to Public Service Utilities (PSU).

|
\ Subject Property Notes: |
Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH)

[to Private Recreational (REC).

Amend the OCP for a portion
\ of the subject property from
Private Recreational (REC)

\.
to Public Service Utilities (PSU).

E RECto PSU Private Recrastional

S2RESHto PARK | Logal Parcal
3 [IT1] $2rESH 0 PSU

| KXX 62RESHto REC
| This map bs for general informatian only.

The CHty of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

|
1
[ 20 4. .
i Rev. 0ct29, 2014

REC fo S2RESH Single / Two Unit Residential - Hiliside

|
MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
OCP14-0015 Map# 2

119



Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) (MRL)
to Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES).

XK NR
AR
. 0. 0.9.9.¢
LI
0000000
SERRRRRK] ,
000’0‘0.0’0.‘0’(5 Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
S¢S CRRAXKX, from Major Park and Open Space (PARK)

<)

Subject Property Notes:

3:0:006’00000 4 to S:ngle!Two Unit Residential (S2RES).
>‘0 AN
PSSR . .
.. 0.¢. 0.9 Subject Property Notes:
RZRRRR]
10.0.9.0.0.0.¢ ; ; e
;*0‘0‘000.0’0‘4 Amend the OCP for a partion of the subject property|
| )’0‘0.0‘0‘00004 i from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH)
,":’:0:’0 ,:f-.* to Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density).
4 ' (] |
PRSI
S 0. 00. 6,
R32ERRRN
9.9.9.0.9.0. WA
‘Q:Q:’:.:¢" MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
:&:.:.:.:q OCP14-0015 Map# 3
Q:Q»:Q:Q:Qz‘ Muliple Unit Resldential (Low Dernshy) MRLto S2RES
X 000000000 ) I Major Park and Opan Space PARK to S2RES
““*‘.‘"““ Privale Recrantionsl £XX] s2resH to MRL
.0, ’ ’ 0 A Single / Two Unit Residentinl
celelelelels,
: 0’0’0’0’0’0’ X Single / Two Unit Residentiel - Hilsida
RORRS | B, ot
9. 9,9, 0‘000; . = i eiowna

“‘t X

etres Rav. Oct 28, 2014

120



Subject Property Notes:

| of the subject property from
| Single # Two Unit Residentiat (SZRES)
to e

| | Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject prope
| from Major Park and Open Space (PARK)
to Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES).

Amend the OCP:for a portion ' V. Subject Property Notes:

| Amend the OCP for portions of the subject property
from Single/ Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH)

L to Single/Two Unit Residential (SZRES).
Subject Property Notes:

[ Amend the 0cP for portions of the subject property |
from Single/Two Unit Residential - Hitlside (S2RESH)|

| to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for.a portion of the subject propert '
from Major Park and Open Space (PARK) to
Single/Two Unit Residential-Hillside (S2RESH),

Amend the OCP for a portion
of the subject property from

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for portions of the subject propeity
from Single/Two Unit Residéntial - Hillside (S2ZRESH)

Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES)
to Single/Two Unit Residential-Hillside

Amend the OCP for portions of the subject property
from Major Park and Open Space {PARK) to
Single/Two Unit Residential Hillside (S2RESH).

Subject Property Notes:

MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT

OCP14-0015 Map# 4

[ITT1) parK to s27ES
PARK to S2RESH
=] s2rES 10 PARK
KTIN] szres 1o S2RESH |

K] s2RESH 10 S2RES

T mag e for gensead infarmatian snly,
The el
It

tam should be vaellled,

SZRESHIo PARK [ | Legal Parcal

[ Major Park and Open Space
Private Recreational
Single / Two Unil Residential
| Single / Two Unit Rasidential - Hillside f’a\%
T
City of i;-.;—"x'y
Kelowna
Rev. Oct 29, 2014

121



Amend the OCP for a portion of the road right of way

from Resource Protection (REP) to
| Single/ Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

Subject Property Notes:

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the road right of way
from Public Service Utflities (PSU) to
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT

OCP14-0015 Map# 5

[ Major Park arid Open Space | tegat Parcat

PSU to S2RESH

|| Public Service Utiitles
RXX REP to 52RESH

Private Recrentional

Resource Pratection

Eingle / Two Unit Residential

Single./ Two Unit Residentinl - Hillside

]

i

4
"
T T done e ot gt s Gityof \i?
Kelowna

accurity. All iormatien thould be verified,

26 .
lﬁ‘}«wms Rev. Oct 29,7014

122



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: December 23, 2014 Kelowna

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (RS)

Application: Z10-0028 Owner: Lyall Watson Grexton
Address: 1020 Graham Road Applicant: Peter Chataway
Title: Rezoning Extension Application and Adoption of Bylaw No. 10551
Existing Zone: RU1 - Large Lot Housing

Proposed Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for
the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551(Z10-0028), Lot 43, Section 22, Township 26,
ODYD, Plan 28367 located at 1020 Graham Road, Kelowna, BC be extended from July 11, 2014 to
July 11, 2015;

AND THAT Council waives the requirement for a Development Variance Permit to be considered
in conjunction with final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551;

AND FURTHER THAT Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551 be forwarded for adoption consideration.
2.0 Purpose

To extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551 from July 11, 2014 to July
11, 2015; To consider waiving the requirement for a Development Variance Permit and to adopt
Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10551 in order to rezone the subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot
Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to permit the construction of a second
single-family dwelling on the subject property.

3.0 Urban Planning Department

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that:

123



710-0028 - Page 2

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older
and has been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater:

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be
notified in writing that the file will be closed;
b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect;

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the
agenda of a meeting of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw
associated with that Amendment application.

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedures Bylaw makes provision for Council to consider an extension to
an amending bylaw for up to a period of twelve (12) months.

By-Law No. 10551 received second and third readings on July 26, 2011 after the Public Hearing
held on the same date. The bylaw has received three (3) prior extensions from Council, the latest
of which expired on July 11, 2014.

This is the third extension that the applicant has requested. The requested extension would
afford reasonable time in which to allow for the application to be presented to Council for
adoption of the rezoning bylaw application no. 10551.

The applicant has made some adjustments to the proposed development of the site and therefore
the Development Variance Permit is no longer required.

The Urban Planning Branch recommends Council consider the subject request for an extension
favourably, waives the requirement for the Development Variance Permit, and that Council adopt
the zone amending bylaw. The applicant has addressed the technical requirements made the
necessary payments and no further conditions remain outstanding. Staff will monitor the file
through the Development Permit and Building Permit processes to ensure compliance with the
Zoning Bylaw (file was generated as a result of bylaw enforcement action).

Report prepared by:

Ryan Smith - Manager, Urban Planning

Approved for Inclusion: I:l Ryan Smith - Manager, Urban Planning

Attachments:
Subject Property Map

124



Map Output Page 1 of 1
Application
Z10-0028
I Subject Property
J s R

cP
cP |cP | CP
20 111

2

1

PLAN 12346

3
@
AMIAK DD

MARY CT

2=

A B
35078 |PL. 7495

alBl4|s

B
o
42p36| 28567 [ 5, 11 5 ['3absol &
20| |18 13
15 (14 11 47 |46 {45 7P
19 17 12 L.28367) (K168
THEODORA RD
2 .24 BB oy 5 32[ 3 kezs
23 PL.28367 |28 30 |31 - il > 15
11 P2 PLAN 28367 | B @ ( planf17ds
5 cP |a S ; & C (D5 |43
= YR 314 7 =z
5| 4|3 ‘FAUQ 2 2 ;0 (;36 39 RUB |2] ]+ - o |71
116 ol s \Up A | |°Planfarzge |
O RAHAM RD (%)
A 1o 2 |3
PL.1984 1PLAN 24068 bogls 3 1
B 2 9619 L.26065 EREAE {!7'
L.30181, 5 4 3 2 L1816
o : o 3 32133 |34 |35
A CP ” 36
A 4 3 BRIAN RQ
A
. P3 % - .2 37 39 P2
aw 25, 26 38 40
3 HAL2813 S N 55 i ee]
9o | 8 3 . ==
P s ¥ 3 Z AL19761 s | o\ oP
~
5 4 . g
¢ // 6 = 43
7 17 [ /5 )& 7 AR\ %2 A
14 i 10
3 4""25‘9 13 é\Q A /%8 11 51
7 8 9 18 /? B (Y B o=
19 /20 % 12 @ 50 T 1
12 c o, %
21 # 6 /\)\ 49 \ 4 ;8 2
2 B 13 R 47 3
4135 LR S 38 . ’8)
1 |- 37 2 4 A 2 S 1
<
LZA 23003 N < 5 21 e
3 i 35 ) 5
4 | 40 26 > A
K, 42 N % ” 1 Z
ORY Rp~L* % s X 2B % >y e ) |3
43
8 4“4 1 L
em 32 3 . 13
2010-04-15

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.

http://kelintranetb/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clien... 4/15/2010

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

125



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10551
Z10-0028 - Lyall Grexton
1020 Graham Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 43, Section 22, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 28367 located on Graham
Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling
Housing zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 30" day of May, 2011.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 26" day of July, 2011.
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 26" day of July, 2011.
Approved under the Transportation Act this 2" day of August, 2011.

R.M. Clifford
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

- Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

126

S .



Report to Council

City of
Kelowna

Date: January 5, 2015

Rim No. 1700-20

To: City Manager

From: Genelle Davidson, Financial Services Director

Subject: 2015 Financial Plan

Recommendation:

THAT Council receives, for information, the presentation from the Financial Services Director
and the Capital Assets and Investment Manager dated January 5, 2015 with respect to the
2015 Financial Plan.

Purpose:

To provide an overview of the 2015 Financial Plan.

Background:

See attached memo.

Submitted by:

Genelle Davidson, CPA, CMA
Financial Services Director

Approved for inclusion: Rob Mayne, Divisional Director, Corporate & Protective
Services

Attachments:

City Manager’s 2015 Financial Plan Memo
Powerpoint Presentation

cc:

Capital Assets and Investment Manager

127



Memo —

AATZINN
W i

City of \exF
Kelowna

Date: December 5, 2014
File: 1700-20

To: Mayor and Councillors
From: City Manager

Subject: 2015 FINANCIAL PLAN

| am pleased to present the provisional 2015 Financial Plan to Council. The 2015 budget focus is to
foster a corporate culture of innovation and continuous improvement while providing the highest value
when delivering Council priorities.

The Financial Plan also represents responsible choices that follow through on the City’s priorities while
keeping property taxes and fees affordable. Each Division has reviewed and identified key programs,
service and projects that meet our priorities and provide value for citizens.

| would like to acknowledge the effort put forth by the Leadership Team, their Managers and staff,
along with the Financial Services Financial Planning team in the preparation of budget submissions.
Budgeting for results means starting with the results the public want and balancing them with what the
public is willing to pay for those results. This year’s budget presented a number of challenges to
deliver on our plans to enhance citizens’ quality of life through community safety, continuing to grow
the local economy, and to give citizens the services they expect.

Our objective as a local government is to give all citizens the best quality of life we can afford while
shifting our existing resources to high-priority services. The 2015 Financial Plan provides for basic
operating cost increases and continued investment in infrastructure, particularly the new police service
building. The recommendation presented is for a 1.7% increase for City operations and capital and
1.77% for the new Police Services Building and Police contract cost increases, for a total 3.47% tax
increase for 2015. This tax increase recognizes the need for intergenerational equity for a unique
facility and the desire of our citizens to maintain and improve public safety.

The development of the 2015 Financial Plan has followed the focus provided by Council in its “Moving
Opportunities Forward” priority setting process along with the traditional citizen service demands from
the Community Strategic Plan.

Focus on Results

Strong, innovative leadership

Partnership opportunities will continue to bolster accomplishments with fresh new ideas to accelerate
projects and make City resources go farther. In 2015, that emphasis will continue with the building of
the Okanagan Innovation Centre, the Centennial Park redevelopment and the funding partnership to
complete John Hindle Drive two years ahead of schedule at a reduced cost to the City. The Healthy

2015 Financial Plan Page V

128



City Partnership is a collaborative research partnership with the University of BC Okanagan campus and
the Interior Health Authority that will help all three organizations understand the relationship between
healthy citizens and performance of the built environments.

This collaborative approach is being extended to organizations operating City-owned recreation
facilities to ensure better maintenance and long-term improvements. Some examples include the
Kelowna Outrigger Canoe Club Association (Kelowna Paddle Centre), Kelowna Minor Fastball Association
(High Noon Ball Park) and Major Men’s Fastball Association (King Stadium).

Innovative use of technology continues to improve citizen interactions with the City of Kelowna. Our
Online Service Requests System processed more than 19,000 requests from the public in 2014 for
services or information, while access to and interaction with the Annual Report is improving by moving
to an online version that includes hyperlinks to additional information sources, videos and info
graphics.

Enhance Citizen’s quality of life

Protective services & safety

Innovative technology is also advancing methods to enhance public safety, with new predictive
modeling and mapping tools to identify crime patterns, or data that shows locations of medical first-
responses for more efficient deployment and allocation of firefighters. The replacement of an aging
fire truck will reduce increased maintenance costs while improving services provided.

The RCMP’s coordination of the Downtown Enforcement Unit has increased police presence in the
downtown with foot patrols and increased bicycle patrols in parks and in 2015 the Kelowna RCMP will
continue to focus efforts to reduce illicit drugs on the streets through arrests and seizures.

Six new RCMP staff will be in place in 2015, three of these resulting from the Crime Reduction Financial
Strategy created by Council in 2012 to begin to bring RCMP staffing to a level appropriate for a city the
size of Kelowna. With the increased mitigation of crime provided by these additional RCMP officers
follows the need for incremental administrative support and this is provided for.

After the successful completion of the alternative approval process in 2014, work will progress in the
year ahead on the contract to design and build the Police Services Building within the total budget of
$48M. The detailed statement of requirements has been provided to the short-listed design-build teams
who will employ their expertise to prepare designs and estimates for the development of this
specialized facility that meets the project requirements in a cost competitive manner. The project
schedule is to award the contract by April 2015 with construction substantially complete and the
facility operational by spring 2017.

Storm drainage improvements that include the design and construction of manholes, headwalls and
mains to divert storm water are planned at various priority locations throughout the City.

Grow our Economy

Development & revitalization

In 2015 we expect the general improvement in the development environment to continue. A total of
2,023 building permits valued at $331M were issued through November 2014. This compares to 1,876
permits valued at $320M in 2013. The City’s highest value for building permits was recorded in 2007,
where 2,139 permits were issued with a value of $586 million (Jan-Nov). In 2015, a one-time revenue
increase of $400,000 is included in the Development Services area to reflect actual experience and
expectations for 2015, and then in 2016 will be reduced to a $300,000 increase.

2015 Financial Plan Page VI

129



Passenger activity at the Kelowna International Airport in 2014 will again set a new record with a
growth rate of approximately 5% over 2013. The Airport will eclipse the “Drive to 1.6 Million
Passengers” one full year ahead of the medium range master plan forecast. The Airport Master Plan
Land Development Guideline to be undertaken in 2015 will provide a land inventory and identify
revenue and economic growth opportunities through future development of City of Kelowna airport
lands.

The capital projects required to service growth are identified in the 20 year Servicing Plan and
Financing Strategy which was last updated in 2010. The project costs included in this plan require
upgrading to ensure the development cost charge rates are set at a fair market value and that the City
will receive sufficient revenue to fund these infrastructure improvements for development servicing.
This DCC capital cost project update is budgeted at $150,000.

Active Living & Culture
The City of Kelowna takes full advantage of our natural environment and climate to enhance citizens’
quality of life with waterfront pathways, clean beaches and investments in parks and public spaces.

The Knox Mountain park improvements will provide public recreation in a sustainable manner that
respects the high environmental value of the park. The improvements to the trail system will reduce
user conflicts, provide for the environmental restoration of eroded areas and the installation of way-
finding sighage. The Ponds trail building partnership continues the top-of-ravine trail along Bellevue
Creek and is part of the Bellevue Creek Greenway that will eventually lead to Crawford Falls.

The Kelowna Community Theatre will upgrade the theatres stage lighting in order to meet the
requirements of touring performers as well as to improve the visual component of the productions.

Transit, transportation and parking

Improved accessibility and user comfort at bus stop locations will encourage ongoing use. There is a
$635,500 budget provision for additional base funding in 2015 for increased operating costs to support
transit management and labour, fuel, maintenance and fees.

There are six priority sidewalk expansion projects with funding of $600,000 through taxation and
reserve identified in 2015 that will improve pedestrian safety, accessibility and comfort.

The first segment of the Ethel Street active transportation corridor is planned to begin in 2015 at a
total budget of $1.6M and will provide a safe, accessible and convenient walking and cycling route.

A transportation initiative to improve pedestrian and cycling safety near Anne McClymont School by
adding sidewalks, curb and gutter, lighting and other safety features along with the proposed
continuous three lanes, bus pull-outs and pathways are all expected to improve traffic flow through
this congested section. The total budget is $4.48M.

Ongoing road resurfacing is required to maintain an acceptable operating level of service and preserve
our asset. The 2015 priorities include Rutland Road North and South, KLO, Sexsmith and Baron Road,
Abbott and Richter Street, and Dilworth Drive and Lawrence Avenue.

The $241,000 investment in additional parking for the South Pandosy area and replacement of outdated
parking meter technology in the downtown area will improve parking efficiencies.

2015 Financial Plan Page VII

130



Deliver on our plan

Connected & engaged community

The City’s current Planning continuum calls for master planning works to be completed prior to the
next Official Community Plan (OCP) update in 2017. The Transportation Modeling and Master Plan
update budget of $200,000 will provide necessary input to this OCP update.

We continue to expand opportunities to engage with citizens on a wide variety of topics and projects.
Our Communications group works with all departments to maintain a vast amount of City information
online at kelowna.ca. Social media channels feed into the City of Kelowna’s website to ensure
convenient, mobile access to information. Communicating with citizens is essential to ensure broad
awareness among residents of complex projects and initiatives. By doing this, we clarify expenditures
and expectations to meet community goals for Kelowna. Continuing with e-Subscribe, ‘City Views’,
social media, quarterly reports to Council and the annual report are some of the ways we provide
information to the public. Public engagement through satisfaction surveys, open houses and other
participation methods also ensure we are keeping residents and businesses informed.

Sound, financial management

Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery is more than 100 years old and much of the infrastructure is aging.
The Cemetery master plan will include plans for the site over the next 25 years. Phase 1 of the
renovation includes the Bennett Memorial and a geotechnical analysis on a section of the property. This
project is budgeted at $660,000.

Annual funding is in place to mitigate the loss of annual taxation revenues due to the BC Assessment
Authority (BCAA) property assessment appeal process that is wholly managed by BCAA where annual
loss to roll risk is approximately 0.37%.

Revenue & Expenditure Pressures

A focus for 2015 is to maintain the current level of service in the operating departments with an
increase in service provided for in the protective services police area. Economic pressures continue to
influence external revenue sources, and increases to the risk to roll provision account for a decrease in
overall general revenues.

Provincial gaming revenues are projected to remain stable, building permit revenues continue to show
growth, and the 1% in lieu of property taxes from Utility companies is projected to increase. A
reduction of revenues is forecast for Fortis BC franchise fees.

On the expenditure side most areas have slight inflationary or contract increases and increases to
maintain recently developed new capital. As growth and service requests increase there is a need to
increase staffing in areas that previously had vacancies or are experiencing increased workloads.
Efficiency changes are made and different options to provide service are examined prior to submitting
a request to increase staff.

Other Challenges

The increase in tax revenues generated from new construction is estimated at $1.6M. This is higher
than the $1.45M received in 2014. The average new construction revenue received over the last five
years is $1.5M. Final assessment information will not be available until April 2015 and any adjustments
required to this estimate will be applied at Final Budget in early May.

The Pay-As-You-Go capital program is decreased from the 2014 level. Council strategy has been to
provide 40% of new construction revenue towards the taxation capital program which, in 2015, would
normally require an increase of $640,000 to the taxation capital program. This was not able to be
achieved this year while meeting the goal of reducing the taxation requirement. As a consequence,
there is greater pressure on the 10 Year Capital Plan, as other funding is required or projects must be

2015 Financial Plan Page VI

131



deferred beyond the projected year of need. Grant funding obtained over the last few years and
reserve funding has helped to mitigate the shortfall and come closer to the Council strategy.

The 2014 Final Budget resulted in a General Taxation Demand of $107.7 Million that included a Pay-As-
You-Go capital expenditure program of $13.9M or 13% of the General Taxation Demand. The
percentage is down from previous years as many projects previously considered capital are now funded
through the operating component of the budget to meet mandated government reporting
requirements.

The Pay-As-You-Go capital expenditure program of $12.9M represents 11% of the projected General
Taxation Demand of $113.9M for 2015. The total General Fund capital expenditure program, including
funding from all sources, is budgeted at $39.8M in 2015.

Reserve Position

The judicious use and replacement of reserves remains paramount to the financial health of the City.
There is a long history of maintaining a number of reserve accounts and funds that are critically
important in order to achieve a number of objectives including:

e Replacement of equipment

e Averaging of expenditures that are partially unpredictable from year to year (i.e. snow and ice
control, spring sweeping)

e Funding of emergent repairs or replacement or unanticipated revenue loss

e Saving for eventual purchase of goods or construction of projects that would result in an
unacceptable taxation impact in any one year

Reserve funding has helped the City take advantage of opportunities for grant funding and provides the
flexibility to react quickly to opportunities. However, this use has reduced the reserve balances and
the replacement of reserve funds to prepare for future capital projects is an ongoing challenge.

Debt Management

Although a few communities have targeted debt-free balance sheets, the effective use of debt for
specific projects can more accurately reflect the benefit of assets acquired by debt financing to
existing and future citizens while removing spikes in taxation requirements. Council’s adopted strategy
is to keep tax supported debt servicing to no greater than 5% of each tax dollar collected. Taxpayers
have most recently approved debt financing for the Ellis Street Parkade ($15M) and the Police Services
Building (542M).

The overall net general debt servicing costs (including internal financing) of $3,706,019 for 2015
represents an increase of $1,262,881 from the 2014 budgeted amount. This represents 3.3% of the 2015
projected general taxation demand.

Property Assessments

The annual assessment roll has not been completed yet but preliminary indications are that City of
Kelowna residential property values, on average, are 3.5% higher than 2014. The market change for the
Industrial and Business classes is expected to be approximately 1.4% higher than last year’s value.

As occurs annually, there will be properties that experience a greater taxation impact if their property
assessment increase is greater than the average for their class. Adjustments between the property
classes can be mitigated by our tax distribution policy that will be presented to Council in April, 2015.

2014 Accomplishments

In the A section there is a summary of 2014 City of Kelowna accomplishments that highlights most of
the major areas of operation.

2015 Financial Plan Page IX

132



As well, the City and city staff were the recipients of a number of awards and recognition in 2014
including:

e B.C. Small Business Roundtable’s Open for Business Award for the second consecutive year

e |ABC Gold Quill Excellence Award for My Downtown: Bernard Avenue Revitalization Community
Engagement

e PIBC Gold Award in the category of Planning Practice - City & Urban Areas for the Bernard
Avenue Revitalization

e International Downtown Association (IDA) Downtown Pinnacle Award for the Bernard Avenue
Revitalization

e Best of the Best Tap Water taste challenge by BC Water & Wastewater Association

e Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for
2014, the highest form of recognition in governmental budgeting and represents a significant
achievement for the organization

e GFOA’s Canadian Award for Financial Reporting for the City’s December 31, 2012 Annual
Financial Report

e The Building & Permitting Branch achieved building department accreditation with the
International Accreditation Service, becoming the only accredited building department in
Canada

e City of Kelowna’s building department practices recognized as best practices by International
Accredited Services

e Crystal Moose Award for Most Improved Landfill in BC for Glenmore Landfill

o WorkSafeBC and BC Municipal Safety Association Certificate of Recognition, which carries with
it a financial incentive of more than $125,000 annually so long as it is maintained, joining the
ranks of 17 other BC municipalities for excellence in occupational health & safety

e North American Occupational Safety and Health (NAOSH) Week Steering Committee BC
Government Category Award

e Green Communities Committee Level 2 recognition - ‘Measurement’

| am proud of the work that our staff and leadership team provide toward ensuring Kelowna becomes the
best mid-size City in North America.

A comparison with any city would show that the City of Kelowna is a top performer with high service levels,
strong financial management and relatively low taxation for the quality and number of services provided.

The City, as a collective team of Council and staff, continue to look for innovative ways to provide services
while remaining disciplined about controlling costs in our development of a safe, active and sustainable
city.

Yours very truly,

R.L. (Ron) Mattiussi, MCIP
City Manager

2015 Financial Plan Page X

133



2015 FINANCIAL PLAN
COUNCIL, JANUARY 12, 2015

- TTS—— R




AGENDA

» Taxation Impact
» General Fund
» Operating & Capital
» Municipal Funds
» Water, Wastewater, Natural Gas, Airport

» Reserves & Debt
» Assessment & Tax

135



NALYSIS OF TAX DEMAN

$ Millions 2014 201
Operating $105.5 :
General revenues -11.8 -11.7
Taxation capital 13.9 12.8
$107.6 113.9
New construction revenue -1.45 -1.60
New BCAA Desktop revenue - -.9§

Protective Services .64
Other 1.85

Tax Increase 2.49%

1.70
3.47%




2015 BASE BUDGET CHANGES

» 2014 budget impacts:

Annualized $ 957,000
One-time 75,000
» Department changes 37,000
» Other adjustments 75,000
Base changes $1,144,000

/

137



2015 OPERATING BUDGET

» General Revenue $ 246,600
» Expenditure Reductions -670,800
» P1 Operating Requests 6,859,900

Operating Changes $6,435,700/

138




2015 TAXATION CAPITAL

» Pay-As-You-Go Tax Capital $12,847,000
» Change from 2014 (1,095,000)

J

Police Services Building $48M

$42M debt financed, $3.2M principal &

Interest payments phased in over 3 years
139




2015 BUDGET SUMMARY

014 Decisions $1.1 M
2015 Operating Budget 6.2 M
Operating Change 7.3 M
2015 Tax Capital (1.1)M
New Construction Rev. (1.6)M
New BCAA Desktop Rev. (0.9M

New Taxation Demand $3.7M
Protective Services 1.77%
Other 1.70%

Tax Increase 3.47%

140



TOTAL REVENUE

GEMNERAL REVENUES

"$347rn”“0n OTHER REVENUE 5% 3%

» Taxation demand
$113.9 million

TAXATION
33%

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
23%

PARCEL TAXES
INTERDEPT. TRANSFERS 2% 1%
GRANTS 4%

FEES AND CHARGES
29%

141



OPERATING (GENERAL FUND)

CIVIC OPERATIONS

POLICE SERVICES
FIRE
ACTIVELIVING & CULTURE
STRATEGIC SERVICES
CORPORATE & PROTECTIVE SERVICES
DEBT & OTHER

COMMUNICATIONS &...

COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL..
INFRASTRUCTURE

HUMAN RESOURCES & CORP...

CITY ADMINISTRATION

$112.85 M 42

kelowna.ca




2015 CAPITAL REVIEW

Infrastructure Planning

11:\.\.\
I
{4 ¢

\ 4

CltyOf \\A <4
Kelowna

v

‘X




Infrastructure Today

e 810 kms of paved roads, sidewalks, bridges, and traffic control,
e 410 kms water mains, PRV’s and booster stations,

e 590 kms sewer mains and 33 lift stations,

e 380 kms storm water mains and 68 detention ponds,
e 5 water pump stations and 24 reservoirs,

e 2 wastewater treatment plants,

e 118 Buildings and Facilities (approx. 1.6 M Sq Ft),

e 220 park locations (920 Ha of parkland),

e Fleet Vehicles,

e Transit Facilities,

e Regional Landfill and Solid Waste Compost facility,

e International Airport.

144



Replacement Value of Infrastructure System

Solid Waste $39 million

Transit 58‘3 million Fleet 535‘6 million

/ /Parks $102 million

Wastewater

5781 million \

Buildings & Facilities
$246 million

Stormwater
$303 million
N
Water
Transportation $370 million

S666 million

Infrastructure Value
$2 55 billion 145

kelowna.ca



BALANCING CAPITAL DEMANDS

CAPITAL COSTS FU NG

{

TVMINITY
HLMOYUS
dVO M3IN

»
b

—————————— S— 146



CAPITAL BUDGET CHALLENGES

» $12.85 M - Available Taxation for Capital Projects.
» Reserves are low and are being maximized to support capital

» Future borrowing commitments for Police Services Building
limit borrowing capacity

147



BUDGET PROCESS

2020 Capital Plan

Initial Uptake

Project MBL Analysis
Detailed Project Costing
Hand-off to Finance
City Manager Review

v Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv

148



2015 CAPITAL COSTS

_ . Water Real Estate o
VehI;cIe.& MOtblle 1,495,000 1,846,400 Building
quipmen . 0 0 4,143,500
1321,59_ _'lre ‘% I % 9% Parks
3% 635,000  Wastewater 2,520,000

B 4,985,000
\-_-._“_.".' 11% II

e

Information Services 5%
791,000
2%
Street
Light
100,000
0%
Solid
Waste
1,550,000
3%
Storm Drainage
1,060,000
2%

P1 REQUESTS = $46.3 M 149




2015 TAXATION REQUESTS

Street Light |nformation Fire
100,000 Services Vehicle & 95,000 Real Estate
1% 791,000 Mobile 1% 200,000

6% Equipment 1%

Storm Drainage 0%

1,060,000
8%

P1 TAX FUNDING =$12.85 M

150




PERCENT OF BUDGET SPENT ON NEW
VERSUS RENEWAL OF EXISTING
INFRASTRUCTURE

151



Measures

Total Projects (P1)

122

117

CAPITAL BUDGET COMPARISON

2013

97

Provisional Budget $56.0M $61.4M $67.6M
Total Taxation $16.4M $15.4M $14.0M
Fed/Prov Grants $OM $12.6M $3.4M
Final Budget $0.5M $0.6M| ($12.7M)
Total Budget $56.5M $62.0M $54.8M
Emphasis Landfill Bernard
Entrance, Revite,
Transit Transit

*Airport Capital not included.

2015

102
$46.3M
$12.9M

$7.2M

TBD

TBD

John
Hindle,
Lakeshore
Rd

152



OTHER MUNICIPAL FUNDS

» Water Utility
» Wastewater Utility
» Natural Gas Fund

» Kelowna International Airport




WATER UTILITY

» Revenue $13.3 M
» Operating Cost $9.1 M
» Capital Program $1.4 M




» Revenue
» Operating Cost
» Capital Program

Planned Surplus

WASTEWATER UTILITY




NATURAL GAS

» Revenue $4.3M

» Operating Cost $4.6 M

» Capital Program $0.0 M
Planned Deficit ($304,00(B

156




AIRPORT

» Revenue

» Operating Cost

» Capital Program
Planned Surplus

___Yourtingtothe Ayl

- Y = —
2 i B . =



EXPENDITURES (BY FUND)

TOTAL$347M  wastewater \Vater NatUral Gas
<238 $13.5 S4.6

Airport
$76.3

General Fund
S229

158



RESERVES AND DEBT




RESERVE BALANCES (MILLIONS $°5)

160-i;:

140 - W Other

120 W Airport

1(833 : M Electrical
60 - M Sewer
40 - W Water
20 - M Statutory
0 | | | | | M General

=20 _//5010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2

-40 e

$142  $147  $142 $94 $107  $90
160

kelowna.ca



GENERAL FUND

Net Debt

$10,000,000

6.8% P
$8,000,000 ~ 6.3%

/ \/
$6,000,000
4.0% J %
S4,000,000
3.5% /
$2,000,000

2.2%

SO I I I I I I I I I I |

2000 2005 2010 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020161

kelowna.ca



ASSESSMENT & TAX




ASSESSMENT VS TAXATION REVENU

» Assessment $25.3 B » Revenue $113.9 M

Other .

) 0.6% Industrial
Indust”al : 25%
1.3% Other

0.5%

Commerical
14.8%

163



I TAXATION IMPACT

» Average Single Family Home assessed at
$467,330

» Municipal Tax est. $1,791.90 for 2015
» Increase of approx $60.00

» Also a solid waste reduction charge of
$35 for all residential units

164



2014 TAX INFORMATION

> (5K
5 052 M Parcel Tax/Fees
5,000 - W Total Res Variable Rate Taxes
4,464
4,000 - 408 3642
3,137
3,250 2 959
3,000 - 2626
2,000 -
1,000 -
O 1 [ [ [ [ [ [
I P 2SS N \ & & S K @
o \\}Q’b (\&A 0\‘.}@ \\@o A.\(,}o c,)'b'bo X P \@Q‘\b o 6“2’\0 Q}°$ Q,b@ & @\Oo .g\\\“
165

kelowna.ca


http://www.co.el-dorado.ca.us/photos.html�

» Inside the City Budget

Where does
the money Where the

come from¢ £ £ g W= Money goes

Documen

Budget
Centre

Process

kelowna.ca/budget

166

kelowna.ca


http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/page12.aspx�
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/page13.aspx�
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/page10.aspx�
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/page11.aspx�
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/page19.aspx�

FINANCIAL PLAN REVIEW




Report to Council

City of
Kelowna

Date: January 6, 2015

File: 1850-20

To: City Manager

From: Director, Corporate Business Ventures

Subject: South Perimeter Road - Results of Public Engagement
Recommendation:

THAT Council receives for information the report of the Director of Corporate Business
Ventures dated January 6, 2015 with respect to South Perimeter Rd, Results of Public
Engagement;

AND THAT Council supports the accelerated design and construction of South Perimeter Rd on
the basis of the results of the community input;

AND THAT Council direct staff to work with the developers leading to fulfilling all conditions
required to allow accelerated delivery of this roadway;

AND FURTHER THAT Council direct staff, subject to the developers fulfilling all conditions
leading to design and construction of South Perimeter Rd, to bring forward 2015 final budget
submissions for the design and land acquisition leading to improvements to Stewart Rd West,
Saucier Rd, and Bedford Rd.

Purpose:

At the October 6, 2014 Regular Meeting, Council considered a proposal by the development
community to accelerate the design and construction of South Perimeter Road (SPR) between
Stewart Rd West and Gordon Drive. This report provides the results of the community input.

Background:

At the Regular meeting of Council on October 6, 2014, Council considered the staff report
regarding the above matter (see Appendix A). The development community has proposed to
accelerate the design and construction of this road for reasons outlined in that report.

Council concluded that community input was required since this acceleration would result in
delays to improvements to other roads identified in the SW Mission Sector B DCC Road Plan,
the City’s 2030 Official Community Plan and 20 Year Servicing Plan and Financing Strategy.

168



To seek the community’s input, the City implemented the following through quantitative and
qualitative methods:

1) Development of information on the City’s website including advertisement, social
media posts, an information video, ongoing updates and information circulars to those
interested through e-Subscribe

Hosting of an Open House on November 26 at the Capital News Center

Inviting email comments to spr@kelowna.ca up to Dec. 7

Media releases and interviews with various media outlets

Deployment of a statistically valid independent telephone survey of Mission residents

Ul N WN
N N N

Community response has been very good with over 2,051 page views (1,630 unique views) on
the City’s webpage, over 300 residents attended the Open House with 216 exit surveys
completed, a statistically valid telephone survey of 300 Mission residents successfully lead by
NGR Research (Appendix B) and numerous emails received with feedback and questions on the
proposal.

Summary of Results

Statistically Valid Survey

The statistically valid survey interviews were conducted November 27 to December 2. The
qualitative research was an important means to provide unbiased and reliable data to aid
Council’s decision making for a project of this magnitude. The data reflected in the report is
an accurate representation of the Mission area as a whole. Results carry a maximum margin of
error of +/-5.6% at the 95% level of confidence.

Respondents were asked to:
e Rate the overall capacity of the arterial roads under typical conditions in the Mission
area
e Describe the frequency of use
e Prioritize future road projects to be completed, and then gauge residents’ support for
the advancement SPR sooner than originally scheduled.

Initial road priorities, before introducing the proposal for SPR, were ranked by Mission
residents in the following order - Lakeshore Road (48%), South Perimeter (34%) and Casorso
Road (14%) as the first projects to be completed, with 4% not knowing/refused to answer.

Respondents were then informed of the proposal to advance SPR and the impact it would
have to timing of other area road projects. Interestingly 64% either strongly, or somewhat
supported, the advancement of SPR.

The full survey report is in Appendix B.
Qualitative results to this community input process were as follows:

Channel Supportive | Non Support | No Opinion
Open House Exit Surveys (208 responses) 62.5% 37.5% -

SPR Emails (43) 25 15 3
Mayor and Council Correspondence (12)

169


mailto:spr@kelowna.ca

Of the input received through email, face-to-face discussions with residents at the open
house and during one-on-one meetings, the majority of those in favour who provided
comment indicated their reasons were:
1) Provision of an alternate access in and out of the Upper Mission allowing reduced
traffic and congestion on Gordon and Lakeshore Roads in the lower Mission areas
2) Provision of larger commercial area in Upper Mission area which reduces travel
requirements to much farther locations to get these services.

Those who expressed opposition to this acceleration provided the following reasons:

1) Desire to see other lower Mission roads, particularly Lakeshore from Dehart to Old
Meadows, as well as Dehart Rd from Lakeshore to Gordon, fully upgraded prior to
constructing SPR.

2) Concerns that Stewart Rd West, Saucier and Bedford require improvements to safely
handle additional traffic as well as needing bike paths. Some felt that these
improvements are required before SPR should be connected.

3) Concerns with existing traffic conditions on Benvoulin and Casorso.

4) Concerns with the premature increase in traffic, speeding and noise in the Crawford
neighborhood area as well as risk to wildlife currently in the undeveloped and
agricultural areas.

A group of Crawford residents who, while not opposed to the road proceeding at this time,
continue to propose that the road be realigned. This was dealt with by Council at the October
6" meeting.

Both the Open House exit surveys and also the statistically valid Mission resident survey found
a majority of Mission residents support the accelerated construction of South Perimeter Road.
On the basis of this feedback, staff believes it appropriate to continue negotiations with the
proponents leading to construction of this roadway starting in 2015.

As indicated in the October 6™ staff report, and supported by community feedback, there are
concerns with the safety and traffic capacity of Stewart Rd West, Saucier and Bedford.
Upgrades to these roads are identified as part of the Sector A and B DCC Road Plan with some
$6.5 Million identified for improvements to curves, sightlines, intersections and provision of
bikepaths. Staff are recommending that, upon successful negotiations for SPR, budget
recommendations be brought forward to allow design, land acquisition and construction of
improvements to these roads. It is expected that upgrades to these roads would take
approximately three years to be fully completed.

Council approval for the accelerated design and construction of this roadway will trigger
further negotiations and steps with the developers. The developer will complete the
preliminary design of the roadway and seek public input during its development. Updated
project cost estimates will be reviewed by staff to ensure that the pricing reflects current
construction costs. Should the City and developer fail to reach an agreement to proceed with
the project, the City has agreed to reimburse costs for the preliminary design estimated at
$100,000 which will be paid through Sector B DCCs. This work is required regardless of when
the project proceeds.

There are a number of other steps required to be completed before the project can proceed.
The developers will also have to seek the formal approval of all major developers in the
Upper Mission for this project and its costs. With the commitment to construct this road

170



without taxpayer assist, the developer will also need to seek approval of the other Upper
Mission developers for a Sector B SW Mission Roads DCC increase to cover the costs previously
covered by the taxpayer. Staff will have to bring to Council new Roads DCC rates for Sector B
to collect the additional revenues. The developer will also need to arrange their own
financing and set up a formal agreement with the City for repayment over time for the
estimated $7.6 million project cost.

Should Council not support the recommendation to proceed with SPR at this time, staff have
provided an alternate recommendation below. As a result of the community input regarding
the need for improvements to the Stewart Rd West, Saucier, and Bedford Rd corridor staff
recommend that the preliminary design of proceed irrespective of whether SPR proceeds at
this time. This will allow establishment of the road alignment, property acquisition
requirements, required improvements and firm up cost estimates for this corridor.

Internal Circulation:

Director of Communications and Information Services
Director of Community Planning and Real Estate
Director of Corporate Services

Director of Financial Services

Director of Infrastructure

Director of Real Estate Services

Capital Assets and Investment Manager

City Clerk

Community Engagement Consultant

Deputy City Manager

Development Engineering Manager
Transportation and Mobility Manager

Financial/Budgetary Considerations:

1) While accelerated construction of SPR will not trigger direct costs to the City, it will
require the City to update the SW Mission Sector B Roads DCCs and amend the DCC
Bylaw to incorporate the additional costs developers have agreed to cover. This
increase will have to be approved by the developers, Council and the Provincial
Ministry.

2) Accelerated improvements to Stewart Rd West, Saucier and Bedford Roads have an
estimated cost of S6.5M. Funding is 50% from Sector A and Sector B DCC Roads
programs and will require a 15% assist ($975,000) from the City which is not currently
budgeted for in the 2015 Provisional Budget. It is estimated these improvements
would take some three years to implement due to the design, land acquisition and
related Agricultural Land Commission approvals, and construction. The taxpayer assist
would be budgeted in future years’ budgets as the project proceeds. There is funds
available in currently in the Sector A reserve while Sector B funds would be
accumulated over time.

3) The City will have to set up an agreement with the developer to make an annual
payments to the developer based on a portion of the Sector B Roads DCC funds
collected until the full estimated amount ($7.6M) is reimbursed.

Personnel Implications:

171



Delivery of the SPR would be managed through the Development Engineering Section of the
Community Planning and Real Estate Division. The Infrastructure Division would be required
to add the Stewart Rd corridor improvements to their 2015 work plan with support from the
Real Estate and Communications departments.

External Agency/Public Comments:
Numerous emails and comments have been submitted directly to Council and staff.
Communications Comments:

Both the South Perimeter Rd project and upgrades to Stewart Rd West corridor will trigger
the need for Open Houses to seek community input on the designs.

Alternate Recommendation:

THAT Council receives for information the report of the Director of Corporate Business
Ventures dated January 6, 2015 with respect to South Perimeter Rd, Results of Public
Engagement:

AND THAT Council not accept the offer from the development community to accelerate the
design and construction of South Perimeter Road;

AND THAT Council direct staff to bring forward for Council consideration a 2015 Final Budget
submission for the preliminary design of Stewart Rd West, Saucier, and Bedford Roads to be
funded from Sector A DCC Road Reserves.

Considerations not applicable to this report:
Legal/Statutory Authority:

Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements:
Existing Policy:

External Agency/Public Comments:

Submitted by:

John Vos, P. Eng.

Approved for inclusion: P. Macklem, Deputy City Manager

Attachments: 2014-10-01 Attachment - SW Mission Sector B Road Map
2014-10-01 Report - South Perimeter Rd

172



CcC:

2015-01-01 Presentation - South Perimeter Rd
2015-01-01 Presentation - SPR - NRG Survey Results Report

Director of Communications and Information Services
Director of Community Planning and Real Estate
Director of Corporate Services

Director of Financial Services

Director of Infrastructure

Director of Real Estate Services

Capital Assets and Investment Manager

City Clerk

Community Engagement Consultant

Deputy City Manager

Development Engineering Manager
Transportation and Mobility Manager

173



q\l Attachment 1: SW Mission Seétor B Road map $ /
N
/ $ /
A v ;
Lakeshore Bridge /
o (Wilson Creek) <, ®
/ 2 ‘% sorso Bridge
d’) . .
/.§ oy %\ ission Creek)
‘ < 1 o Lakeshore Bridge
211 (Mission Creek)
LEXINGTON pR I
@)
\ -2\
\ » :
g
O 7
4 Se % —
X
, / % B
__ Y K 8
& o
&eeo“ _é 8 ) ‘
g 2 €‘\P\‘ﬂ a a
) E b : :
K r : :
Dehart 2 2 8
V4 ~® 2 ? 3
& 2133 o ™ SAUCIER RD g
< 2 cf o
; & x S afl © a
Lakeshgre Bridge of . g : H B 2
(Belevue K 8 o & u &
Cregk) / - \ 5 2
42009 g™ g :
2 r - - “ s £
.50 S l T Gordon Brid!e :
¥ © Bellevue Cre s
s 5 ~ s Ty 4 z
o ~o BARNABY RD NN I ’,}\6
7 ¢ %
»w \
Frost 1
2400
(OKAVIEW RD
Inset Map I
I--'_-”
| |
v '/ ;
! / .’3
1! Y
{ 1= N W
) N4 DCC Roads
A T . .
(; P ) "y Triggers Overview
|| < L
f\f {, | . ——2 Lane
LB
I3y v >4 "! - - - 2 Lane (100% By Developer)
J ¢ < \“:.,--' 2 Lane and Centre Turn Lane ProcN
Y v y
/» {,) l (ﬁ N 4 Lane b y
4 e ; N i4
r'" // ’.. \\ -l'" misg_\tap 1'? If(orl genergl infortm:tion otnly._t C||t(y O; “"
L . ] aceuracy. Al information should be verified.
L’ == 0 260 400 e Ownq‘74
-C T Meters Rev. June 6/11




Report to Council

City of
Date: 10/1/2014 KEIowna.
File: 1850-20
To: City Manager
From: Director, Corporate Business Ventures

Subject: 2014-10-01 Report - South Perimeter Rd.docx

Recommendation:

THAT Council receives for information the report of the Director, Corporate Business Ventures
dated October 1, 2014, with respect to the Extension of Gordon Drive and South Perimeter
Road;

AND THAT Council approves in principle the accelerated design and construction of these
roadways under the conditions outlined in the report;

AND FURTHER THAT Council direct staff to inform citizens of the accelerated delivery of
these roadways and report back to Council.

Purpose:

The development industry has proposed to accelerate the design and construction of these
roadways to provide a connection between the Crawford neighborhood to the rest of the
Upper Mission development area. Council approval is sought to approve this in principle and
direct staff to engage the community in discussions on the accelerated delivery of this
important road link.

Background:

The City Official Community Plan envisions the extension of Gordon Drive and construction of
the South Perimeter Road from Gordon Drive to Stewart Road West to provide an alternative
access and egress from the Upper Mission area. Through the Southwest Mission Sector Plan,
development in the early to mid 1990s which involved extensive community consultation, key
road links were developed and incorporated into subsequent Official Community Plans, 20
Year Servicing Plans, and Financing Strategy and related Development Cost Charges. These
roadways were envisioned in the original plan to be constructed at 2700 units of development
in the SW Mission though the latest OCP envisions the road at 3400 units. This was as a result
of the desire to move up the construction of Lakeshore Road which originally was planned at
3800 units of development and was moved to 3000 units. Most recently, Council approved
accelerating the section of Lakeshore Road at Anne McClymont Elementary School to proceed

175



in 2015. The level of development in this sector is at approximately 2300 units. With the
sector plan in place, we note that during the development of the Canyon Ridge phase of the
Crawford subdivision in the mid 1990s, the developer provided a road reserve over the
required lands for the South Perimeter Road and also constructed a concrete wall to buffer
homes from the roadway.

The development community has identified that accelerating the Gordon Drive and South
Perimeter Road portions earlier than the plan would benefit the neighborhoods of Upper
Mission and Crawford. In addition to providing an alternative egress and access for the
residents, there is the potential for an enhanced commercial development within the Ponds
neighborhood which is planned as a village center to serve the needs of the entire Upper
Mission and Crawford areas. These roads will also provide a strong connection between two
school sites; the middle school site within the Ponds development, which is priority for School
District 23, and the elementary school site within the Crawford neighborhood. The
catchments areas for both schools involve Upper Mission and Crawford neighborhoods, AND
this road link avoids the need to travel the circuitous route via Crawford, Dehart and Gordon.
The road also allows for improved transit circulation to service the Upper Mission and
Crawford.

The developers propose to construct these roads and to be paid the agreed project cost by
way of Developer Cost Charge credits and revenues as development occurs in the SW Mission
Roads sector without direct taxpayer contribution. Gordon Drive would be funded through
Developer Cost Charge Credits whereby the developers use these credits as they develop
additional lots within their properties over the coming years. The South Perimeter Road
costs are proposed to be initially funded by the development community with compensation
from Roads Sector DCC revenues received by the City over time. Based on current rates of
development in this sector, the developer would recover their estimated $7.6 million
investment over a 5-7 year period. The use of DCC credits to compensate developers for
construction of sector roads has been a common practice in development of major roads in
this sector.

Gordon Drive is planned to be constructed as an urban two lane arterial roadway complete
with on street bikepaths, curb and gutter, boulevards and separated sidewalks on both sides.
The South Perimeter Road is also envisioned to be an urban two lane arterial roadway in the
longer term, with a multiuse pathway on the north side of the roadway. Because this
roadway is within an area of the City currently not approved for development, the initial
construction will be a rural two lane cross section with on road bikepaths. Where it abuts the
Canyon Ridge area of Crawford, the multiuse pathway will be installed to provide access to
the Bellevue Creek corridor. Particular attention will be paid to the future Bellevue Creek
Corridor parking and public trail road crossings. Should this project proceed, the City will
also need to advance improvements to Stewart Rd West which are also identified within both
the South East Kelowna Sector Plan and the South West Mission Sector Road Plan. Funding is
in place to complete the required safety improvements and these will be done, subject to
Council approval, if the South Perimeter Road proceeds.

Another improvement to the Upper Mission road network to be brought forward is the
connection of Frost Rd with Chute Lake Rd which is planned for 2016. This addresses long
standing safety concerns at the Okaview and Chute Lake intersection, and reduces the
circulation thru the present South Crest Dr/Killdeer connection.

176



While accelerating the timing of construction of these roads has no direct taxpayer impact, it
will require the deferral in planned construction of other major roadways identified as part of
this sector. The following planned major DCC roads improvements will be deferred due to
DCC revenue shortfalls resulting from the combined effect of accelerating construction of
Lakeshore Rd at Anne McClymont school, plus the construction of South Perimeter Road

e Dehart Rd (Gordon to Lakeshore) will be delayed from 2300 units to 3200 units,
e Lakeshore (Dehart to Old Meadows) will be delayed from 3000 to 3600 units,

e (Casorso (Benvoulin to Swamp) will be delayed from 3,300 to 4,100 units,

e Plus a number of minor improvements throughout the sector will be delayed.

Current development rates within this sector are approximately 100 units per year and will
vary annually depending on development interest in this area of the City. It should be noted
that the deferred improvements are primarily road urbanization with improved pedestrian
and cycling facilities, and with limited vehicle capacity improvements to the area.

The developer proponent still has a number of approval steps to go through with both the City
and other developers in the SW Mission Sector before the project can proceed. They are
optimistic these can be achieved in the near future. Staff believes that the community needs
to be informed and consulted on as to the accelerated delivery on this project. While there
currently is no preliminary or detailed design completed, staff and the developers can seek
input on potential issues and concerns that the accelerated delivery of this roadway could
present.

Internal Circulation:

City Clerk

Deputy City Manager

Divisional Director, Communications and Information Systems
Divisional Director, Community Planning and Real Estate Services
Divisional Director, Financial Services

Divisional Director, Infrastructure

Manager, Capital Investments and Assets

Manager, Development Engineering

Manager, Transportation and Mobility

Communications Consultant

Financial/Budgetary Considerations: Should this project proceed, the Financial Plan will
need to be amended to incorporate the receipt of DCC revenues and payments to the
developer over the coming years. The 20 Year Servicing Plan identifies funding for multiuse
corridors from federal/provincial gas tax revenues. There are sufficient gas tax funds
available to cover this portion of the work. There will be ongoing operating costs incurred for
maintenance of the roadway, bikepaths, multiuse corridor and landscaping that may be
installed.

Personnel Implications: Should this project proceed, the road construction would be
managed by the Development Engineering Section.

External Agency/Public Comments: Residents in the Crawford neighborhood have expressed
concerns regarding how this roadway, and its related increased traffic, will impact their
neighborhood.

177



Communications Comments: Staff will lead community engagement activities to create
awareness and invite feedback from citizens regarding accelerating construction of the road
network. The plan will be developed following the City’s Engage Policy. The results of the
feedback will be included as part of technical and financial considerations.

Considerations not applicable to this report:
Legal/Statutory Authority:

Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements:
Existing Policy:

Alternate Recommendation:

John Vos, P. Eng.,
Director, Corporate Business Ventures

Approved for inclusion: Paul Macklem, Deputy City Manager

Attachment: 2014-10-01 Attachment - SW Mission Sector B Road Map

cc: City Clerk
Deputy City Manager
Divisional Director, Communications and Information Systems
Divisional Director, Community Planning and Real Estate Services
Divisional Director, Financial Services
Divisional Director, Infrastructure
Manager, Capital Investments and Assets
Manager, Development Engineering
Manager, Transportation and Mobility
Communications Consultant

178



SOUTH PERIMETER ROAD

Developer Proposal to Accelerate Construction
Results of Community Input Process




I BACKGROUND

» City received proposal from developers to
accelerate SPR roadway construction to
2015

» 2030 OCP envisioned construction at 3400
units of development in Upper Mission

(currently at 2400, increasing by 100 per
year)

180



’A

Attachment 1: mm‘?ntﬂ Road map

vLaheshare Bridge

(Wilson Cresk)
I’r '

3
D |-

Lakechore Bridge
(Mission Creek)

BT

Vi

-«
=]

A T gy
f / :
']
s
»” E8 ¢
J 3= " 2 g
~ -~ E i
Denhart S
/ ¥ 2 2 : ;
f 2133 I : PO
La Bridge & x % 2
ﬁg?‘* Al 2\\ g
H - -
08 ﬁl’. [ ] & g
§ 5 L | | Gordon Er':&
{(Bellevue C
”e‘:f- R ‘- 2133 l'NI }'i
$-ﬂ-
# J_#'Pd‘ Y
Frost 1
2400
[
Inset Map o
il
i/ p
] r‘—a - ——
e DCC Roads
i ST | T . \r {]1'. -
m f 3 i;_:_l riggers Overview
[4 -f“‘ﬁy I‘l —— -2 Lane (100% By Developer)
] WA Z Lane and Centre Tum Lane
::' rtl] ;—J‘I'_' 4 Lane l?:m‘t:n
AN U — Cityat Vg
A Momsme—— V0% Py 181
|l O SR SETRL Kelowna
L - 0 0 400
. 1 Rew. June 6711




‘EVELOPER PROPOSAL

» Design and construct SPR roadway

» Front end road and bridge costs (estimated
$7.6 Million)

» Recovery through Sector B Road DCCs
» Estimated recovery over 7 years

» Developer walives 15% taxpayer assist
($1.14 Million)

182



SPR DESIGN STANDARD
» 2 lane arterial road

» Rural cross section (no curb and gutter)
» On road paved bikepaths, gravel shoulders

» Multiuse corridor on north side (initially from
Stewart Rd West to Bellevue Creek Park)

» NOTE: Design process will start once council decision made

183



"OSED CROSS SECTION

ITypical Cross Section: South Perimeter Road

Right af Way Width=30 m.

1.5 m Gravel Matural Grass Stoulder
1.5 m GravelMatural Grass Shoulder

1.6 m Paved Shoulder
]
1.6 m Pawed Shaulder

<
Property Line ﬂﬁ

|0.5m Daukle Solld Yelow Marking

21 o ) B
+32m E|'ud_J3m Orainaga DrtchJ» Lz,,sm Trafflc LuneJ L3,5m Traffic Luan

MNote;

1. Design reflects current Cfficial Community Flan

2. Multi—use Pothway initially only between Stewart Rd W 1o Troil connection to Bellevue Creek Park
3. Exoct road Iocation will wary in road right of way depending on topegraphy and other factors
4. Future design of croas section may vary depending on future development as approved by Council

184

kelowna.ca



COUNCIL DIRECTION

» COUNCIL RESOLUTION of October 6, 2014

THAT Council receives the report for information of the
Director of Corporate Business Ventures;

AND THAT Council confirms the current alignment of the
Extension of Gordon Drive and South Perimeter Road;

AND FURTHER THAT Council direct staff to solicit community
Input on the implications on priorities and sequencing of
other Mission DCC Road Improvements should the Gordon
Drive Extension and South Perimeter Rd proceed in the
near future.

185



MUNITY INPUT PROCESS

OBJECTIVE - To get community Input on
Impact of accelerating SPR on the timing of
other planned Mission road projects

Open House
City website
Independent statistically valid survey

» Collect and collate all public feedback and
report back to Council

186



.-: 'ﬂ,—w

RESREL 1

Lakeshore Bridos
O Wilson Creek)

Lakashara Bridge
A [Mizsion Creck)

Stetiart 1

AnfUELRD

Ll iraliawe C gy
Sy
\F-\

Inset Map

Tz b b e md el ak
et e

pplpea bt Kelowna

3 B
% E
il
Se 2
2018 - 2019 =
L §
LU Ee o e E
B
"
i E
E
i

Projecls Acoelaratad or
Delayed as a result of Sauth
Perimatar Rosd

Based on 2030 Trigasrs with

| akeshore Advanced

==2 Lane (102% By Daveloooar]
— ?lane and Qentra Turs Lane ﬂf;:#\

1 —— Ao, Junc i1
_ kelawna.ca




COMMUNITY INPUT RESULTS

» Statistically Valid Survey
SUPPORT - 64%
NON - SUPPORT - 36%

» Open House ExIt Surveys
SUPPORT - 62.5%
NON-SUPPORT - 37.5%

» SPR EMAILS
SUPPORT - 17
NON SUPPORT - 21 NO OPINION - 7

188




OPEN HOUSE

» November 26 - CNC
» 300 + In attendance

» 215 exit surveys completed
» 135 supportive
» 73 unsupportive
» 7 undecided

189



STATISTICALLY VALID SURVEY

» Phone survey - Nov. 27 to Dec.2

» 300 Mission area residents

4 neighbourhoods (Upper & Lower Mission,
Crawford/East Kelowna, Kettle Valley/Chute
Lake)

» margin of error +/-5.6% at the 95% level
of confidence

190



=

RESULTS

» 82% percelved the main roads in the
Mission are either over or at capacity.

» Lakeshore Road garnered the lowest
satisfaction with current traffic volume
(28% satisfied) followed by Gordon Drive
(44%) and Casorso Road (48%)

191



ROAD PRIORITY IF FUNDING AVAILABLE

» 48 % Lakeshore Road - Dehart to Old
Meadows

» 34% South Perimeter Road - Gordon to
Stewart Road West

» 14 % Casorso Road - Benvoulin to Bedford

192




=

ADVANCING SOUTH PERIMETER ROAD

» 64% strongly or somewhat support

» Strongest support Kettle Valley/Chute
Lake (74%) followed by Lower Mission
(62%), Upper Mission (61%) and
Crawford/East Kelowna (58%)

193



SUMMARY OF COMMUNITY FEEDBACK

» SUPPORT

Alternative access/egress for Upper Mission
Access to significant commercial node

» NON SUPPORT

Desire to see Lakeshore and other roads
upgraded first

Capacity/safety of Stewart Rd West corridor

Impacts on Crawford subdivision
194



EWART RD WEST CORRIDOR

IMPROVEMENTS

4

Sector B Road Plan envisioned Stewart Rd W,

Saucier, Bedford corridor improvements in
tandem with SPR

Improvements needed to sightlines, curves,
Intersections, and provision of bikepaths

$6.5 Million identified in plan, currently not

In 2015 budget, requires $1 Million of tax
assist

Will take 3 years to implement 105



XT STEPS IF COUNCIL SUPPORTS
ACCELERATION OF SPR

» Authorize staff to continue to work with
developer to fulfill all conditions leading
to design and construction of SPR

» If conditions fulfilled, staff to bring
forward budget requests to start process
to improve Stewart Rd West corridor

196



ALTERNATIVE RECOMMENDATION
COUNCIL DOES NOT SUPPORT
ACCELERATION OF SPR

| F

» That Council decline offer of developers

» Preliminary design of Stewart Rd West
corridor

197




hm. f
City of ‘<& :;"

Kelowna

City of Kelowna

Mission - South Perimeter Road
Project Survey Results

December 12, 2014

Prepared by:

Sandra Curiel
Phone: 604 676 5654

Email: scuriel@nrgresearchgroup.com

Liddie Sorensen-Lawrence, MBA
Phone: 604 676 5649

Email: Isl@nrgresearchgroup.com

en rg RESEARCH GROUP (ﬂ?‘rﬁ}g




Table of Contents

Background and Objectives 3
Methodology 4
Results 6
Usage and Perceptions of Road Network 7
Priority of Road Development 12
Support for the South Perimeter Road Project 17
Demographics 21
Summary 24
Appendix — Questionnaire 30

en rg RESEARCH GROUP = 2 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimetedi@3d

@



Background and Objectives

In November of 2014, NRG Research Group was commissioned by the City of Kelowna to conduct a public
engagement survey regarding the realignment of the South Perimeter Road.

About NRG

NRG is a Canadian-owned, national survey research company with more than 30 years of experience in
gualitative and quantitative research. NRG consultants have designed and managed well over 2,500
guantitative research projects, including projects with local, national, and international scopes. NRG has
been a research supplier for the City of Kelowna since 2009. NRG is an accredited Gold Seal Executive
Member of the Market Research & Intelligence Association (MRIA).

Objectives
The City is looking to better understand Okanagan Mission residents’ opinion about a proposal from the

development community. The proposal aims to expedite the design and construction of the South Perimeter
Road sooner than scheduled. The City also wishes to understand the effect of the delayed delivery of other
related transportation improvements in the Mission area by approximately three to six years.

The primary objectives of the survey were to:

v Understand the perceptions of citizens regarding current road network capacity and traffic conditions
in the Mission area;

v Identify citizens’ priorities in terms of which project they would like to see completed in their
community first; and,

v Gauge residents’ support for the advancement of the scheduled construction for the South Perimeter
Road.

>
C n rg e ERE Y {.@ City of Kelowna - Mission — South perimete200d

=/ 3



Methodology

NRG Research Group conducted telephone interviews for the City of Kelowna’s South Perimeter Road
Project Survey between November 27 and December 2", 2014 with 300 Okanagan Mission area
residents. The survey instrument, available in the Appendix, was developed by NRG Research Group
with input from the City of Kelowna’s Community Engagement Team. Results for all respondents
contained in this report carry an overall maximum margin of error of +/-5.6% at the 95% level of
confidence.

The survey was conducted among residents of Kelowna’s Okanagan Mission area (Mission) aged 18
years or older using a random digital dial (RDD) sample source of both cell phone and landline
numbers. Quotas were set to ensure that respondents represented the population base of the four
main neighborhoods in the Mission area. To account for over-sampling of certain areas, the results are
weighted to adjust data to the proportion of volume that each area represents within the Mission
area, according to the population information provided by the City of Kelowna. The table below details
the weighting.

Proportion of
Total P

Estimated Population | Proportion of Volume

Mission Area Completes (ucnomr:el?;ittzl) (2014) (weighted)
Upper Mission 70 23.3% 3,893 21.1%
Lower Mission 120 40.0% 6,564 35.6%
Crawford/East Kelowna 71 23.7% 4,064 22.0%
Kettle Valley/Chute Lake 13.0% 3,937 21.3%

"’"Q 4 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZiddd



The analysis contained in this report use the following guidelines:

* Most questions are reported as overall and then broken down by subgroups to highlight any
differences.

» Statistical differences have been calculated at the 95% confidence level and are noted with a circle.o

* In some cases, the summary statistics (e.g., the total percent positive) when compared to the sum of
the individual percentages of the very and the somewhat may not appear to be added correctly (i.e.,
off by +/- 1 percentage point). However these differences are due to rounding and the percentages
shown are correct.

m

>
g n rg RESEARCH GROUP \%\f 5 City of Kelowna - Mission — South perimete202d



Results

Use and Perceptions of Current Mission
Area Road Network

6 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZi33d




Use and Perceptions of Mission Road Network

* All respondents were first asked to rate the overall capacity of the main roads in the Mission
area today.

* Respondents were asked to describe the frequency of use of three of the main roads in the
Mission area, under typical conditions, without factoring in the construction activity that
residents are experiencing on Lakeshore Road currently. Those roads were described to
respondents using the text below:

e Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows,
* Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford, and
* Gordon Drive from Frost Road to Dehart Road.

* Respondents were then asked to rate their satisfaction with the current traffic volume for
each of the named roads they use.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU @ 7 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteMd



Perceptions of Current Road Network

* In general, almost one-half (48%) of residents
indicate that the main roads in the Mission
area are currently over capacity and 34%
believe the roads are at capacity. Only 16%
believe the roads are not yet at capacity.

* Those who live in the Kettle Valley (62%) area
as well as those in Upper Mission (54%) and
Lower Mission (50%) areas, are significantly
more likely than those in Crawford/East
Kelowna (27%) to indicate that the main roads
in Mission are over capacity.

* Those in the Crawford/East Kelowna are more
likely than residents in other areas to believe
the roads are at capacity (42%). Although not
significant, a notable proportion (24%) indicate
that the roads are not yet at capacity.

Q1. In general, would you say that the main roads in the
Mission area are, on average.

2% =2%=  ma%m
14% 11% 10% 15%

Utilized but

not at

capacity

At capacity

m Over capacity 48%
= DK/ Refused

Total Upper Lower Crawford/ Kettle
Mission Mission East Valley/
Kelowna Chute Lake

m Underutilized

Base: All respondents, n=300; Upper Mission n=70, Lower
Mission n=120, Crawford/EK n=71, Kettle Valley n=39.

City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2@9d



Frequency of Use of Main Mission Roads

e Of the three main roads of interest in the

.. . 2. Under typical conditions, without factoring in the
Mission area, Lakeshore is most often used. Q P &

construction activity we’re experiencing on Lakeshore

Two-thirds (67%) of residents indicate that they today, please tell me how frequently you use[MENTION
use Lakeshore Road at least once a week, _ ROAD]?
which includes 38% of all residents who use 67%

this road daily. Lakeshore Road

* Casorso Road follows closely as the second fgﬁ;“ﬁ::;:v:s" B e 5%
most often used road with 63% using the road
at least once a week. |

63%
* Gordon Drive is also used at least weekly by :

six-in-ten (59%) Mission area residents. Casorso Road from
Benvoulin to 27% 36% 14% 16% 6%
Bedford !

59%

A
r 1

Gordon Drive from
Frost Road to 32% 27% 13% 20% 8%
Dehart Road _

m Daily

m Not daily but at least once a week
Not weekly but at least once a month
Less than once a month
Never

= Don't know

Base=All respondents, n=300

Cn rg RESEARCH GROUP @ 9 City of Kelowna - Mission — South perimete2006d



Frequency of Use of Main Mission Roads

* Not surprisingly, the use of each road varies i i ) . ,
Q2. Under typical conditions, without factoring in the construction

Signiﬁca ntly for residents of each area within activity we’re experiencing on Lakeshore today, please tell me how

Mission based on proximity of the road to the frequently you use[MENTION ROAD]?
(Those who use each road at least weekly)

neighborhood.

* Those living in Upper Mission, Lower Mission,
and Kettle Valley/ Chute Lake are significantly Lakeshore Road
. . from Dehart to
more likely than those in the Crawford/ East 0ld Meadows
Kelowna area to use Lakeshore Road from
Dehart to Old Meadows and Gordon Drive

from Frost Road to Dehart Road on a daily Casorso Road

basis. from Benvoulin

* Those in Upper Mission are significantly more to Bedford
likely than those in any other areas to use
Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford at
least once a week. Meanwhile, residents of the Gordon Drive
ford | icularl from Frost Road
Crawford/ East Kelowna area are particularly to Dehart Road

more likely than those in other neighborhoods
to use Casorso Road daily (46%).

m Total

m Upper Mission

u Lower Mission
Crawford/ East Kelowna
Kettle Valley / Chute Lake

Base=All respondents who use each road at least once a week; Lakeshore road,
n=280, Casorso Road, n=278, Gordon Drive, n=273

i

>
C n rg RESEARCH CROLP @ 10 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteMZd



€

Satisfaction With Main Mission Roads

e Almost half (48%) of all residents who use Casorso Road

are satisfied or extremely satisfied with the current
traffic volume. Those in the Upper Mission area are more
likely than those in other neighborhoods to indicate that
they are extremely satisfied with the traffic volume on
this road (27%).

In all, 44% of Gordon Drive users are satisfied or fcas°|;5° Roal‘_j
. [ . . . . rom benvoulin
extremely satisfied with the traffic volume in this road to Bedford

and one-quarter (26%) are dissatisfied. Those living in

the Upper Mission (30%), Lower Mission (28%), and

Kettle Valley (36%) areas are much more likely to indicate

they are not satisfied or not at all satisfied compared to Gordon Drive

those in the Crawford/East neighborhood (10%). from Frost Road

Dehart Road
Among the three roads, Lakeshore Road garners the to Dehart Roa

lowest satisfaction rating with the current traffic volume.
Three-in-ten (30%) users are not satisfied or not at all

satisfied with traffic on Lakeshore Road.
Lakeshore Road

Those in the Upper and Lower Mission areas (15% and from Dehart to
17%, respectively) are less likely than those in other Old Meadows
Mission areas to be satisfied with Lakeshore Road.

Despite the high proportion of dissatisfied Lakeshore
users, nearly three-in-ten (28%) indicate that are
satisfied or extremely satisfied.

Not surprisingly, given that they use the road less
frequently compared to any other neighborhoods, those
in Crawford/East Kelowna tend to be more likely than
those in any other area to be extremely satisfied with
the traffic volume on the Lakeshore road (18%).

NrE oo @@ .

Q3. How satisfied are you with the current traffic

volume on [MENTION ROAD]?

48% 14% Mean
I\ ,—1ﬁ

28% 36% % 3.5

44% 26%
L 1

24% 28%

% 3.3

28% 30%

I—lﬁ I—lﬁ

5 - Extremely Satisfied = 4 3 m 2 m 1- Not at All Satisfied = Don't know

Base=All respondents who use each road; Lakeshore road, n=280, Casorso

Road, n=278, Gordon Drive, n=273

City of Kelowna - Mission — South perimete208d



Results
Priority of Mission Road Development

12 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2#33d




Priority of Mission Road Development

* All respondents were presented with an explanation of the City of Kelowna’s plan regarding the future road
network, which provided a description of the three major projects planned for the area over the long term.
Those projects were described to respondents using the text below:

The City of Kelowna, through the Official Community Plan, has identified the future road network and
financial strategy to accommodate growth in your area. It is expected that an additional 1,000 units
of housing will be built within the next 10 years in the upper Mission which translates to 10,000
vehicle trips daily or a 25 percent increase in traffic on major roads in the area.

The City will be improving Lakeshore Road in front of Anne McClymont School as early as next year to
help . In addition to this project there are three major projects planned for the area over the long
term. Each project has an estimated cost of approximately S5 to S7 million in today’s dollars.

The first is Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows. This would be built to the urban standard,
which includes sidewalks, along Lakeshore Road.

The second is Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford. This project would see improvements overall
to traffic flow, including the addition of a centre turning lane.

The third project is the South Perimeter Road from Gordon Drive to Stewart Road West. This project
includes the development of a new road, which is expected to increase traffic capacity within the
Mission area. Specifically it will add access in and out of the Upper Mission and Crawford area.

So, to summarize the three main projects that | just described are:
* Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows,

e Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford, and

e South Perimeter Road from Gordon Drive to Stewart Road West.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU @ 13 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeterdbQd



Priority of Mission Road Development

* Following this explanation, respondents were asked to indicate which of the three projects they would
like to see completed in their community first.

* Respondents were then asked to indicate of the other two projects, which should be the second priority
for their community.

en rg RESEARCH GROUP @ 14 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimeteibld

@



Road Priority

* Nearly one-half (48%) of all residents indicate that
Y ( A) Q4. Assuming that there is budget to accomplish the three

they would like to see the Lakeshore Road project projects, please tell me which of the projects you would like
completed first in their community. to see completed in your community first.
* Not surprisingly, those in the Upper Mission area Lakeshore Road from Dehart .
(57%) are particularly more likely than those in to Old Meadows
other areas to say that they want to see the South Perimeter Road from
. ) Gordon Drive to Stewart
Lakeshore Road project developed first. Road West
* Those in the Kettle Valley/Chute Lake (49%) are Casorso Road from Benvoulin
. . f
notably more likely than those in other to Bedford
neighborhoods to say they want to see the South DK/ Refused

Perimeter Road developed first.
Base=All respondents, n=300

* Those living in Crawford/East Kelowna (25%) and
Lower Mission (16%) are more likely than those in o
By Mission area

other neighborhoods to prefer the Casorso Road
from Benvoulin to Bedford project be completed Lakeshore Road =‘y g
first, though Lakeshore Road is still chosen more from Dehart to -

. Old Meadows
often by area residents. 44% = Upper Mission

South Perimeter 31%
Road from 8% m Lower Mission

Gordon Drive to 2190
Stewv;?lr;csi{oad Crawford/
7 East Kelowna
Casorso Road Kettle Valley/
from Benvoulin Chute Lake
to Bedford .

5%

Base: All respondents, n=300; Upper Mission n=70, Lower Mission
n=120, Crawford/EK n=71, Kettle Valley n=39.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU @ 15 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimetezR'bZd



Road Priority

* In all, Mission residents would like to see the

_ Ranking
Lakeshore road completed first, followed by South
Perimeter Road as a second priority and lastly, the Upper Lower |Crawford/| Valley/
Casorso Road. Mission Mission

* Those in the Upper and Lower Mission areas rank
their preference in this same order. Meanwhile, Lakeshore Road - ey 5 1.6 1.8 1.8
those in the Crawford/East Kelowna area also South Perimeter
e g _ Road 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.6
indicate that their first choice would be Lakeshore oa
Road, their second would be Casorso Road, and Casorso Road 2.3 24 2.3 2.0 2.5

thirdly the South Perimeter Road.

* Residents of the Kettle Valley/Chute Lake area
would like to see the South Perimeter Road
developed first, their second priority would be
Lakeshore Road, and Casorso Road would be their
last choice.

Ranked in 1st place

Ranked in 2nd place Base: All respondents, n=300, Upper Mission n=70, Lower

Ranked in 3rd place Mission n=120, Crawford/EK n=71, Kettle Valley n=39.

>
€ n rg RESEABCH CROU C"-D 16 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2R1)3d



Results

Support for the South Perimeter Road
Project

17 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2idbAd



Support for the South Perimeter Road Project

* Respondents were presented with a brief explanation of the current plan timelines for the three roads
of interest. Then, respondents were presented with details of the proposal from a developer to
advance the schedule of the South Perimeter Road to be completed in 2016, including a description of
the advantages and disadvantages of the reprioritization of this project. The text of this explanation is
below:

The current plan has the Lakeshore Road project scheduled first with completion in 2023. The
South Perimeter road is second priority with completion in 2025. These are followed by Casorso
Road being completed in 2026. However, the City of Kelowna has received a proposal from a
developer to advance the schedule of the South Perimeter Road to be completed in 2016. The
project will be constructed by the developer without taxpayer contribution.

The reprioritization of the South Perimeter Road will accommodate the expected growth of traffic
volume and see safety improvements on Stuart Road West. This project also facilitates the
construction of the Pond’s major commercial centre and creates a direct access to the middle
school currently planned for in the area. Proceeding with this proposal, however, will delay the
other two previously mentioned road projects approximately three to six years.

* Following this explanation, respondents were asked to indicate their level of support for the proposal
to advance the South Perimeter Road project.

* Those who oppose the proposal were asked to explain why they were not in favour.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU @ 18 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2ibd



Level of Support to Advance the South Perimeter Road Project

* Overall, nearly two-thirds (64%) of Mission residents Q5. Do you support or oppose the proposal to advance

support t-he proposal to advance the South Perimeter the South Perimeter Road? Total Support
Road project. (Strongly/
L . 1 Somewhat)

* Those living in the Upper and Lower Mission areas Om(:;;
(37% each), and those in Kettle Valley/ Chute Lake Total 23 10% ETALIN /5% ’
(46%),a are significantly more likely than those in the : — "

Crawford/ East Kelowna area (20%) to strongly
support the acceleration of the South Perimeter Road
project. 1
* Interestingly, those who are satisfied or extremely Upper Mission O 24% 7% %6% 61%

satisfied with the current volume traffic on Lakeshore ] . .
Road (33%) are significantly more likely than those

( A,’) - 318 y JIRElY Lower Mission O 26% 11% BEIN 7% 8% 62%
who are dissatisfied to support this proposal to
advance the South Perimeter Road. A similar pattern 1
is noted in those who gave satisfaction ratings to Ecrtar’flord/ 38% 8% %7% 58%
Casorso Road traffic volumes. This indicates that o Relonns | | |
residents are more willing to support the

. . . Kettle Valley/ 0 0 . o

advancement of the South Perimeter Road project if Chute Lake O 28% 13% A 74%
the traffic volume on Lakeshore and Casorso Roads | —
are currently within their satisfaction expectations.

Strongly Support Somewhat Support
* Given the proximity to the South Perimeter Road, not Somewhat Oppose m Strongly Oppose

surprisingly those that indicated that are not at all Need More Information DK/ Refused
satisfied with the current traffic volume on Gordon o o

. . . Base: All respondents, n=300, Upper Mission n=70, Lower Mission n=120,
Drive (17%), are more likely than those satisfied to Crawford/EK n=71, Kettle Valley n=39.
support the acceleration of the South Perimeter Road
project.

>
C n rg e ERE Y @ 19 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZibfd



Reasons to Oppose

* The most frequently-mentioned reason why
residents oppose the advanced timeline of the
South Perimeter roadway project is because
they do not support the related delay of the
Lakeshore Road construction, which is seen as
a higher priority (29%). This is particularly
mentioned by those living in the Lower Mission
and Kettle Valley/ Chute Lake areas.

* Nearly two-in-ten (18%) indicate that they are
opposed to this proposal because it will cause
bottlenecks or increase traffic in the area. Just
over one-in-ten (11%) express that the South
Perimeter Road is not a road they would use or
has no benefits to them, while 11% mention
that other roads should be the priority and not
be delayed.

* Another 7% share concerns about the need of
prioritizing the improve of safety in other roads
and thoughts about the developer doing this
project for their own benefit (7%).

Q6. You mentioned that you oppose the advanced timeline of
the South Perimeter roadway project. What is the main reason
why you oppose this proposal? (Multiple Response)

Lakeshore Road should be a priority/
should not be delayed
It will cause bottlenecks/ more traffic in the
area

Not a road | would use/ No benefit to me

Other roads/ projects should be the
priority/should not be delayed

My priority is where | live

Improving safety in other roads should be
the priority

Developer is doing it for their own benefit

Casorso Road should be a priority/ should
not be delayed

Too fast/many developments in Kelowna

Lakeshore road will ease traffic/
congestion/ bottlenecks
Mentions relating to Ponds/ shopping
center development
It will increase traffic flow in the Crawford
area
If the developer is paying, it should not
delay others

Other

29%

Base=All respondents who oppose, n=80

Only responses with 3% or more mentions are shown.

20 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2{béd



Appendix
Demographics

21 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2{b8d




Demographics - Household Composition

* The vast majority (94%) of Mission residents
interviewed own their property. Only 4% rent
the home they currently reside in.

* Just over one-half (53%) have lived at their
current property more than 10 years. Another
28% have lived in this property between 6-10
years.

* Almost one-half (46%) of residents indicate
that there are two people in their household,
while another three-in-ten (28%) indicate there
are four or more people living in their
household.

@

Property

Rent. 4% DK/Refused,
ent, 4%

2%

Own, 94%

Base=All respondents, n=300

Years Living in Property

Less than 1 year 3%
1-5 years

6-10 years

More than 10 years 53%

Refused

People in Household

One
Two 46%
Three

Four or more

Refused

Base=All respondents, n=300

22 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2d:3d



Demographics

* The profile of residents that participated in this
survey is composed of 49% males and 51%
females.

* Those 55 years or older comprise two-thirds
(66%) of the sample. Another one-third (32%)

of all respondents are between 35 to 54 years
old.

Gender

Male, 49% Female, 51%

Base=All respondents, n=300
(Unweighted data)

Age

18-34 years old

35-54 years old

68%

55 years or older

Refused

Base=All respondents, n=300
(Unweighted data)

23 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2aQd




Summary

24 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2ibid




Perceptions of Current Road Network

» The majority (82%) of residents believe that the current road network in the Mission area is at or over
capacity. In fact, when asked to describe the capacity of three main roads in the Mission area, almost
one-half (48%) of residents believe that the roads are over capacity and one-third (34%) indicate that
they are at capacity. Just under two-in-ten (16%) indicate the roads are not yet at capacity.

* The perception of current road network capacity differ somewhat by Mission neighborhood.
Residents from three out of the four Mission areas, Kettle Valley/ Chute Lake (62%), Upper (54%),
and Lower Mission (50%) are much more likely than those who live in the Crawford/ East Kelowna
area (27%) to indicate that the main roads in Mission are over capacity.

Frequency of Use of Main Mission Roads

* Among three main roads of interest in the Mission area, Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows
is the most frequently used. Two-thirds (67%) of residents indicate that they use Lakeshore Road at least
once a week; including just over one-third (38%) who use this road on a daily basis.

* Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford is the second most used road, with just over six-in-ten (63%)
residents who indicate they use it frequently (at least once a week). Gordon Drive from Frost Road to
Dehart Road is used at least once a week by 59% of residents.

* As expected, the use of each main road within the Mission area varies by neighborhood and the
proximity to each road. Residents of Upper and Lower Mission as well as those in the Kettle
Valley/Chute Lake are more likely than those in the Crawford/ East Kelowna area to use Lakeshore
Road and Gordon Drive on a daily basis. Whereas those who live in the Crawford/East Kelowna
neighborhood are more likely than those in any other area to use Casorso Road daily.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU @ 25 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimeted2d



Satisfaction With Main Mission Roads

* Residents users of Lakeshore Road are not satisfied with traffic volume. In fact, three-in-ten
Lakeshore Road are not satisfied or not at all satisfied with traffic on Lakeshore Road.

* As expected, given the high frequency of use, those in the Upper Mission (15%) and Lower
Mission (17%) areas are more likely than those in any other Mission neighborhoods to be
dissatisfied with Lakeshore Road. Meanwhile, nearly two-in-ten (18%) of Crawford/ East
Kelowna residents are more likely than those elsewhere to be extremely satisfied with the
traffic volume on Lakeshore Road.

* Those who use Casorso Road are highly satisfied with almost one-half (48%) of residents stating they
are satisfied or extremely satisfied with the traffic volume on this road. Just over seven-in-ten (71%)
of Upper Mission residents indicate they use Casorso Road at least once a week and nearly one-
quarter (27%) are more likely than those in other neighborhoods to indicate they are satisfied or
extremely satisfied with the traffic volume on this road.

* Just over four-in-ten (44%) of Gordon Drive users are satisfied or extremely satisfied with the current
traffic volume on this road. That said, 26% noted they are not satisfied or not at all satisfied.

» Satisfaction with Gordon Drive’s current traffic volume varies by neighborhood. Given that they
use this road frequently, resident users of Upper Mission (30%), Lower Mission (28%), and
Kettle Valley/ Chute Lake (36%) areas are significantly more likely to indicate they are
dissatisfied compared to those in the Crawford/ East Kelowna area (10%), who use this road
significantly less frequent than any other area.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU == 26 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZi3d



Priority of Mission Road Development

* Given high use and low satisfaction levels, it is not surprising that Lakeshore Road is the top priority
for most residents. In fact, after residents were provided a description of the main three projects
planned, just about half (48%) indicate that Lakeshore Road project should be the priority in their
community.

* Given that they use the road very frequently, not surprisingly nearly six-in-ten (57%) of Upper
Mission residents are significantly more likely than those in other neighborhoods to say that
they want to see the planned improvements to Lakeshore Road project completed first.

e Although Lakeshore Road is still the top priority for most residents, one-quarter (25%) of those
in Crawford/ East Kelowna and Lower Mission (16%) are more likely than those in other areas
to indicate that Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford should be completed first.

* Given that the vast majority (85%) of Kettle Valley residents perceive the Mission road network
at or over capacity, and almost all (95%) use Lakeshore Road at least once a week, nearly one-
half (49%) are particularly more likely than those in other areas to indicate they want to see
the South Perimeter Road constructed first.

* In general, when asked to rank their priority, Mission residents indicate that Lakeshore road should
be the priority. Considering that almost half of Casorso Road users are satisfied with this road,
residents would like to see the South Perimeter Road project constructed after Lakeshore Road,
leaving Casorso Road as the last priority.

>
C n rg e ERE Y (g-i;\ 27 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZidAd



Support for the South Perimeter Road Project

* Overall, the majority of Mission residents support the proposal to advance the South Perimeter Road
project. In fact, after being presented with a brief explanation of current plan timelines and a description of
the advantages and disadvantages of the reprioritization of this project, nearly two-thirds (64%) of
residents support this proposal.

* Not surprisingly, given that they consider that the current Mission road network is over capacity,
those living in the Upper and Lower Mission areas (37% each) as well as those in Kettle Valley/ Chute
Lake (46%) are significantly more likely than those in the Crawford/ East Kelowna neighborhood
(20%), who perceive the roads at capacity or even not yet at capacity, to strongly support the
proposal to expedite the construction of the South Perimeter Road sooner than scheduled.

* A notable proportion of residents users, who previously indicated they are highly satisfied with current
traffic volume in Lakeshore and Casorso Roads, are willing to accept the trade-off of delaying the planned
improvements to these Mission main roads in order to accelerate the South Perimeter Road development;
this only if the traffic volume remains within their satisfaction expectations. In fact, those who are satisfied
or extremely satisfied with the current volume traffic on Lakeshore Road (33%) are significantly more likely
than those who indicated are not satisfied or not at all satisfied to support this proposal. Casorso Road
users that are highly satisfied with the current traffic volume in this road are also much more likely to
support the proposal (54%). On the other hand, those that are dissatisfied with current traffic volume on
these roads oppose the proposal because they believe that Lakeshore Road improvements should be a
priority.

* Given the proximity to the South Perimeter Road and perhaps because they perceive this new road could
ease current traffic volume, Gordon Drive users that indicate they are not at all satisfied with the current
traffic volume on this road, are also more likely than those who are satisfied to support this proposal.

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GRO @ 28 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimeted



Reasons to Oppose

* Those who oppose the advanced timeline of the South Perimeter Road are not willing to accept the
trade-off of delaying the improvements on Lakeshore Road, which they consider is a higher priority.
In fact, that is the most frequently mentioned reason for why nearly three-in-ten (29%) residents
oppose the proposal, especially those in the Lower Mission and Kettle Valley/ Chute Lake area.

* The second most commonly-voiced objection to this proposal is that it will cause bottlenecks or
increase traffic in the area (18%). A number of comments also mention that the South Perimeter
Road is not a road they would use or has no benefits to them and again that other roads should be
the priority and not be delayed (11% each).

* There are also concerns about the need to prioritize the improvement of safety on other roads and
about the developer doing this project for their own benefit (7% each).

>
€ n rg RESEARCH GROU @ 29 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimetezl%éd



Appendix
Questionnaire

30 City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZib4d




Questionnaire

35

-14-3083 o 359-14-3083

[r:]

Mission — South Perimeter Road Su ey 51. Which of the following best describes the neighbourhood within Kelowna that you livein? [READ -

Final — November 28, 2014 SELECT ONE ONLY]
1. Upper Missicon, {IF ASKED: that is East of Chute Lake Road and above Barnaby or Steele)

Total completes =300 2. Lower Mission, (IF ASKED: that is below Barnaby or 5teele Road to south of Mission Creek)

Mission Areas Quota 3. Crawford East Kelowna (IF ASKED: anything east of Swamp Road)

Tpperiieson T 4. Kettle Valley Chute Lake (IF ASKED: Okaview or Rimrock or Cedar Creek — South of Barnaby Roadand
west of Chute Lake Road towards the lake)

Lower Mission Min 70
97. None of these >>*THANK AND TERMINATE

Crawford / East Kelowna Min 70 8. Don't Know >>THANK AND TERMINATE

Kettls Valley [ Chute Lake Win 70 95 Refused »>*THANK AND TERMINATE

C.RECORDGEMNDER

Hello, my name is . I'm calling from NRG Research Group on behalf of the City of Kelowna.
[Today/This evening] we are conducting a brief survey amaong residents of the Okanangan Mission area 1. Male
to learn more about resident’s knowledge and opinions about upcoming roadway projects in the area. 2. Female

May | speak to somecne inyour household who is 18 years old or older?
The following guestions are about your current usage and perceptions of the existing road network

withinthe Mission area.
IF NECESSARY REINTRODUCE

1. Ingeneral, would you say that the main roads in the Mission area are, on average: [READ LIST]

ARRANGE CALLBACK IF NECESSARY. 1 Underutilized
IF RESPONDENT REFUSES, SAY: 2. Utilized but not at capacity
3. At capacity
* Your opinions and the information you provide will helpensure a more effective project 4. Over capacity
planning and will help the City's staff understand resident’s perceptions of the existing road GE. Don't Know [DO NOT READ]
network withinthe Mission area. 9%, Refused [DO NOT READ]
* You've been selected from among residents of the Mission area.
* Your responses remain strictly confidential as none of your individual answers will be identified. 2. Now | am going to read out roads that you may or may not use in the Mission area. Under

typical conditions, without factoring in the construction activity we’re experiencing on
. . Lakeshore today. For each, please tell me how freguently you use...? [READ LIST THEN READ
IF RESPONDENT WISHES TO VERIFY SURVEY, READ: Youmay call Kari O'Rourke, Community “Would you say..."THEN READ ANWER OPTIONS]

Engagement Consultant at 250-469-8485.

¢ The surveyshould take approximately 5 minutes depending onyour answers.

TO VERIFY THIS SURVEY WITH THE MRIA: Please call 1-BBE-602-6742, ext. 8728, (Service provided #) Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows
MDI‘M:IBY to Fru:liw.I from 8:30 am t05:00 pm EasternTime). Oryou can visit their website 31, b Casorse Road from Benvoulin to Bedford
.ca (Englishjor A ionsondase.ca (French) and verify the following ) Gordon Drive from Frost Road to Dehart Road

survey 10: 201.41028—956”

*MNOTE: ALLTEXT IN CAPS ARE NOT READ TO RESPONDENTS.

2014 City of Kelowna — Misson— South Perimeter Road Survey Final November 28, 2014

2014 City of Kelowna — Misson— South Perimeter Road Survey Final November 28, 2014

ROU @ 31 City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete22:8d




Questionnaire

359-14-3083 359-14-3083
ANSWER OPTIONS The third project is the South Perimeter Road from Gordon Drive to Stewart Road West. This project
1. Daily [GO TD Q3] includes the development of a new road, whichis expectedto increase traffic capacity withinthe
2. Not daily but at least once a week [GOTO Q3] Mission area. Specifically it will add access in and out of the Upper Mission and Crawford area.
3. MNotweekly but at least once a month [GO TO Q3] ) ) _ ) )
4. Less than once a month [GO TO Q3] So, to summarize the three main projects that | just described are:
5. Never [GO TO Q4] * Lakeshore Roadfrom Dehartto Old Meadows,
8. Don't Know [DONOT READ] [GOTO Q4] *  CasorsoRoad from Benvoulinto Bedford, and
98, Refused [DO NOT READ] [GOTOO4] s South Perimeter Road from Gordon Drive to Stewart Road West.
3. [ASK FOR ALL ROADS WHERE ANSWERS ARE 1 through 4 IN Q2] You mentioned that you use 4, Assuming that there is budget to accomplish the 3 projects, please tell me which of the projects
the [PIPE IN ROAD FROM Q2, PIPE IN FREQUENCY FROM Q2].Using a scale of 1to 5 where 1is youwould like to see completedinyour community first. [READ ROADS]
‘Not atall Satisfied” and 5 is ‘Extremely Satisfied’, how satisfied are you with the current traffic [IF ANSWER DK OR REFUSE GO TO Q5]
volume on [PIPE IN ROAD FROM Q2. 4a. From the two others left [READ ROADS LEFT IN LIST], what wouldyou say should be the
a) Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows second priority for your community?
b) Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford
¢} Gorden Drive from Frost Road to Dehart Road 1. Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows
2. Casorso Road from Berwoulin to Bedford
1. NotatAll Satisfied 3. South Perimeter Road from Gordon Drive to Stewart Road West
2. GB. Don't Know [DO NOT READ]
3. 5. Refused [DO NOT READ]
4.
5. ExtremelySatisfied 5. The current plan has the Lakeshore Road project scheduled first with completionin 2023. The
SE. Don't Know [DOMNOTREAD] South Perimeter road is second priority with completion in 2025, These are followed by Casorso
55, Refused [DO NOT READ] Road being completedin 2026. However, the City of Kelowna has received a proposal from a
developer to advance the schedule of the South Perimeter Road to be completedin 2016. The
project will be constructed by the developer without taxpayer contribution.
READ ALL: The City of Kelowna, through the Official Community Plan, has identified the future road
network and financial strategy to accommeodate growthinyour area. |tis expected thatan additional The repricritization of the South Perimeter Road will accommogate the expected growth of
1,000 unir_slof hD!.IS i rlgTNiII be built withi nlthe next .m vealrs inthe lupper Milss ienwhich translates to trafficvolume and see safety improvements on Stuart Road West. This project also facilitates
10,000 vehicl= trips daily or a 25 percent increase intraffic on major roads in the area. the construction of the Pond's major commercial centre and creates a direct access tothe
The City will be improving Lakeshore Roadin front of Anne McClymont School as earlyas next year to middle school currently planned forin the area. Proceeding with this proposal, however, will
help. In addition to this project there are three major projects planned for the area over the long term. delay the other two previously mentioned road projects approximately 3 to 6years.
Each project has an estimated cost of approximately 55 to 57 millionin today's dollars. Understanding this, doyou support or oppose the proposal to advance the South Perimeter
Road? CLARIFY: Would that be somewhat or strongly [OPPOSE/SUPPORT]?
The firstis Lakeshore Road from Dehart to Old Meadows. This would be built to the urban standard,
whichincludes sidewalks, along Lakeshore Road. 1. Strongly Oppose
2. Somewhat Oppose
The second is Casorso Road from Benvoulin to Bedford. This project would see improvements overall to 3. Somewhat Support
traffic flow, including the addition of a centre turning lane. 4. Strongly Support
57. Need more information [DO NOT READ]
GE. Don't Know [DO NOT READ]
2014 City of Kelownz — Misson— South Perimeter Road Survey Fnal November 28, 2014 2014 City of Kzlownz — Misson — South Perimeter Rozd Survey Fnzl November 28, 2014

32

City of Kelowna - Mission — South Perimete2@3d




Questionnaire

9. Refused [DONOT READ]

6. [ASK IF Q5 =1 OR 2] You mentioned that you cppose the advanced timeline of the South
Perimeter roadway project. What is the main reason why you oppose this proposal?

DEMOGRAPHICS
And just a few guestions for statistical purposes only.

D1. Including yourself, how many people intotal are inyour household? [READ LIST IF MECESSARY])
1. One
2. Two
3. Three
4. Fouror more
8%, Refused [DO NOT READ]

D2. Do you currently own or rent this property?

1. Own

2. Rent

%8, Don't Know [DO NOTREAD]
%8, Refused [DONOTREAD]

D3. And, how long have you lived at this property?

Less than 1year

1-5years

&-10years

More than 10 years
. Don't Know [DO NOT READ]
. Refused [DO NOT READ]

B W

D4. Lastly, which of the following categories best describes your age: [READ THE LIST]?

1B-34 years
35-54 years
55 or over
. Refused [DONOTREAD]

Rl

Those are all my questions. Thank you very much for taking the time to participate in our survey.

2014 City of Kelowna — Misson— South Perimeter Road Survey Fnal November 258, 2014 Pz

City of Kelowna - Mission — South PerimeteZR3Ad




	Agenda
	2. Draft Minutes - December 15, 2014 Regular PM Meeting.pdf
	3.1 A14-0011 499 Valley Rd.pdf
	3.1 Attachments A14-0011 Valley Rd N.pdf
	3.2 A14-0010 1301 Glenmore Rd N.pdf
	3.2 A14-0010 attachments 1301 Glenmore Road N.pdf
	3.3 2015 01 12 Report Z14-0055 Wardlaw Ave 650-652.pdf
	3.3 2015 01 12 Attachments Z14-0055 Wardlaw 650 652.pdf
	3.3.1 Bylaw No. 11049 (Z14-0055).pdf
	3.4 2014 12 15 Report TA14-0013 CD2.pdf
	3.4 2014 12 15 Attachments TA14-0013 CD2 Zone.pdf
	3.4.1 Bylaw No. 11046 (TA14-0013).pdf
	3.5 2015 01 12 Report TA14-0015 Amended 1975 Union Rd.pdf
	3.5 2014 01 12 Attachments TA14-0015 1975 Union Rd.pdf
	3.5.1 Bylaw No. 10996 (TA14-0015).pdf
	3.6 2015 01 12 Report 1429 KLO Rd Extension to Dec 12 2015.pdf
	3.6 2015 01 12 Attachments Z11-0083.pdf
	3.7 2014 01 12 Report Z12-0047 extend to Nov 13 2015.pdf
	3.7 2014 01 12 Attachments Z12-0047 Mayfair Rd.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 11026 (TA14-0019).pdf
	4.2 Bylaw No. 11031 (TA14-0015).pdf
	4.3 2015 01 12 Report Z10-0028 to Extend and Adopt 1020 Graham Rd.pdf
	4.3 2015 01 12 Attachment Z10-0028 1020 Graham Rd.pdf
	4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10551 (Z10-0028).pdf
	5.1 2015 FP Memo to Council_PP.pdf
	5.1 2015 Budget - City Manager Memo_Final .pdf
	5.1 Council FP 2015.pdf
	5.2 2015-01-06 Report - South Perimeter Rd.pdf
	5.2 2014-10-01 Attachment - SW Mission Sector B Road Map.pdf
	5.2 2014-10-01 Report - South Perimeter Rd.pdf
	5.2 2015-01-01 Presentation - South Perimeter Rd.pdf
	5.2 2015-01-01 Presentation - SPR - NRG Survey Results Report.pdf

